PEIRREERRLE

China Eco-Farming Limited

(Continued into Bermuda with limited liability) (R BHEFZEZBRAT)
(Stock Code B&15 5% 8166)

Annual Report F ¥

2017




CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) (the “Director(s)”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the Company’s website at http.//www.aplushk.com/clients/8166chinaeco-farming/
index.html and the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website for at least 7 days from the date
of its posting.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Suites 2303-06, 23/F,

Great Eagle Centre,

23 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building,

69 Pitts Bay Road,

Pembroke HMOS,

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F,

Two Chinachem Exchange Square,

338 King's Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd

GEM STOCK CODE
8166

WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.aplushk.com/clients/8166chinaeco-farming/index.

html
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. So David Tat Man (“Mr. So”) (BREZEX%4%), aged
33, is an executive Director. Mr. So holds a bachelor degree
in surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
is @ member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. So started his
career in the investment department of Savills (Hong Kong)
Limited and then worked in a company that specialized in
China property investment prior to joining the Company. He
has extensive experience in investment in China and Hong
Kong. Mr. So was a non-executive director of Chinese Food
and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272), a company
listed on the GEM on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) from 1 April 2014 to 31
December 2016. Mr. So joined the Group in January 2014.

Mr. Lai Yick Fung (“Mr. Lai”) (BB#= 8 % 4£), aged 47,
is an executive Director and the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lai obtained a Master of Science Degree in
Financial Management in the University of London and a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy in The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lai had worked for an international accounting firm and
a number of listed companies in Hong Kong and the
United States as senior management and has over 20
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lai joined the Group in April 2015.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (“Mr. Ng") (RE R % %),
aged 56, is an executive Director. Mr. Ng graduated from
the University of Alberta, Canada, with a Bachelor’'s degree
in Commerce, majoring in Accounting. He also obtained
a Master of Commerce degree in Professional Accounting
from the University of New South Wales, Australia and is a
Certified Public Accountant in Australia and a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ng has over 20 years of management and accounting
experience.

Mr. Ng was an executive director of U-RIGHT International
Holdings Limited (“U-RIGHT") from July 2011 to December
2017 (stock code: 627), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, which received petitions from the Hong Kong
Court against the company and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Uni-Capital Limited filed by Detusche Bank A.G., Hong
Kong Branch on 6 October 2008, before Mr. Ng's tenure
of office. The winding-up petition against U-RIGHT was
subsequently dismissed pursuant to the order of the Hong
Kong Court dated 16 September 2013. Mr. Ng was also an
executive director of China Fortune Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 290), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from December 2007 to July 2016. Mr.
Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2014 and was redesignated as an executive
Director in September 2016.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (“Mr. Yick"”) (5 EE L %),
aged 33, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yick
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
members of the audit committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Yick graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Science degree. He
subsequently obtained the Juris Doctor degree as well as the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yick was admitted to practice
law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2012. He has been a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong since then. Mr.
Yick worked in both international and reputable local law
firms and is currently working as a solicitor with emphasis
on corporate finance practice at a local law firm. Mr. Yick
principally engages in Hong Kong listing projects and assists
in legal compliance of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Yick is currently an independent non-executive director
of Mengke Holdings Limited (stock code: 1629), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yick
joined the Group in September 2014.

Mr. Zhang Min (“Mr. Zhang”) (FREE%&4) , aged 60, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee, members of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor of Philosophy Degree from the
Beijing Normal College and a Master of Laws Degree from
the Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang is currently the chief executive officer and an
executive director of Junefield Department Store Group
Limited (stock code: 758), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Zhang was appointed as a non-executive director of
China Fortune on 8 December 2010. He was re-designated
and appointed as chairman of the board, executive director
and a member of the remuneration committee of China
Fortune from 12 April 2011 to 30 June 2014. In addition,
Mr. Zhang was an independent non-executive director of
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 886), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from 28 January 2011 to 1 April 2014. He was also the chief
marketing officer of the China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd from 28 April 2011 to 31 August 2013 and was the chief
executive of China Construction Bank Corporation, Hong
Kong Branch, from September 2006 to March 2011 and a
director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited and China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited from August
2006 to March 2011. Both CCB International (Holdings)
Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Construction
Bank Corporation (stock code: 939) (together with its
subsidiaries referred to as the “CCBC Group”), a joint stock
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability, whose issued shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the president of
the Beijing Banking Association from 2003 to 2005 and the
Beijing Investment Institution from 2001 to 2006. Mr. Zhang
possesses over 20 years’ experience in the banking industry
through his work with the CCBC Group. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group in March 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (“Ms. Yuen”) (RE8 & +), aged
46, is appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
Ms. Yuen is also the chairman of the audit committee and
members of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee. Ms. Yuen graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a degree in Business Administration in
1994. She is the fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
overseas member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Yuen has worked in accounting
and auditing area for over 23 years. Ms. Yuen is currently
an independent non-executive director of Chinese Strategic
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8089), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yuen was also an
independent non-executive director of The Hong Kong
Building and Loan Agency Limited (stock code: 145), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
from November 2011 to November 2017. Ms Yuen joined the
Group in September 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) was principally
engaged in the business of one-stop value chain services,
property investment, trading of grocery food products,
trading of consumables and agricultural products, provision
of money lending services and provision of financial services.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$63,028,000 (2016:
HK$72,470,000), representing a decrease of approximately
13% as compared to that of last year. Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$71,648,000 (2016: HK$29,955,000).
The basic loss per share of the Company was approximately
HK1.18 cents (2016: HKO0.60 cents).

Property Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the property
investment segment reported revenue of approximately
HK$3,919,000 (2016: HK$3,586,000), representing an
increase of approximately 9.3%, as compared to the last
year. At 31 December 2017, the Group held properties in
the People’s Republic of China (PRC), Taiwan and Hong
Kong for investment purpose amounted to approximately
HK$169,173,000 (2016: HK$174,850,000). The portfolio’s
rental yield was shown in the table below.

Key performance - data of property investment
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Average occupancy level 15 A K 67.2% 63.3%
Average monthly rental income BEFK(FFKIH
per square metre (sg.m) A RA HK$997% 7t HK$847 7T

Definition and calculation: Average occupancy level, being
percentage of floor area occupied by tenant. Average
monthly rental income per sq.m. being average rental income
charged to tenant per sq.m. of floor area leased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

One-stop Value Chain Services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the one-
stop value chain services segment reported a revenue of
approximately HK$16,177,000 (2016: HK$35,955,000),
representing a slump of approximately 55%, as compared to
the last year. The relatively weak performance in this segment
was expected but the Group is working on improvement
plan.

Key performance - data of one-stop value chain
services
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Gross profit margin E | =

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Trading of Consumables and Agricultural Products
During the year ended 31 December 2017, this business
segment reported a revenue of approximately HK$5,870,000
(2016: HK$5,712,000). The surge in revenue was mainly due
to acquisition of reusable bags trading business in August
2016. The business segment demonstrates huge potential
and the Group is optimistic about its future contribution.

Key performance - data of trading of consumables and
agricultural products
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Gross profit margin EF =

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products

The Group’s trading of grocery food products segment
consists of distribution (i) in the catering channel in Hong
Kong for “Mengniu” liquid milk and pasteurized dairy
products, under the “Mengniu” brand; and (ii) in peanut
oil, corn oil and canola oil under the “Jinlongyu” brand via
supermarkets, convenience stores and small-scale stores
in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group is also the sole and
exclusive distributor for the sale and distribution of ramen
and udon products under the brand of “Nittin"( HT ) in
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. During the year ended
31 December 2017, this segment reported a revenue of
approximately HK$29,902,000 (2016: HK$22,409,000).

Key performance - data of trading of grocery food
products
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Gross profit margin

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Performance guarantee - Mengniu and Jinlongyu
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 28
October 2015 entered into between Hexin Limited (“Hexin"),
Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited and the Company,
Hexin will be entitled to obtain 118,320,000 new shares to
be issued by the Company if YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited
("YIHE") successfully meet the target profit of HK$7,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017. Since YIHE recorded
a loss of approximately HK$940,000 instead, no shares of the
Company will be issued to Hexin. As a result, goodwill arising
from acquisition of YIHE was impaired by approximately
HK$3,968,000 whereas contingent consideration in the
amount of approximately HK$1,839,000 was written back
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products (continued)
Performance guarantee — Mengniu and Jinlongyu
(continued)

After a series of discussion and careful consideration, the
Group decided to not to renew the sole distributorship
agreements with respective principals of Mengniu and
Jinlongyu products. The Group is unable to come up with
a satisfactory turnaround plan with the management of
Huge Famous Corporation Limited due to the tough trading
environment resulting in the products’ low gross margin. The
Group will focus on Nittin brand of ramen and udon products
within this segment.

Provision of money lending services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's
money lending services segment managed to contribute
stable return. With majority of the loans secured by
properties or company shares, we demonstrated our strategy
of balanced approach between protecting the Group’s
position yet allowing certain flexibility to cater for customer
needs.

Key performance - loan interest data
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Interest rate earned

Definition and calculation: Interest rate earned, being
percentage of interest income divided by loan amount.

12.7% 10.4%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Provision of financial services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
successfully stepped into the business provision of financial
services. On 17 August 2017, China AF Asset Management
Limited ("CAFAM"), a wholly-owned subsidiary, obtained
Type 9 (asset management) licence under Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC"). On 5 September 2017,
the Group completed the acquisition of 70% interest in
China AF Corporate Finance Limited ("CAFCF”, formerly
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance Company
Limited), a company holding Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) licence under the SFC. While CAFAM is building
up its management portfolio, CAFCF has demonstrated its
value to customers, recording revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017 of HK$3,664,900 (2016: HK$3,590,000).

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Board admits the responsibility to environmental
protection. Over the years, the Group has committed to
reduce waste and pollution with a view of effective and
efficient resources utilisation in the office spaces. Staff are
reminded from time to time the Group's direction in this
respect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
The Group's main business and operation work within
common trade practice environment and the Group
endeavours to comply with all legal and regulatory
requirements. In relation to the human resources, the
Group is committed to comply with the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations, such as the Employment
Ordinance, ordinances in relation to discrimination, the
Privacy Ordinance and the Minimum Wage Ordinance.
The Group also values good conduct of the employees
and has set out clear guidelines to prevent bribery and to
regulate the acceptance of benefits by the employees. On
the corporate level, the Group continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM (”"GEM Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), such as
disclosure of interests, corporate governance, Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
and “Inside Information” disclosure. The Group employs legal
and financial advisers when undergoing acquisitions or other
corporate exercises. During the year ended 31 December
2017, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and rules by the Group.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
The Group recognises importance of retaining talents to
ensure the ongoing execution of business plans. The Group
has established all-rounded staff policy and guidelines for
staff welfare, provide a safe workplace, and support the
development of talent. The Group provides incentives to
its employees based on their performance. The Group
encouraged employees to update their work-related
knowledge, skill by providing training offered by external
organisations. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the employee voluntary turnover rate of the Group was kept
at a low level. During the year, no violation of labour law
was recorded. The key customers of the Group include the
long term trading customers and tenants of the investment
properties. The key suppliers of the Group are the suppliers
of the trading business. The Group has established long
term and solid business relationship with the suppliers which
ensures stable supply and quality products which meet
customers’ demand. During the year, there was no material
dispute between the Group and the customers/suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$63,028,000 (2016:
HK$72,470,000), representing a decrease of approximately
13% as compared to that of last year. The expansion of
trading of agricultural and consumables products and trading
of grocery food products were insufficient to make good the
setback of revenue from one-stop value chain service.

Cost of sales for the year under review was approximately
HK$47,716,000 (2016: HK$61,800,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 22.8% as compared to that of last
year. The decrease of cost of sales was in line with the drop in
revenue. The increase in absolute amount of gross profit was
due to increase in the trading of grocery food product which
has higher gross margin.

Administrative expenses for the year under review was
approximately HK$58,635,000 (2016: HK$61,592,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 4.8% as compared
to that of last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to
decreases in exchange loss of approximately HK$6 million,
share option expense of approximately HK$2.8 million,
provision for damage caused of an investment property of
approximately of HK$2.8 million and consultancy fees of
approximately HK$1.6 million, which was partially offset
by increases in impairment loss of approximately HK$2.9
million, rental expense of approximately HK$2.3 million, legal
and professional fees of approximately HK$2.2 million, staff
salary of approximately HK$1.0 million and depreciation of
approximately HK$1.0 million.

Finance costs for the year under review was approximately
HK$10,873,000 (2016: HK$7,456,000), representing an
increase of approximately 45.8% as compared to that of last
year. The increase was mainly due to increase of the interest
paid and payable for the secured loans and margin loan.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company in the amount of approximately
HK$71,648,000 (2016: HK$29,955,000). Basic loss per share
of the Company increased from HKO0.60 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to HK1.18 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with its
internally generated resources and borrowings during the
year under review. At 31 December 2017, the bank balances
and cash of the Group was approximately HK$5,111,000
(2016: HK$22,298,000).

At 31 December 2017, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$320,233,000 (2016: HK$362,127,000)
and the net current assets was approximately HK$23,669,000
(2016: HK$94,681,000).

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2017, the total liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$170,648,000 (2016:
HK$155,779,000), which mainly comprised of trade and
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings, margin
loans payable, other loan payable, amount due to non-
controlling interests, loan from non-controlling interests,
liability component of convertible bonds and deferred tax
liabilities. These liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan Dollars.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$490,881,000 (2016: HK$517,906,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, turned to 0.35 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: 0.30).

Segmental Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2017 by business segment is set out in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 44 (2016: 44)
total number of full-time employees. Staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 were approximately HK$24,023,000 in
total (2016: HK$25,008,000). The Group determines the
remuneration and compensation payable to its staff based
on individual performance and expertise. Apart from basic
remuneration, share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well
as individual contribution.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital was HK$122,071,049.76 divided into
6,103,552,488 shares of HK$0.02 each (“Shares”) (2016:
HK$120,006,828.48 divided into 6,000,341,424 shares).

Fund Raising Activities

Issue of Convertible Bonds Il as a consideration of an
acquisition

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top Limited (“Skyline Top”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. So Pan
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to sell to Skyline Top, and
Skyline Top has agreed to purchase from Mr. So Pan the sale
shares of Konson Global Investments Limited; and (ii) Mr.
So Pan has agreed to assign to Skyline Top, and Skyline Top
has agreed to accept the assignment of, the sale loan at an
aggregated consideration of HK$40,000,000, of which: (i)
HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied by Skyline Top by cheque or
cashier order upon the completion; and (ii) HK$20,000,000
shall be satisfied by the Skyline Top's procuring of the issue
of the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds II”) at the
conversion price of HK$0.17 (note) per conversion share by
the Company to Mr. So Pan upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bonds Il, 117,647,058 (note) new shares shall be
issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
convertible bonds as a consideration took place on 31 March
2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bonds Il as a consideration of an
acquisition (continued)

Included in the audited financial statements of the Property
Investment Subsidiary (as defined in the Company’s circular
dated 19 February 2014) dated 28 April 2017 was the profit
before tax of the Property Investment Subsidiary for the
period commencing from the Placing Completion Date (as
defined in the Company's circular dated 19 February 2014)
up to 31 December 2016 of HK$46,541,792 which was
audited by the auditor of the Company. As a result, principal
portion of Convertible Bond Il amounted to HK$8,364,552
was cancelled by the Company pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Convertible Bond Il. On 23 May 2017,
68,443,811 new shares of the Company were issued to Mr.
So Pan upon his exercise in full of the remaining portion of
Convertible Bond Il.

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 13 December 2013,
7 March 2014 and 31 March 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 19 February 2014.

Note: On 2 July 2015, a placing of 629,000,000 new shares of the
Company was completed and pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the bond instruments of the Convertible Bonds,
the conversion price was revised from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17.
As a result, number of new shares to be issued upon exercise
of conversion attaching to the Convertible Bonds was revised
from 106,382,978 to 117,647,058.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares under general mandate —
successful

On 15 June 2015, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, and the placing
agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best-effort
basis, not less than six placees for the subscription of up to a
maximum of 629,000,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.20 per placing share under the General Mandate.
The completion of the placing took place on 2 July 2015,
where a total of 629,000,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed by the placing agent to not less than six
placees at the placing price of HK$0.20 per placing share.
The gross proceeds from the placing were approximately
HK$125.8 million and the net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other selected expenses were
approximately HK$124.4 million. Further details of the
placing are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 16 June 2015 and 2 July 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares under general mandate -
successful (continued)

The net proceeds from placing were used as follows:
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On 25 April 2016, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, and the placing
agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best-effort
basis, not less than six placees for the subscription of up to a
maximum of 420,000,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.10 per placing share under the general mandate.
The completion of the placing took place on 3 May 2016,
where a total of 420,000,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed by the placing agent to not less than six
placees at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share.
The gross proceeds from the placing were approximately
HK$42.0 million and the net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other relevant expenses were
approximately HK$41.5 million. Further details of the placing
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 25
April 2016 and 3 May 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares under general mandate -
successful (continued)

The net proceeds from placing were used as follows:
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Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition

On 28 May 2015, Skyline Top Limited and Yardley Wealth
Management Limited ("Yardley”) became shareholders
(the “JV Partners”) of Delightful Hope Limited (the "JV
Company"”) for the purpose of the proposed acquisition. The
JV Company is owned as to 50% by each of the JV Partners.
The directors of the Company considered the JV Company is
the subsidiary of the Company in accordance with HKFRS10
Consolidated Financial Statement.

Upon formation of JV Company, the JV Partners have agreed
to make provision for the management and administration
of the JV Company's affairs, and set out their respective
obligations and rights on the terms and conditions set in the
shareholders’ agreement (the “Shareholders’” Agreement”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

On 29 May 2015, the Company, the JV Company, Yardley
and Rich Best Asia Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into
the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which (i) the Vendor has agreed
to sell and the JV Company has agreed to purchase entire
equity interest in China Smart Asia Limited, a subsidiary of
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”),
which the shares of Chinese Strategic are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8089); and (ii)
the Vendor has agreed to assign the JV Company, and the
JV Company has agreed to accept the assignment of sale
loan at an aggregate consideration of HK$93,000,000,
which shall be settled and discharged by the JV Company
in accordance with the time, mode and manner set out
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement: (i) forthwith upon
the execution of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
JV Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay the
sum of HK$20,000,000 either in cash or by cashier order
to Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor as
deposit (the “Deposit”), and the Deposit shall be applied for
partial payment of the consideration at completion; (i) the JV
Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay a further
sum of HK$26,500,000 either in cash or by cashier order to
Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor for partial
payment of the balance of the consideration at completion;
and (iii) the remaining balance of the consideration in the
sum of HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged by
the Company’s issuance to the Vendor (or any nominee of
the Vendor) (i) the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-
") in the principal amount of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-IV”) in the principal
amount of HK$23,500,000 at completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV, 186,000,000 new
shares shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV as a part of the
consideration took place on 20 August 2015.

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 May 2015, 20
August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 27 July
2015.

Convertible Bond Il expired on 31 March 2017 and
subsequently the Company received a redemption notice
from the Convertible Bond Ill holder for the principal amount
of HK$23,000,000. As at the date of this report, the amount
remained outstanding and the Company has agreed with
the Convertible Bond Il holder to pay an interest of 5% per
annum from 1 April 2017 up to the date of settlement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
Disposal of an investment property

On 3 December 2016, the Group entered into and signed
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of one of the investment properties held
by the Group which is located in the PRC with fair value of
approximately RMB17,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,447,000) as at 31 December 2016. Such property was
classified as asset held for sale in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016. The transaction
was completed on 14 March 2017 with a gain of disposal
between the sale proceed over the cost of acquisition of
approximately HK$4,685,000.

Acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited and placing of

convertible bonds

(a) The acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited (the
“Acquisition”)
On 29 May 2017, Cosmic Bliss Limited as the vendor
(the “Vendor”), Champion Front Limited as the
purchaser (the "“Purchaser”) and the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor
has agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser
has agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the entire
issued share capital of Shunxin Holdings Limited, the
target company, at the maximum consideration of
HK$120,000,000, which shall be settled by the issue of
the consideration CBs (the “Consideration CBs").

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
Vendor has agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the
Purchaser has agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the
outstanding shareholder loan due to the Vendor at the
consideration of HK$1, which shall be settled by cash at
completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited and placing of
convertible bonds (continued)

(a) The acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited (the

“Acquisition”) (continued)

The Consideration CBs are convertible at the conversion
price of HK$0.06 per consideration conversion share.
Assuming the Consideration CBs in the principal amount
of HK$120,000,000 are fully converted at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.06, 2,000,000,000 new shares
will be allotted and issued by the Company under
specific mandate to authorise the Directors to allot and
issue the conversion shares under conversion of the
Consideration CBs.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the target
company and its subsidiaries will become wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company and accordingly, their
financial results will be consolidated into the accounts of
the Company.

(b) Placing of convertible bonds (the “Placing”)

On 29 May 2017, Kingston Securities Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) and the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to appoint the
Placing Agent as the placing agent and the Placing
Agent has agreed to procure subscribers to subscribe
for the placing CBs (the “Placing CBs”) in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$360,000,000, on a best effort
basis, on the terms and conditions set out in the Placing
Agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal

(continued)

Acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited and placing of

convertible bonds (continued)

(b) Placing of convertible bonds (the “Placing”) (continued)
Completion of the Placing shall be conditional upon,
among other things, the completion of the Acquisition.
Assuming the Placing CBs in the principal amount
of HK$360,000,000 are fully converted at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.06, 6,000,000,000 new shares
will be allotted and issued by the Company under the
specific mandate to authorise the Directors to allot and
issue the conversion shares under conversion of the
Placing CBs.

On 2 January 2018, the Company announced that the
Acquisition was terminated as certain conditions precedent of
the Sale and Purchase have not fulfilled or waived by the long
stop date. As a result, the Company also announced that the
Placing was terminated accordingly.

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC

On 17 July 2017, Yardley Wealth Management Limited
("YWML") and Skyline Top Limited (“STL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which the YWML has agreed to
sell and the STL has agreed to purchase the sale shares (the
“Sale Shares"”), representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Delightful Hope Limited (the “Target Company”) for cash
consideration of HK$55,000,000. The Target Company is a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is owned
as to 50% by each of YWML and STL. Following completion,
the Target Company will be wholly owned by the STL and will
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC (continued)

The principal assets of the Target Company consist of
properties comprise 8 commercial units of a total gross
floor area of approximately 1,690 sg.m. in Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, and a residential house in
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC of a total
gross floor area of approximately 315.23 sg.m. According
to the audited consolidated account of the Target Company,
the book value of the properties was approximately
HK$110,236,000 as at 31 December 2016.

The consideration payable by the STL to the YWML for the
Sale Shares is HK$55,000,000 and shall be satisfied by the
STL's payment in cash to the YWML or its nominee in the
following manner: (a) as to the part payment in the sum
of HK$20,000,000, within 14 days after the date of the
Agreement; (b) as to the balance of HK$35,000,000, upon
completion.

On 31 July 2017, a supplemental agreement was entered
into between the parties that the part payment in the sum of
HK$20,000,000 shall be paid on or before 28 August 2017
or such later date as the parties may agree in writing. As at
the date of this report, HK$20,000,000 of the above part
payment has been paid.

On 17 January 2018, the parties had entered into a second
supplemental agreement whereas the timing of payment
of the balance of HK$35,000,000 was extended from 17
January 2018 to 17 January 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charges on Group'’s Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had charges on one
of its investment properties to obtain a mortgage financing
from a bank in Taiwan of approximately HK$9,233,000
(2016: HK$9,181,000). Investments held for trading have
been pledged to brokers’ account to obtain a margin loan
financing of approximately HK$20,022,000 (31 December
2016: HK$16,768,000). Further, the Group had charges
on certain investment properties in the PRC to obtain term
loans from a money lender in the PRC of approximately
HK$47,956,000 (31 December 2016: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitment
amounting to approximately HK$35,000,000 (2016:
HK$2,451,000).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

All of the Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are
mainly denominated either in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi
or New Taiwan dollars. The Directors do not consider that the
Group is exposed to any material foreign currency exchange
risk. Therefore, no hedging devices or other alternative have
been implemented.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details are set out in note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global economic activities are expected
continue to strengthen in 2018. Benefit from economic
growth in PRC, a firm US economy and low interest rate, the
Hong Kong economic outlook in 2018 is rather optimistic.
However, the Group continues to allocate resources carefully
in different business segments to optimise the investment
strategies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

One-stop value chain services

During the year, the Group noticed that the performance of
this segment was weaker than previous year. Nevertheless,
the Group is working on improvement plan. We expect that
this business segment will continue contribute to the Group's
revenue and gross profit.

Property investment

During the year under review, the Group entered into an
agreement to consolidate its interest in a commercial property
in Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. Upon
completion, the Group will wholly own 8 commercial units of
a total gross floor area of approximately 1,690 sg.m.

The Group will continue monitor its property investment
portfolio and grasp the opportunity to be benefited from the
potential capital gain of the assets together but also balance
with enhanced rental yields.

Trading of consumables and agricultural products

The business segment for trading of consumables and
agricultural products was expanded through the acquisition
of re-usable bags trading business in 2016. The business
segment demonstrates huge potential and the Group is
optimistic about its future contribution.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading of grocery food products

Since the Group has decided not to renew the sale
distributorship agreements with respective principals of
Mengniu and lJinlongyu products, the Group will focus its
resources on Nittin brand of ramen and udon products in this
segment.

Provision of money lending services

The Group’s money lending service segment continue to
make stable contribution to the Group’s revenue. The Group
will continue its tight credit control policy and look to further
expand this business segment if and when financial resources
are available.

Provision of financial services

The Group has now 2 licensed subsidiaries providing asset
management and advising on corporate finance services.
With the relatively optimistic outlook in Hong Kong in 2018,
the Group is confident that this segment will continue to
grow and make positive contribution to the Group'’s revenue
and profit.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 47 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 86 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 10 to 31 of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
270 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customer accounted for approximately 53.7%
(2016: 64.4%) of the Group's turnover, and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 85% (2016: 81.2%) of
the Group’s cost of sales, for the year ended 31 December
2017. To the best knowledge of the Directors, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2017, any Director or
his associates or any shareholder (who owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the
above-mentioned customers or suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 31 December
2017 in the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 90 to 91 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in specie dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and

vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the

IIAGMII)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:00 p.m.

on 4 May 2018 (Friday)

Book close date 7 May 2018 (Monday)

To 10 May 2018 (Thursday)
(both dates inclusive)

Record date 10 May 2018 (Thursday)

AGM date 10 May 2018 (Thursday)
In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Union Registrars
Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong before the
above latest time to lodge transfers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 6
May 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from 6 May 2011 to 5 May 2021, unless terminated
otherwise as in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant options to eligible participants
the Directors may at its absolute discretion select as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Eligible
participants include any employee (whether full-time or part-
time, including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors), shareholder,
customer, supplier of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an
equity interest; any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support, any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company. Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
as set out in the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option. The subscription price for shares
under the Share Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
May 2011, the Company was also authorised to issue up to
242,459,969 shares (i.e. 121,229,984 consolidated shares
upon the share consolidation effective on 11 October 2013)
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group,
being 10% of the shares in issue on 6 May 2011 (the
“General Scheme Limit”). The Company may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant options
beyond the General Scheme Limit to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no option was
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 54,425,000shares
options were lapsed.

As at 31 December 2017, the number of Shares in respect
of which options had been granted and accepted and
remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
was 403,625,000 (2016: 488,800,000), representing
approximately 6.61% (2016: 8.15%) of the Company’s
issued share capital as at that date.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. So David Tat Man
Mr. Lai Yick Fung
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung
(resigned on 30 September 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min

Ms. Yuen Wai Man
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(continued)

Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term of two
years and may be terminated by not less than three months
prior notice in writing served by either party to the other
in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective
appointment letter.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of two years
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party to
the other in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective service agreement. Each of the executive Directors
may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
having regard to the operation results of the Company and
performance of the Directors.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr.
Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man, an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2017.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, were
as follows:

Long position in the underlying shares in respect of the share
options of the Company (which were regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives) granted under the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 6 May 2011:
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& FF B D RSN E B RRIEN R
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Outstanding Outstanding

Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat

Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December

Name grant (HK$)  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year the year 2017

R-B-tF R-B-tF

SRER -A-H TZB=t-H

2] RYBH ke &S WR{TE ERRH ERfTR ERER WRATE

(#x)

So David Tat Man 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 12,825,000 = - (12,825,000) -
HEX “E2-aftAT=A “2-R"ELATEAZE
ZE-tELATER

14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 21,375,000 - - - 21,375,000

T+ F+ATmAZ
—2-\#tAt+=A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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EERBETHRAEBRAQAHE[HE
BEE R HEARORES 2R

KA ()

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant (HKS)  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year the year 2017
RZB-t% RZB-t%
BRER -A-H TZA=1-H
2] RHBH TEE EH WRTR ERRH ERTE ELPS: HRTR
(1)
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - 15,600,000 - - - 15,600,000
ZF-~"ENATZH 12 September 2019
“Z-R"ENAT=RE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 15,600,000 - - - 15,600,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 20,800,000 - - - 20,800,000
12 September 2019
“E-)\ENATZHE
“E-NEAATZH
Lai Yick Fung 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) -
Brg “Z-nECATER ZZ-R"EtATHAZE
“E-tEATEH
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
“T-tE+ATMAZ
ZE-\EtAt+=H
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - 12,000,000 - (6,000,000) - 6,000,000
“F-~ENATZH 12 September 2019
“Z-R"ENAT=RE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
12 September 2019
“E-)\ENATZHE
“E-NEAATZH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

EERBETHRAEBRAQAHE[HE
BEE RS HERORES 2R
KA ()

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant (HKS)  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year the year 2017
RZB-tE R=B-t&
gREH -A-H TZA=t-H
2] RHEH ke &8 WRTR ERRH ERfTE ERXH WATR
(%)
Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 1,200,000 - - (1,200,000) -
REN “F-R%tAt+=R T EtATRAZ
S =
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
“T-tEtATMAZE
ZE-\EtAt+=A
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
ZE-AENATZA 12 September 2019
ZT-RENATZHE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
12 September 2019
“T-tENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
12 September 2019
ZT-\ENAT=HE
ZZ-NEAATZH
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 1,200,000 - - (1,200,000) -
AEE “F-R%tAt+=R TR EtATRAZ
S =
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
“T-tEtATMAZE
ZE-\EtAt=A
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
ZE-AENATZA 12 September 2019
“Z-R"ENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“T-tENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
ZE-\ENAT=HE
ZZ-NEAATZH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS OR BEENESTHEAERAKD B HIEMHE
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING BEEZ2RGD HBEROBEESZES
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ;KA ()
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of per Share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant (HKS)  Exercisable period 2017 the year the year the year 2017
RZB-t% RZB-t%
gRES -A-H TZA=t-H
2] RHEH TEE EH WRTR ERRH ERTE EREN HRTR
(%)
Zhang Min 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2016 - 13 July 2017 1,200,000 - - (1,200,000 -
KR “F-R5tAt+=R T EtATRAZ
“Z-+ELATEH
14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
“T-tELATMAZE
ZE-\EtAt+=H
12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
ZF-~"ENATZH 12 September 2019
ZT-RENATZHE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
ZT-\ENAT=ZHE
ZZ-NEAATZH
Yuen Wai Man 12 September 2016 0.11 13 September 2016 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
RER ZF-~"ENATZH 12 September 2019
“Z-R"ENAT=ZRE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
“E-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
“E-)\ENATZHE
“E-NEAATZH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under the section “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above,
at no time during the Reporting Period, there subsisted
arrangements to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
is a party, being arrangements whose subjects are, or one
of whose objects is, to enable any of the directors or the
chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors of the Company, their spouse or
their children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware of and having made due
enquiries, as at 31 December 2017, the following parties,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions directly or indirectly
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

FERR (&)
REQXARGEEBRO ZHFAE:

the Company:

Number of Number of
shares of shares of Number of Approximate
the Company the Company underlying percentage of
(Personal (Corporate shares of the issued
Name of shareholders Interests) Interests) the Company Total share capital
ARARHEBE  FRARGEHE LN EERITRAN
RREM (fEA#ER) (RAHER) HERGHA wy BOEDL
(Note 1)
(Héz1)
Yardley Finance Limited (Note 2) - 471,600,000 - 471,600,000 71.73%
w AN EERAR (Hit2)
Chan Kin Sun (Note 2) - 471,600,000 - 471,600,000 7.73%
B (Hit2)
Sun Hui 395,840,000 - - 395,840,000 6.48%
g
Notes: BsE -
1. As at 31 December 2017, the Company's issued ordinary 1. EZ—+F+ZA=+—H FKRFZHE

share capital was HK$122,071,049.76 divided into
6,103,552,488 Shares of HK$0.02 each.

2. These shares were held by Yardley Finance Limited (”Yardley

Finance”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability. Since Yardley Finance is wholly-owned by
Chan Kin Sun, Chan Kin Sun was deemed to be interested in

these shares.

w—
1T E BIRAR AN A122,071,049.7658 7T D A&
6,

=
103,552,488 % & fx E {E0.028 7T 2 B {7

ZH B R N B AR AR (& A B

Bl —ERBBEMRILIZBRAR)F
BomlafHBmREN2ERE  RR
TR RN P A A -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company: (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of any
other person, other than a director or the chief executive
of the Company, who held interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2017 as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products
On 4 Feb 2016, Chan Kee and Right Ocean entered
into the Sole Distributorship Agreement whereas Chan
Kee has agreed to appoint Right Ocean as its sole and
exclusive distributor for sale and distribution of the
Products within the territories of Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan (the “Sale Transactions”).

Right Ocean is indirectly held as to 51% by the
Company and 49% by Ms. Yoo, Chan Kee (90%
held by Mr. Chan, the spouse of Ms. Yoo) is therefore
connected person at subsidiary level of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Sale Transactions contemplated under the Sole
Distributorship Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company
subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BREXS (F)
1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. EERENS - HERDHEERER
distribution of grocery food products (continued) (48)
The Master Agreement TEEE
The Sole Distributorship Agreement B— i
Date: 4 February 2016
HE: —E-RF-AMA
Parties: (i) Chan Kee
HEPE (i) BRAC
(ii) Right Ocean
iy BB
Duration: Commencing from the date of the Sole Distributorship Agreement up to 31
December 2018 (both days inclusive)
SRERE BE—oSEEREASRS BEE-FT - \FT+A=T—H (BREEEM

Subject matter:

TEFH:

Annual Caps:

FELER:

Transaction amount:
RGO

Terms:
CE

B)

The Sale Transactions
HER S

The Sale Transactions will be subject to the following annual caps:
HERXZHAEME TIFELR:

The aggregate amounts payable by Right Ocean to Chan Kee for the Sale
Transactions for the period from the date of the Sole Distributorship Agreement
up to 31 December 2016 and for each of the two financial years ending 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 shall not exceed HK$25 million,
HK$35 million and HK$40 million, respectively
BE—DHEGREPREE S —R"F+ _A=+T—REkEBE-_ZT—+F
FTZ A=+ ARZE-NF+ A=+ BIMEVRFESFRHRM -
BUSIRIZIHERX ZEN FTRENE SR DR T SBESEEET 3588
BT RA0B BATT

For the year ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$4.8 million
RBE-Z—tF+-_A=+—HIFE : HI8EEET

On normal commercial terms and at rates no less favourable from independent
third parties in respect of the transactions similar to the Sale Transactions.
Detailed payment terms are specified in individual contracts governing
particular transactions.
BR—RAEGRRBETNERBLE =T REEXFRUR I EL - FHAX
THEFRNR B R E XS ERI S KT ETER -

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement HEHERARRIBHR T —XRF_A

dated 4 February 2016.

UUNSEEOPN G
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

BEXS (&)

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. HEREXS-ERSHNERE SR

distribution of grocery food products (continued) (&)

Definitions B

“Chan Kee” Chan Kee Holdings Limited

& 5 CERE JE RS YNC]

“Products” various products being packaged ramen and udon noodles
sold by Chan Kee and purchased by and to be distributed by
Right Ocean

[ EEMm] ¥ HBRCHERHEEBERDENSESRNERSLME
an

“Right Ocean” Right Ocean Asia Limited

[ B ¥ BUBEMARRAR]

“Sole Distributorship Agreement”

the agreement entered into between Chan Kee and
Right Ocean dated 4 February 2016 in respect of the Sale
Transactions

[ — D H W &
ES

The above transactions have complied with the
requirements for continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole; and (iv)
have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of the
Company dated 4 February 2016.

RAEREEMEEX SR ARAS T —RF - ANBF LA

FZ S5 E/FEGEM EMRAFE20E A N FE
BEISHEK-

EERAR/ ARG BRAKELER XSG BEF
#EITe

RIELEHHRA BUFRTEREEH LG
BRERXHLOCHERZSFHEBEIZTHON
AEBERFAERGBREANGIL: (MKER
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B E = TR ZIRRET L (iVRIBREZE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products (continued)
Definitions (continued)

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’'s
auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by
the Group in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

BEXS (&)

1.
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(&)

B (A

ARBZBEVMEKFH (FE) GtEIF
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business or interest that
compete with the business of the Group or has or may have
any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws although there is no restriction against
such under the laws in Bermuda.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance practices are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors; namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman), Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING") was appointed
as auditor of the Company on 18 December 2008 and
subsequently re-appointed as auditor of the Company at
the last three annual general meetings of the Company
held on 2 June 2015, 4 May 2016 and 9 May 2017. The
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2014, 2015 and 2016 of the Company were
audited by SHINEWING. A resolution for the re-appointment
of SHINEWING as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREABE

INTRODUCTION

The board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review except for the following deviation:

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides, among
others, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Company did not appoint a chairman. The Board will
keep reviewing the structure of the Board from time to time.
If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience
is identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the
post of chairman as appropriate.

Under code provision A.2.7 of the Code, the chairman of
board should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors present. As the
Company does not have the Chairman, no such meeting was
held in this regard for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard as set out
in such code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six Directors, three are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. So David Tat Man
Mr. Lai Yick Fung
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung
(resigned on 30 September 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min

Ms. Yuen Wai Man

The Directors’ biographical information are set out on pages
5 to 9 in this report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAHE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to having a diversity of the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy. The
Company considers that having a Board with diverse culture
would assure Directors that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment
where bias, discrimination and harassment on any matter
are not tolerated. The Board has adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. Board appointments are based on merit
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification
to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. One of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed
term of two years and may be terminated by not less than
three months prior notice in writing served by either party to
the other or in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective appointment letter.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and have received from
each of them the annual confirmation of independence
required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring of
the Group's overall strategies and policies; approving of
business plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and
overseeing the management. The Board focuses on overall
strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of
the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions which
may be taken against its Directors and officers in the
execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
The Board meets regularly at least four times a year to review
the financial and operating performance of the Group.

Details of the attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and general meetings of the Company
are as follows:

CREARE

E=g (#)
EXeRBATEERASAEEEBETARE
ZEEKE BEREETEEEH TESSM]
FE-BEEEEBLFEFTTERIHNTES
BEBFEIRETERE-

ARBEREERTRABBEEERR &
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EEBREERSR
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ERE= 3/ (N

Attendance of

HE
Board General
Meetings Meetings
Exged RRRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. So David Tat Man FRIEXSEE 717 171
Mr. Lai Yick Fung FEm A 717 11
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith RENEE 77 11
Mr. Au Yeung Po Leung (resigned on BSEREE (RZZE—LF
30 September 2017) NA=+B&E) 6/6 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SREB St 717 11
Mr. Zhang Min wRELHE 6/7 11
Ms. Yuen Wai Man rREGRL 717 171
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAHE

BOARD PRACTICES

Apart from the four regular Board meetings of the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Board met on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter was
required. The Directors received detailed agenda and
documents prior to the meetings of the Board to ensure that
the Directors were able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings. All Directors may
access the advice, regulatory updates on governance and
regulatory matters from professional parties if necessary.

The Company Secretary and the company secretarial team are
responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings and ensure compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings and general meetings
of the Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes,
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to
the Directors at the Board meetings. Trainings conducted by
professional service provider regarding Listing Rules’ updates
on corporate governance have been provided to the Directors
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance is upheld
and that the Directors possess up-to-date information to
discharge their duties.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS (continued)

All of the Directors have either attended seminars organised
by external professionals relevant to the business or directors’
duties or read professional materials publicated by regulators
or professional bodies for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions and roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company should be held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company did not
appoint a chairman or a chief executive.

The Board will keep reviewing the current structure from
time to time. If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and
experience is identified, the Company will make appointment
to fill the posts as appropriate.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following the
re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman lIslands into
Bermuda in October 2007, it was re-established pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board on 15 February 2008
and specific terms of reference were adopted. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, all are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Ms. Yuen Wai Man and Mr.
Zhang Min. Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREABE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The role and function written in the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are no less exacting terms
than the Code. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee also reviews and recommends
the Board on its proposals relating to the remuneration
of the executive Directors with reference to the Board's
corporate goal and objectives. No Directors or any of his/
her associates can be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration are
considered by the Remuneration Committee to determine
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment; or relating to
dismissal or removal for misconduct to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair, not
excessive, reasonable and appropriate.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee of the Company held one meeting to review
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management and to advise on remuneration packages of
newly appointed Directors. Details of the attendance of the
meeting are as follows:
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Attendance
Name of members RE & H IR
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (Chairman) SREESE (F/E) 1/1
Ms. Yuen Wai Man rREHLZL 1/1
Mr. Zhang Min wEREA 11
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following
the re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
into Bermuda in October 2007, the Nomination Committee
was re-established pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Board on 15 February 2008 and specific terms of reference
were adopted. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, of which all of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr. Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man. Mr.
Zhang Min is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
and supervising the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and senior management.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, including the independence status in the case of
an independent non-executive Director, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board has also adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based
on a range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge
and length of service, having due regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a balance of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the composition,
size and structure of the Board, to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors. Details of the attendance of the meetings are as
follows:
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Attendance
Name of members REEE HE IR
Mr. Zhang Min (Chairman) RERLE(FE) 11
Ms. Yuen Wai Man REH L 1/1
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SREEF 1”1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. As at the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man, Mr. Yick Ting
Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min. Ms. Yuen Wai Man is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee had during the year performed
such functions and reviewed the unaudited quarterly and
interim results and audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
of the Company held four meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and corporate governance
and internal control review and make recommendation to the
Board on reappointment of the external auditor. They had,
in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company,
reviewed the annual results of the Group and recommended
to the Board for their consideration and approval. The Audit
Committee of the Company was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance (continued)
Details of the attendance of the Company’s Audit Committee
meetings are as follows:

BERZEg (&)
FRRBRLEE (M)
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Attendance
Name of members REAR HERE
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman) REGRLE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey S REE ST 4/4
Mr. Zhang Min RELEHE 3/4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with its written terms of reference as set
out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

Q) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the
corporate governance code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$940,000 (2016:
approximately HK$725,000) was charged to the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2017. Remuneration to the auditors of the Company,
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, amounted to HK$760,000
and HK$180,000 respectively for the provision of annual
audit services and other non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2017. A resolution for re-appointment
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The Board concurs with the views of the Audit Committee in
determining the re-appointment of auditors of the Company.
There has been no change in auditors in any of the preceding
five financial years.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group's account for each financial period to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. In preparing the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The auditors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibilities in the independent auditor's report on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Lai Yick Fung
was the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Lai has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

The Directors, on the requisition of shareholder(s) of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of two months from the said date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong or the registered office
in Bermuda, or by e-mail to info@chinaeco-farming.com for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii)
not less than 100 shareholders, the Company shall, at the
expense of the requisitionists: (a) to give to shareholders of
the Company entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; (b)
to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to its shareholders and investors
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Moreover, the
Board maintains close communications with the shareholders
and investors of the Company through a number of formal
communication channels which include (i) the publication of
the Company’'s latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, notices, announcements and circulars; (ii) the general
meetings providing an opportunity for the shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; and (iii) the Company’s website provides an effective
communication platform between the Company and its
investors.

During the year of 2017, there has been no significant
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk
management and internal control systems are designed for
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalize
the risk management of the Group, to build up a standard
and effective risk management system, improve the
ability of risk prevention, so as to ensure the Group is
operating in a safety and steady environment, the operation
management level could be increased and the Group's
operational strategy and target could be achieved. The
current practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to
follow the latest practices in corporate governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Board resolved to delegate its responsibilities (with
relevant authorities) of risk management and internal
control to the Audit Committee. Terms of reference of
the Audit Committee included the followings: (i) review
the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; (ii) discuss the risk management
system and internal control systems with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control systems; and (iii) to consider major
investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings.

The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
business and operations, relevant internal control policies
and procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over
capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring the reliability of financial information used for
business and publication. These policies and procedures are
monitored and reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary. All employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in place, with understanding
enhanced by staff communications and training.

The Board has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems,
at least quarterly, through the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management
and internal control systems, executive Directors and
management would meet on monthly basis to review the
financial and operating performance of each department.
The management of the key operating subsidiaries is
also required to keep executive Directors updated of
material development of the department’s business and
implementation of the strategies and policies set by the
Board on regular basis.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key
processes of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the
likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the
risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage

Significant Risks (continued)

Risk Monitoring and Reporting (continued)

o Report the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

The Group has engaged an independent professional
adviser (the “Internal Control Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2017. The scope of review included revenue
and receipt cycle, procurement and expenditure cycle,
cash management and treasury cycle, and financial
reporting cycle for one of our operating subsidiary. Internal
Control Adviser has reported major findings and areas for
improvement to the Audit Committee. All recommendations
from Internal Control Adviser would be followed up closely
to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Group therefore considered that the
Group's risk management and internal control processes
are adequate to meet the needs of the Company in its
current business environment and that nothing has come to
its attention to cause the Board to believe the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are inadequate.

Inside Information Disclosure Policy

An inside information disclosure policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREBRSE

ABOUT THIS ESG REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) of China Eco-Farming Limited (the
"Company”/“we"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the “"Group”) to disclose the sustainability strategy and
performance regarding to our business operation.

The content of this ESG Report has been prepared in
compliance with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the "Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” as set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). For information on
our corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 50 to 67 of the annual report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

SCOPE OF THIS ESG REPORT

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was
principally engaged in business of trading of grocery food
products, trading of consumables and agricultural products,
property investment, provision of money lending services,
one-stop value chain services and provision of financial
services.

As our operations are principally taken place in Hong Kong,
this ESG report covers the Group’s business operations in
Hong Kong from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the
“Reporting Period”) unless otherwise specified.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We maintain ongoing dialogues with our stakeholders
including customers, suppliers, employees, shareholders,
community, governance and regulatory bodies. We convene
annual shareholders’ meeting which provides an effective
platform for the board of directors of the Company to
exchange views with shareholders. In addition to the
shareholders’ meeting, for maintaining close relationship with
customers, suppliers, employees and other stakeholders, we
communicate from time to time with various stakeholders
and listen to their views and needs through visits, meetings,
phone conference, e-mails, etc.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

We believe that understanding the views and opinions of
our stakeholders is of paramount importance to the long-
term success and growth of an environmental protection
enterprise. We sincerely welcome your comments and
suggestions with regard to this ESG Report and our
sustainability performance. Please send your feedback to
us via post at Unit 2303-06, 23/F, Great Eagle Centre, 23
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

SUSTAINABILITY BELIEF

We aspire to infuse sustainability into our day to day work
across the Group, so that it shapes our thinking and the way
we do business. We exercise our due care to and always aim
for the best interest of our shareholders and stakeholders. To
take the corporate social responsibility, we promise to strictly
comply with the local laws and regulations and consider all
important impacts caused to the environment and society
when developing future business plan or performing business
daily operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Notwithstanding the fact that the Group is a service oriented
enterprise with no significant impact on environment, we
strive to protect the environment by integrating a range of
environmental initiatives across our business and commits to
minimise the environmental impact of the Group’s activities
by reinforcing environmental awareness and implementing
measures for use of resources in responsible manner, energy
saving and waste management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREBHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Purchased electricity and fuels for motor vehicles have
been identified as the main sources of emission for our
business operation. To reduce the amount of Green House
Gas (“GHG") emission, the Group has implemented several

RE (&)

FRE AEBEEERS
—Ei[REREIE] -

practical measures in saving energy as further described in

"

the next section “Energy Management”.

ERENRTERHDER SRR EEN
EBHBUORR 7,%/)%}\/5127# B (IRERE

REfRETE M FFR T

2])

kg

Gas emissions BB DR
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx") ASY (INOx ) 5.7
Sulphur oxides (“SOx") WL ([Sox ) 0.2
Particulate Matter (“PM") torrmE ([PM]) 0.4
Tonnes of COze

GHG emission' BERBEER W —F{tmEE

Scope 1 — Direct emission from vehicle fuel
Scope 2 — Indirect emission from

purchased electricity
Scope 3 — Other indirect emission from air travel?

Total GHG emissions

' Emission factors were made reference to Appendix 20 of the !

GEM Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out AP 8% — + R EF B A X
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated B3 o
otherwise.
2 Emission factors for air travel were made reference to the 2 MUZEIRTT
International Civil Aviation Organization Carbon Emissions WEtE
Calculator.
3 The scope of total electricity consumption excluded those usage 3 RS
in shared office rented by few subsidiaries, which the electricity #ﬂ#/“ﬁﬁ £ HHEES

consumption data were included in the management fee paid

and unable to be obtained for the occupied areas.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Energy management

During the Reporting Period, the total electricity
consumption® was 39,186 kWh, with an energy intensity
of 50.30 kWh per square meter. To save energy and reduce
carbon footprint, the following measures have been adopted:

o Remind the last employee leaving the office to switch
off all unnecessary electronics appliances

o Install energy-efficient light tubes and use natural
sunlight in high extent

o Maintain the office temperature at 25.5 degree Celsius

o Consider with higher grading of energy efficiency
when acquiring office equipment

Water consumption

Since our business operation is mainly office based, water
consumption is not immense. We promote water saving
behaviors and culture among employees by posting water-
saving reminders in office. As we operated in leased office
premises in Hong Kong of which both the water supply and
discharge were solely controlled by the respective building
management. Hence, the water usage data was unable to be
obtained by us as an individual occupant.

Waste management

During the Reporting Period, we did not generate any
hazardous waste. The key non-hazardous wastes generated
by us included office waste papers. The total non-hazardous
paper waste for the Reporting Period was approximately
1.45 tonnes with an intensity of 1.86 kg per square meter.
In order to address indirect emissions relating to paper waste
deposited at landfills, we encourage employees to apply
computer technology such as emails and storage devices to
reduce paper consumption, print on both sides of a sheet
of paper, avoid unnecessary printing or copying on paper,
and adjust documents and use space efficiency formats to
optimise use of paper.
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RE HEREBHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Waste management (continued)

With the implementation of the measures above, we
believe the objectives of saving energy, reducing waste
and preserving the environment can be achieved. We will
continue to look for opportunities to reduce further emissions
and wastes on an ongoing basis in order to minimize
our impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations related to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste. The Group did not have any significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.

EMPLOYMENT

Equal opportunities

We care about labour rights persistently and understands
that employees are the most important assets of the Group.
We provide equal opportunities for employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
compensation and benefits. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
gender, ethnic, background, religion, colour, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or
any other discrimination prohibited by applicable law. We
have maintained whistleblowing policy, which provided our
staff a private channel to bring any concerns about possible
discrimination or harassment to immediate attention of
Human Resources Department. In the process of making a
complaint, the personal data of the employee are strictly
protected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYMENT (continued)

Compensation and benefits package

The Group understand a comprehensive and competitive
remuneration package can effectively enhance the staff
morale and satisfaction. Salary is reviewed and adjusted
yearly based on performance appraisals and market trend.
Employees with outstanding performance will receive
promotion or plus salary increase as rewards. In addition,
employees within the Group can enjoy the statutory holidays,
annual leaves, compassionate leaves and maternity leaves
regarding to the laws and regulations of the place of business
operation.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

Employee health and safety

The Group is committed to safeguarding the health and
safety of the employees. We make our best endeavors to
provide a healthy and safe work environment in order to
protect our employees from occupational hazards. Apart from
providing medical insurance and business travel insurance,
the following measures have been implemented in protecting
our staff from work-related accidents or injuries:

o Equip first aid kit at each work station and office
o Prohibit smoking in all areas of the offices
° Perform regular check on the fire equipment

Furthermore, we promote a work-life balance for employees
by providing five-day working week as we believe this
can maintain not only the good work performance of
employees, but most importantly, the health and well-being
of employees.
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RE HEREBRSE

EMPLOYMENT (continued)

Training and development

We place great importance on the development of talents.
We actively promote on-the-job training at all levels
of employees, who are recommended to participate in
various training courses, forums and seminars, with an
aim to enhancing their knowledge and working skills, and
in turn they can create competitive advantages together
with the Group. We also provide educational subsidies to
our employees to participate in continued education and
practice life-long learning, so as to achieve continuous self-
development.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards. We also did
not receive any reports on work-related injuries or causalities
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly complies with the employment laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and upholds the principle of
fairness, openness and voluntariness for staff employment.
The Group prohibits the employment of child labour
and forced labour, and once any breach of regulations
is discovered, the labour relationship will be terminated
immediately. All recruitment procedure and promotion are
supervised by Human Resource Department to ensure no
child labour or forced labour.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations on preventing child or forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supply chain management includes management of
suppliers, materials, services sourcing and purchases. The
Group’s main suppliers include suppliers of computer
recessives, food products and general office supplies. We
generally select suppliers based on their scale of business
and reputation. Our suppliers should comply with all relevant
local and national laws and regulations. When a supplier
is found to be inconsistent with our policy or contractual
requirements, we will terminate future cooperation until the
situation has been improved.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware that
any key suppliers had any significant actual and potential
negative impact on business ethics, environmental protection,
human rights and labour practices, nor any of them had any
non-compliance incident in respect of human rights issues.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product safety and quality for grocery food products

As one of the principal business of our Group is trading of
grocery food products, our Group is subject to the regulations
of the Food Safety Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Food Safety Ordinance”) and Public
Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Public Health Ordinance”).
We have always endeavoured to provide the best products
to our customers. We have registered as a food importers/
food distributors under the Food Safety Ordinance. In order
to demonstrate that we are committed to selecting cooking
oil suppliers with adequate and appropriate records, we have
registered as registered supplier to the Hong Kong Cooking
Oil Registration Scheme under Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency ("HKQAA") on voluntary basis.

In addition, we also pay very close attention to the food alerts
released by Centre for Food Safety as well as to relevant
market information, which will be immediately followed
with response action. As soon as we are confirmed that a
certain batch of products are involved with quality and safety
issues and must be recalled, we will fully cooperate with the
regulatory authorities and, as soon as practicable, withdraw
the relevant products according to their instructions,
announce the recall arrangement and handle the recalled
items properly.
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RE HEREBHRS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Personal data privacy

The Group respects the privacy of individuals. Since our
businesses cover various financing services on money lending
and asset management, we highly emphasize on the privacy
of our client's personal data. Pursuant to Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the laws of Hong Kong),
we are committed to protecting privacy and confidentiality
of personal data of our employees, business partners and
other identifiable individuals. Our employees are instructed
to handle confidential information with due care. We collect
and use information in a responsible and non-discriminatory
manner by restricting the use of the information for the
purposes consistent with those identified in the contracts.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that constitutes a significant impact on the Group
in relation to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

As the cornerstone of our corporate culture, we attach great
emphasis to maintaining the highest standard of integrity and
honesty. We adopt our zero-tolerance policy for misconduct.
We have no hesitation to adopt disciplinary actions upon any
proven misconduct case.

In addition, whistleblowing policy has been implemented
so as to enable our staff to raise concerns and to report
information which the staff have reasonable grounds to
believe a malpractice or impropriety. During the Reporting
Period, no legal cases concerned with corrupt practices were
brought against the Group or Directors or employees.
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CONTRIBUTION TO COMMUNITY

We believe that a successful business do not only consider
the benefit brought from its operation. Instead, the
sustainable development of the society is the more important
perspective which gain attention nowadays. The Group was
presented with the Caring Company Award 2017/2018. The
Caring Company Scheme is organised by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service. The goal of the Caring Company
Scheme is “to build a caring community spirit through
cultivating corporate citizenship and strategic partnership
between the business and social service sectors.”

During the Reporting Period, the Group also supported
a wide range of community sponsorship and donation
programmes. The Group made contributions to various
charitable organization, such as Yan Oi Tong and Ten
Percent Donation Scheme Foundation with a total amount
of approximately HK$458,000. We have also been invited
to attend Annual Charity Ball 2017 and “Yan Oi Tong Cup”
Horse Racing Event of Yan Oi Tong.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RE

y S s SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited fri Ak A (75 788)
{57]@'7#0 43/F., Lee Garden One 675 R B9 4 R 2 )
33 Hysan Avenue e
Epgeritibiide

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong ’
s [FE 335 — 1434

Shine‘ZOan

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ECO-FARMING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued into
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 269, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$77,712,000 and net operating
cash outflows of approximately HK$47,505,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2017. These conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the “Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern”
section, we have determined the matters described below to
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on loan and interest receivables
Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on page 119 to 123.

The key audit matter
BREZSE

EREZEE (E)
EWE R R A E R EFE
BRHGEA Y HRAN 22N E 1198 1238H)

ARz

= ﬁ-l—ESZ% °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEHEBERTNEERL X

The carrying value of the loan and interest receivables was
approximately HK$49,734,000 as at 31 December 2017.

Impairment allowances represent the management’s best
estimate of the losses incurred on the loan and interest
receivables based on the existence of any impairment
indicators, including the default of payments from the
borrowers, the timing of the overdue receivables, the
existence of deterioration of credit worthiness of the
borrowers, as well as based on any security received from
the borrowers.

Due to the significance of the amounts and the
involvement of significant judgment in relation to the
estimation of impairment allowances, we therefore
consider the impairment of loans and interest receivables as
a key audit matter.

—tF+ A=+ —HZEREREFBEMEER
TE Z’J 7%49,734,000,%71 °

ﬂﬁﬁﬁ#“ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁm%(a%F#AH

FOEY) BEREWERIEBR  REERAEEERL) E
FQF RAMER Z AR IR G SRR E R A B E AR
B8 2 s EAET -

HREREALS LA EREREEANERALE B5F
Rt R RERERMNE 2R ERBREZEER
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Our audit procedures were designed to
review the management’s assessment of
the indications of impairment, including
understanding and challenging the impairment
allowances basis as well as identifying any long
outstanding and past due loan and interest
receivables for which no impairment has been
made.

We have discussed the indicators of possible
impairment with the management and, where
such indicators were identified, assessed
the management’s impairment testing. We
have challenged the assumptions and critical
judgment used by the management by
assessing the reliability of the management’s
past estimates and taking into account the
ageing at year end and cash received after year
end, as well as the recent creditworthiness
of each debtor and the appropriateness of
valuation of the collaterals from the borrowers
as assessed by the management.

In relation to the valuation of the collaterals
from the borrowers, we have assessed the
valuation methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions
adopted by the management. We had also
checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on page 115.

The key audit matter
ARERER

& 3 A% BLE R

FEREELEE (FE)

RENMFRZ2ME

BE2RGEA MmN EI6 R FENSENEA
KR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEEHEBRPNEER X

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group's
investment properties to be HK$169,173,000 as at 31
December 2017 with a net revaluation gain for the year
ended 31 December 2017 recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$2,124,000. Independent external
valuations were obtained in respect of the entire portfolio
in order to support management’s estimates.

We consider valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment including capitalisation rates and
fair market rents.

EREEHT S£EER-_ZT—tF+_A=1+—HKE
MENFEE169,173,0008 T AEFTRNRE B ME
thErERERESHE_T—tF+_A=+—HLF
&z BN FEEX2,124,0008 - SR BC EERAHE
B4 & BB N E AT I E o

BERARAVEL HEABRBRTER LT BNAY
GAMBEEBEARGETARETREEREEX
£l BRB R (BEEALL X RAFHERS) -

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s valuation of investment
properties included assessing the valuation
methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge
of the property industry. We had also checked,
on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used.

ESFAREEBYREMENAENEZREF
BREREFHETROME  SHEAAE
BEIERERBRNEE N - & F IREURE
FRE TR AR 2 M M AERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERHEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHz—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —FT—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTET FET
(Restated)
(ge&E5)

Turnover B 5 63,028 72,470
Revenue g 5 55,868 67,662
Cost of sales & A (47,716) (61,800)
Gross profit EF 8,152 5,862
Provision of money lending R RERE KA

services income 5 5,750 4,808
Provision of financial services income R 4& @ ARFE YA 5 1,410 -

15,312 10,670

Other (loss) gain, net Efth (E51B) WZHF 58 6 (1,830) 13,324
Increase in fair value of KEMERNTFE

investment properties, net ENFE 16 2,124 1,809
(Decrease) increase in fair value of BAFEFABEDN

financial assets at fair value through cREEANTE

profit or loss O A) 1 (20,621) 25,467
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill 72 ¥ 32 (B &5 18 17 (3,968) (14,446)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAEZ (1,493) (1,103)
Administrative expenses TR X (58,635) (61,592)
Share of results of associates DI E N A EE 19 2,637 (1,030)
Finance costs & AN 8 (10,873) (7,456)
Loss before taxation BrEi R BB (77,347) (34,357)
Taxation 1A 9 (365) 308
Loss for the year REFEEE 10 (77,712) (34,049)
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hth & mE WA (FI5Z) :
Items that may be reclassified HEZAJEF S EE R

subsequently to profit or loss: HH
Fair value change of AfEEREZ ATE

available-for-sale investments & 402 4,662
Exchange differences arising on REBINETBEE 2

translating foreign operations MEHZR 10,889 (8,428)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Z%4F & H {th 2 M WA

for the year (Ax) 11,291 (3,766)
Total comprehensive expense AEEEHEMZ AL

for the year (66,421) (37,815)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERHEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
ZE-—tF —ZT—RF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FERT FHET
(Restated)
(ge&:7)
Loss for the year attributable to: JE(R A 2 B4 -
Owners of the Company RARHAA (71,648) (29,955)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R AR R = (6,064) (4,094)
(77,712) (34,049)
Total comprehensive expense BIEARFEERE
for the year attributable to: P 4%
Owners of the Company KARHEAA (56,844) (34,989)
Non-controlling interests AR I R = (9,577) (2,826)
(66,421) (37,815)
LOSS PER SHARE FRER 14
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (BI) (1.18) (0.60)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE MBI &R

At 31 December 2017
RZIEBE—+F+_-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+HF T RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FERT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment S ] 15 7,984 6,791
Investment properties WEME 16 169,173 155,457
Goodwill BES 17 4,272 7,465
Intangible asset B EE 18 = 4,679
Interests in associates REE N E 2 R 19 75,813 73,176
Loan and interest receivables W E TR A 22 1,675 3,814
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 20 59,180 58,778
Deposit paid for acquisition of ERERE &
plant and equipment Bl P &n - 778
318,097 310,938
Current assets REBEE
Inventories, finished goods FE (2HiKm) 1,002 1,215
Trade and other receivables & LA AR s Rz L Ath R K
RIE 21 53,428 36,576
Loan and interest receivables JEUE F R B 22 48,059 45,444
Loan to an associate M2 R RIERER 23 24,856 2,773
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 24 40,328 79,269
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR S 25 5111 22,298
172,784 187,575
Asset classified as held for sale DERFEHECEE 26 - 19,393
172,784 206,968
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JRE A~F B SRR % L A FE AT
IE 27 35,801 20,545
Amounts due to non-controlling JE < FE 12 IR AR BR M 2
interests NIB 28 2,995 2,995
Borrowings N 29 67,189 19,181
Loan payable JERTE R 30 - 20,000
Margin loans payable JERHRE B K 31 20,022 16,768
Convertible bonds AR ES 32 21,687 31,551
Contingent consideration payable FERTSHARE 43 512 1,047
Income tax payable FERT PSR 909 200
149,115 112,287
Net current assets mEEEFR 23,669 94,681
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI &

At 31 December 2017
R-E—+F+-_HA=+—H

2017 2016

—E—tF —T-RF

NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000

LK TET FHET

Total assets less current liabilities REERTBAER 341,766 405,619
Non-current liabilities FREBEE

Convertible bonds Al & 5 32 = 19,786

Contingent consideration payable FERTSHARE 43 - 1,929

Deferred tax liabilities BREFRIEAE 33 21,533 21,777

21,533 43,492

Net assets 320,233 362,127
Capital and reserves EXRf#E

Share capital 34 122,071 120,007

Reserves 162,580 198,122

Equity attributable to owners of the NAFHE ANEILER

Company 284,651 318,129

Non-controlling interests JEVE AR A B A 2 35,582 43,998

Total equity 320,233 362,127

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 269  $86Z269EMGA MK REABEETEN - T

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

So David Tat Man

BRIE XX
Director

EF

—N\F=ZAZ T N\BRERKEET LK

IATEE:
Lai Yick Fung
Bang
Director
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MERREE X

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-F—tFT-A=t—AILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEAEL
Equity
componentof  Investment Share Non-
Share Share  convertible  revaluation options  Translation Special  Accumulated controlling
Capital premium bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TRRES FER
B BHEE REHS REBHEE BRERE BERE BERE 2itER A RRES Ll

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TiEL TEL TEL

(Note 36) (Note 34) (Note 20) (Note 41) (Note (a))
(36 (Fi5E34) (Fi£20) (FizE41) (Fiz()

At 1 January 2016 RZZ-R"E-F-B 90,574 304,528 24918 - 2,300 (8,029) 6,026 (192,687) 227,630 46,235 273,865
Loss for the year rEEBE - - - - - - - (29,955) (29,955) (4,094) (34,049)
Other comprehensive income FEEEMZERA (BX):

(expense) for the year:
Fair value change of available-for- I ERE 7 A EEE

sale investments - - - 4,662 - - - - 4,662 - 4,662
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBIELN

translating foreign operations EXZE - - - - - (9,696) - - (9,696) 1,268 (8,428)

Other comprehensive income RERAMZEMRA ()

(expense) for the year - - - 4,662 - (9,696) - - (5,034) 1,268 (3,766)
Total comprehensive income FEEANMEE

(expense) for the year LONG SOk - - (9,696) (29,955) (34,989) (2,826) (37,815)
Issue of shares upon conversion of IR R EHEE TR

convertible bonds (Note 34(d)) (BisE34(d)) 10,000 - - - 20 - 20
Placing of new shares (Note 34(@) ~ EL&E# (A (F:34(a)) 8,400 - - - 42,000 - 42,000
Transaction costs attributable to REFRAZZHHA

placing of new shares - - - - (418) - (418)
Issue of shares (Note 34(n)) BB (MiE340) 5760 - - - 43,200 - 43,00
Avising of non-controlling interests R EETH B 2 &1 & A M FEIR IR

on acquisition of subsidiary R R (MEE410))

(Note 41(i) - - - - - 159 159
Issue of shares in consideration for  {FAKERERRMRER

the acquisition of an associate BRI (H3E34())

(Note 34(c)) 5273 - - - 29,528 - 29,528
Cancellation of convertible bonds & 84 BT # Ak &35 (Wi E34(e))

(Note 34(e) - - - 3477 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share ~ BRLAEREE R UK A

based payments (Note 39) A (F5E39) - 11,588 - - 11,588 - 11,588
Share option lapsed during FREXMBRIE (Fi:39)

the year (Note 39) - (720) - 720 - - -
Acquisition of additional equity EARREERNE-H

interest in a subsidiary from WERARZ BIMER

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - (430) (430) 430 -
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-AE+-A=1+-H 120,007 398,019 12,847 4,662 13,168 (17,725) 6,026 (218,875) 318,129 43,998 362,127
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-T—t4+-A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARTREARE
Equity
componentof  Investment Share Non-
Share Share  convertible  revaluation options  Translation Special Other ~ Accumulated controlling
Capital premium bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TARES FER
& RGEE  EE¥S RREAEE  BREGBE  AEER  KRERE  HBER  RHER g RRER &t
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR T#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fin Fén TEn TR TR T#n F#n
(Note 34) (Note 32) (Note 20) (Note 39) (Note (a) (Note (b)
(W) (W) (Kz20) (H39) (W&EE) (W)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-A 120,007 398,019 12,847 4662 13,168 (17,725) 6,026 - (218,875) 318,129 43,998 362,127
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - = = = (71,648) (71,648) (6,064) m.12)
Other comprefensive income (expense) ~ AERE 2 EMA (FX)
for the year
Fair value change of available-for-sale AHERE, DTHEED
investments - - - 402 - - - - - 402 - 402
- Exchange differences arising on translating Pﬁﬁ &9 EHEEL
foreign operations EXEE - = = - - 14402 - - - 14,402 (3513) 10,889
Other comprehensive income TERABZ AN
for the year - - - 402 - 14,402 - - - 14,804 (3513) 11,291
Total comprehensive income TERRENA (RR) 88
(expense) for the year - - - 402 - 14,402 - - (71,648) (56,844) (9,577) (66,421)
Issue of shares upon conversion of FETARESREARA
convertible bonds (Note 34(e)) ) 1,369 13,795 (4,194) - - - - - - 10,970 - 10,970
Isste of shares upon settlement of
contingent consideration (Note 34(q)) 80 ') - - - - - - - 522 - 522
Bxercise of share options (Note 34(f)
615 4,153 - - (1,385) - - - - 338 - 338
Change in ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result
in loss of control (Note 44) - - - - - - - (764) - (764) 764 -
Bxpiration of conversion option of
convertble bonds - - (2.954) - - - - - 2,954 - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 41) Lﬁﬂﬁ T% al( MT&M ) - - - - - - - - - - 397 397
Recognition of equity-settled share » L]
based payments (Note 39) ) - - - - 9,255 - - - - 9,255 - 9,255
Share option lapsed during
the year (Note 39) - - - - 2211) - - - 2211 - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t5+2A=1-A 1220 416,409 5,699 5,064 18,827 (333) 6,026 (764) (285,358) 284,651 35,582 320,233
Note: B o
@) The special reserve represents the difference between the (a) BRI R R AR R R AT I B A R (D EE kR
nominal amount of share and share premium of the former MEEHERE - TE - FEEEMAEMEITH
subsidiary of the Company and the nominal amount of the ARmRHEEZERZERE-
Company’s shares issued pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 2002.
(b) The other reserve has been set up and dealt with in (b) Hin@EE I RE—THNB AT A REEE T

accordance with the accounting policies for the changes in

ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss

of control. Details of changes in ownership in interests in a

subsidiary that do not result in loss of control is set out in

note 44.

miﬁﬂ BRTREMRLL R - — B A
AERES 2 FE (TEEBREEGE)

ZHBEN M 44 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+tFt-_A=1T—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —Z—KRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FETT
(Restated)
(ie&E5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE R
Loss before taxation bR T Bl ES 18 (77,347) (34,357)
Adjustments for: B TFIIEE EH A
Finance costs RlE R AR 10,873 7,456
Depreciation for plant and equipment WE REETE 2,684 1,690
Amortisation of an intangible asset B EEEH 1,604 1,604
Share based payments (Note 39) AR BB S 3R (B 5E39) 9,255 11,588
Increase in fair value of AW E N EIEINFEE
investment properties, net (2,124) (1,809)
Decrease (increase) in fair value of financial i NF(EH A B2 2 £ REE
assets at fair value through profit or loss AT (2 0) 20,621 (25,467)
Gain on cancellation of convertible bonds M AT AR B S U 26
(Note 32(e)) (F3E32(e)) = (7,854)
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill AEERARZREEE 3,968 14,446
Impairment loss recognised on B ZERFIEER
trade receivables BEEE 302 -
Gain on fair value change of contingent ERNSIARBERAFEZ B KRR
consideration payable (1,942) (11,326)
Loss on disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—HBARREREE - 881
Loss on written off of intangible assets HiE I & E B 3,075 -
Loss on written-off of plant and equipment 4 $4 187 = &% 22 1% ~ 518 382 14
Share of results of associates DR S N B ELE (2,637) 1,030
Interest income ISV @N (1,560) (114)
Dividend income from financial assets at RERAFEFAEBRZ
FVTPL TREENREKA (288) (25)
Operating cash flows before movements AREEBEEREHAZ
in working capital REFERE (33,134) (42,243)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at BATEFABSZEREE
fair value through profit or loss A (B2n) 18,320 (19,780)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (8n) 213 (46)
Increase in loan and interest receivables JE W E R F B hn (476) (20,357)
Decrease (increase) in trade and JE AT BR 3R K Eo A B A< 5R0E
other payables B (3G hn) (14,735) 10,465
Net cash used in operations BRI e F5E (47,266) (99,767)
Income tax paid BEATFTER (239) =
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ¥ FTAIRE F5 (47,505) (99,767)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December

2017

BE—F—t4+-A=+—AIL5E

2017 2016
—E—tF Z—ZET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
(Restated)
(&&E5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES K& EE
Proceeds on disposal of asset classified HEIBERIFELEZ
as held for sale EEMFTS A 19,447 11,290
Interest received B U F 8 1,560 114
Net cash inflow (outflow) from acquisition of Y8 — R E A F ~
a subsidiary (Note 41) WEMA R ) F58E
(F$5E41) 363 (2,276)
Dividend income from financial assets AT EFAEBZR
at FVTPL EREEZREBA 288 25
Loan advance to an associate AN F—EBERNTZER (22,083) (2,773)
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE MR (3,321) (2,145)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments EEAHLERE - (54,116)
Deposit paid for acquisition of BERKERE REEZE
plant and equipment - (778)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HE—HEWBARZRERA
a subsidiary (Note 42) FFE (M15E42) - 8,097
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING KEFRHEL (FTA)BRLFHE
ACTIVITIES (3,746) (42,562)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A R E
New borrowing raised MEREER 57,956 30,000
Exercise of share options 171 HE AR 3,383 -
Increase in margin loans REFE B LN 3,254 16,768
Repayment of loan payable EEENER (20,000) -
Repayment of borrowing BEER (10,727) (400)
Issue of shares BITIR D - 43,200
Interest paid EF 8 (248) (2,393)
Advance from non-controlling interests FEIEAR AR R 7 2 B - 983
Proceeds from placing of new shares fe & ¥ AR 0 2 FT1S 3R - 42,000
Transaction costs attribute to placing Pl & ¥ AR 10 FE (R 22 5 P AR
of new shares - (418)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEBMSIAES TR 33,618 129,740
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RekReFERDFHE
EQUIVALENTS (17,633) (12,589)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FYzHekBEeEE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 22,298 36,871
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEDE R E E) 2 o 2 446 (1,984)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRz2BeRAEEE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, RITHE SR KB 25IR
represented by bank balances and cash 5,111 22,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHEz—_Z—+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

General

China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Company Law
of the Cayman Islands on 30 November 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 5 February 2002.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Company re-domiciled from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda. The change of domicile
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on
15 October 2007 and the Company was continued
into Bermuda with limited liability with effect from 29
October 2007.

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and the principal place of business of the Company is
Suites 2303-06, 23/F Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The directors of the
Company do not consider any company to be the
ultimate holding company and parent company of the
Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
business of one-stop value chain services, property
investment, trading of consumables and agricultural
products, trading of grocery food products, provision
of money lending services and provision of financial
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company. Other than those
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and incorporated in Taiwan whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB"”) and New
Taiwan dollars (“NTD") respectively, the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is HK$.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
(continued)

Basis of preparation

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$77,712,000
and net operating cash outflows of approximately
HK$47,505,000 during the year ended 31 December
2017. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainity that may cast significant doubt
about the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

Although the Group has been continuously incurring
losses in these years, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its operating cash flows as
and when they fall due for the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period given that:

(i) on 9 March 2018, the Company entered into
a placing agreement with the placing agent.
The Company announced to place a maximum
of 1,200,000,000 placing shares of HK$0.083
per placing share with the net proceeds of
approximately HK$96,900,000 after deducting
placing transaction costs;

(ii) the directors of the Company will continuously
review the cost structure of the Group and
formulate appropriate cost saving measures to
improve the performance and the cash flows of
the Group's operations;

(i) the directors of the Company anticipate that
the Group will generate positive cash flows
from its operations; and the existence of stand-
by facility to the Company for the period of one
year.

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

—REERGREE (F)

RBE%E

BEZT—+tF+HA=1T—HLILHF
B AEBEEEEEBFRELT7,712,000
BT R IB I & FFE 447,505,000
B AR BE R E EARTHE T
R AEBIFELENENBRE
AEER o

AEBNOFRSEELBE - BEW
- ARAEZRR AEEKEREN
LEESRNEARERRERK =
BRRBEZEEREN - L IER

i)y RZZE—N\FE=ZANLAB &AQA
HEEEREITIEEHZE AR
7] E 1 B & & %1,200,000,000
REREERD SRESERHM LY
0.083% 7L HFTSHIBFREL A
96,900,000/ 7 ' IR BL & X 5
PR

(i) ARBDEFHFEEHAEEN
XA &8 - 0B RT A E RV B AR
Aighe AR EAEBEENK
ANBATRE:

(i) ARFREFEH AEBEKEH
HEELXLRESRE: AARA
R—FHEFERARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 on a going concern basis. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount and
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)"”)
In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs, which include
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS(s)"), amendments and interpretations
("Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle: Amendments
to HKFRS12

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

HKAS 12 Unrealised Losses

Except as described below, the application of other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. The amendments do not prescribe a
specific method to fulfil the new disclosure requirements.
However, the amendments indicate that one way is to
provide a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances for liabilities arising from financing activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(continued)

The application of amendments to HKAS 7 has
resulted in additional disclosures on the Group's
financing activities, especially a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising
from financing activities is provided in note 49. On
initial application of the amendments, the Group is
not required to provide comparative information for
preceding periods. Apart from the additional disclosure
in note 49, the directors of the Company considered
that these amendments have had no impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions'
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts'

(%)

2. ERFIIREBITEBMBREE
A(TEEBMBREER]) (&)

BRETEAEIR ZBIAREETD

EREBGFEAETIRZETAEHR
AEEREDBEHBEIMNE LER
ERBEHEL ZBBERGZRES PR
3R B ) B A R A B 2 SRR IO M 52491
H o NERERZIERT A - NEBEHE
REBTEHREN LR EFR - BRRH 49
BINERBIN RRBEER/ZFER

BAKEGAMBHRRLBERTE -

EEMEERERNHTREETESR

Bt 35 R 5 22 R

AEBEYEIEFEBUTERMERR
EREF R REERT R BN B RESE

Al
BB BERE SRIA
AR FE 95
(ZE—W1F)
ERUBWMERER BPEHKRA
551557
ERUBmELED HE
F165%
ERTBMELER REEL?
E175%
BEMBHRELEN —T-—NERE
ZIBET AR A 5l
BRI BmELER
2 EFELE
ERVBMELR —T-AFE
ZABETAR “E-+FRE
BRI BmELER
2 FJE B2
EBMBRELED UARNDBERNMR
F2%H BT ROGZHERFE
ERUBMELER HEBYBRELER
A2 EFTA FARREAL
—HERKOE B

B 2 R F 95

ERMIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures?

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property’
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021.

4 Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except
as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 and
includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended
to bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in the financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued
in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS
9 that were issued in previous years with limited
amendments to the classification and measurement by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for
certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS
9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")

(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as

follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are

within the scope of HKFRS 9 (2014) to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)"”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

o In the aspect of impairment assessments,
the impairment requirements relating to the
accounting for an entity’s expected credit losses
on its financial assets and commitments to
extend credit were added. Those requirements
eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the
impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses should always
be accounted for. The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)"”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

° HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which
is more closely aligns hedge accounting with
risk management activities undertaken by
companies when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at
whether a risk component can be identified
and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial
items. The new model also enables an entity
to use information produced internally for risk
management purposes as a basis for hedge
accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary
to exhibit eligibility and compliance with the
requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes.
The new model also includes eligibility
criteria but these are based on an economic
assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk
management data. This should reduce the costs
of implementation compared with those for
HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
early application permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)"”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company has performed
a preliminary analysis of the Group’s financial
instruments as at 31 December 2017 based on the
fact and circumstances existing at that date. The
directors of the Company have assessed the impact
of adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) on the Group's results
and financial position, including the classification
categories and the measurement of financial assets,
and disclosures, as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group’s available-for-sale investments,
including those currently stated at cost less
impairment, will either be measured as fair
value through profit or loss or be designated
with irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income the changes in
fair value. For the available-for-sale equity
investments that are not held for trading and
are currently stated at cost less impairment,
the Group has made an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income the
changes in fair value.

(b) Impairment

The directors of the Company expect to apply
the simplified approach and record lifetime
expected credit losses that are estimated based
on the present value of all cash shortfalls over
the remaining life of all of its trade and other
receivables, loan and interest receivables and
loan to an associate. The application of the
expected credit loss model may result in earlier
recognition of credit losses for trade and other
receivables, loan and interest receivables and
loan to an associate and increase the amount
of impairment allowance recognised for these
items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)"”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Impairment (continued)

The directors of the Company will perform
a more detailed analysis which considers all
reasonable and supportable information for the
estimation of the effect of adoption of HKFRS
9 (2014). Based on the preliminary assessment,
the directors of the Company expect that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have other
material impact on amounts reported in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies
to contracts with customers, featuring a contract-
based five-step analysis of transactions to determine
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.
The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer;

(ii) Identify the performance obligations in the
contract;

(i) Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
application permitted.

The major sources of revenue of the Group are sales
of goods, provision of services and rental income.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised for each of
the performance obligations when control over a good
or service is transferred to a customer. The directors
of the Company have preliminarily assessed each
type of the performance obligations and consider
that the performance obligations are similar to the
current identification of separate revenue components
under HKAS 18 Revenue. Furthermore, HKFRS 15
requires the transaction price to be allocated to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis, which may affect the timing and
amounts of revenue recognition, and results in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the directors of the Company expect that
the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not have a material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised based on the existing business model of
the Group as at 31 December 2017.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and their
treatment in the financial statements of both lessors
and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard
introduces a single lessee accounting model, requiring
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with the lease term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset has a low value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE

2.

T AFFTA=THILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
at cost, which consists of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any
lease payments made to the lessor at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, the initial estimate of restoration costs and
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. Lease liability
is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on
the right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss
following the requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability
will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17 Leases. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease
standards including HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with early
application permitted provided that the entity has
applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers at or before the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$8,928,000 as disclosed in note
37. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS
16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in the measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above. The directors of
the Company are in the process to determine the
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position, after taking into account all practical
expedients and recognition exemption under HKFRS
16. The directors of the Company expect that the
adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have material impact
on the Group's result but certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHz—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The principle accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If
a subsidiary prepares its financial statements using
accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial
statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(iii) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the Group's returns. When the
Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained
through: (i) a contractual arrangement with other
vote holders; (ii) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and
potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the
above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of these elements of control
stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income of subsidiaries are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive expense
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHz—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs incurred to effect a business
combination are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except deferred tax assets or liabilities arising
from the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
in the business combinations are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the Group's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by
another standards, are measured at acquisition-date
fair value except for non-controlling interests that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are measured either at
fair value or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHz—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration that is within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at
each reporting date, and changes in fair value are
reocgnised in profit or loss in accordance with HKAS
39. Other contingent consideration that is not within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in fair value are recognised
in profit or loss.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU(s)") (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

The Group's policy for goodwill relating to an
associate that included in the carrying amount of
the investment is set out in “interests in associates”
below.

Interests in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

The Group's interests in associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Under the equity method, interests
in associates are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's share of the profit or loss and changes in the
other comprehensive income of the associates are
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interests in the associate, which
determined using the equity method together with
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net interests in the associates, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are provided for, and a liability
is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates.

Interests in associates are accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of
the investment, any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates is
recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE

3.

—TAFTA=TRHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

After application of the equity method, including
recognising the associates’ losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any additional impairment loss with respect to its
interests in the associates. Goodwill that forms part
of the carrying amount of interests in associates
is not separately recognised. The entire carrying
amount of the interests (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the interests in the associates. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised in
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates.
The Group's share in the associates’ gains or losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost
of items of plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Plant and equipment (continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (Calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible asset acquired in a business
combination

Intangible asset acquired in a business combinations
are reocgnised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at its fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible asset acquired in a business
combination (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortisation for intangible asset with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated
statement of financial position comprise cash at banks
and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short term deposits as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities and financial
liabilities (other than financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

(i) Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into
one of three categories, including financial
assets at FVTPL,
and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is

loans and receivables

determined the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE-_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments (other
than those financial assets at FVTPL) of which
interest income is included in other (loss) gain,
net.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are held for trading on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other (loss) gain
, net” line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 36(c).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including loan and interest
receivables, trade and other receivables, loan to
an associate and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
loss (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. EAREFEE(E)
Financial instruments (continued) LRI E (&)
(i)  Financial assets (continued) () ZHEE (&)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial
assets relating to changes in foreign currency
rates, interest income calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. EAREFEE(E)
Financial instruments (continued) LRI E (&)
(i)  Financial assets (continued) () Z=HEE (&)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade and other receivables and loan and
interest receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The carrying amount of the financial assets
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, loan and interest
receivables and loan to an associate where
the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or
other receivable, loan and interest receivable
and loan to an associate is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset
is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss in the period in which the impairment
takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_T—+HF+-_A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified
into either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liabilities are either held for
trading on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near
term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of

a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss is included in the other gains and
losses line item in profit or loss. Fair value is
determined in a manner described in note 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade
and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling interests, borrowings, loan payable,
margin loans payable and debt component of
convertible bonds, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE

3.

—TAFT A=t HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds containing liability and
equity components

Convertible bonds issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the
gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity,
is included in equity (equity component of
convertible bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in equity
component of convertible bonds until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in equity component
of convertible bonds will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in equity component of convertible
bonds will be released to the accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(@iii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds containing liability and
equity components (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve
is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when,
and only when, the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-current asset held for sale

Non-current asset is classified as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
Such classification requires the asset must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset and its sale is highly probable. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current asset classified as held for sale is
measured at the lower of its previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold and
services rendered in the normal course of business.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect

of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Provision of financial services is recognised when the
underlying services have been rendered in accordance
with the terms of service agreement.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant leases.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE

3.

—TAFFT A=t HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserves (attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
Payments to the defined contribution plans in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries, in
the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE

3.

—TAFFT A=t HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the date of grant is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services are
measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted. The fair values of the services received
are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the
counterparties render services, unless the services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's
share-based payment transactions, leasing
transactions, net realisable value of inventories
and value in use of goodwill for the purpose of
impairment assessment, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs,

as follow:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
determines whether transfer occur between levels
of the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities
which are measured at fair value on recurring basis by
reviewing their respective fair value measurement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised and disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern and liquidity

The assessment of the going concern assumptions
involves making judgement by the directors of the
Company, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. Please refer to note 1 in relation
to the going concern assumptions adopted by the
directors of the Company.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The Group determines whether an acquisition of
subsidiaries qualifies as acquisition of business
in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combination or acquisition of assets that requires
judgment. The directors of the Company consider
the substance of the acquisition of subsidiaries
that constitute a business will be accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combination, in case the acquisition of subsidiaries
does not constitute a business, it is classified as
acquisition of assets. Details of acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group during the year are set out in
note 41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Estimated impairment loss on interests in
associates

The directors of the Company determined whether
interests in associates are impaired by reference to
an estimation of recoverable amount of investment.
The recoverable amount of interests in associates
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flow
expected to arise from the associates and a suitable
discount rate including the risk adjustment in order to
calculate the present value. The assumption includes
management best estimate of the set of economic
condition in the future.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
interests in associates is approximately HK$75,813,000
(2016: HK$73,176,000). No impairment loss on
interests in associates was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Allowance for doubtful debts

Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on the
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables, loan and interest receivables and loan
to an associate. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the directors of the Company to make
judgement and estimates. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness, past collection history of each debtor
as well as the collateral received by the Group. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of trade and other receivables,
and loan and interest receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/written back in the period in which the
estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of
trade receivables were approximately HK$5,268,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$302,000)
(2016: carry amount of approximatley HK$5,424,000.
While carrying amounts of other receivables and
deposits were approximately HK$43,827,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$1,006,000) (2016: carrying amount of
approximately HK$25,144,000) (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$1,006,000).
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounting to approximately HK$302,000 (2016: nil).
No impairment loss on other receivables and deposits
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
loan and interest receivables was approximately
HK$49,734,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$4,149,000) (2016:
HK$49,258,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of approximately HK$4,149,000)). No impairment loss
on loan and interest receivables has been recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HLEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Allowance for doubtful debts (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of loan
to an associate was approximately HK$24,856,000
(2016: carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,773,000). No impairment loss on loan to an
associate was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of the financial position at 31 December
2017 at their fair value of approximately
HK$169,173,000 (2016: HK$155,457,000). The fair
value was based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Estimated impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
determine when an available-for-sale investment
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the carrying amount of financial asset
is less than its present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset; and the financial health
of and short-term business outlook for the investee,
including operational and financing cash flow. At 31
December 2017, the carrying amount of available-
for-sale investments stated at cost was approximately
HK$41,116,000 (2016: HK$41,116,000). No
impairment loss has been recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value of share options

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the Company's directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions.

Fair value of contingent consideration

Fair value of contingent consideration is measured
by independent qualified professional valuers. The
valuation involves, inter-alia, certain estimates,
including financial assumptions, probabilities assigned
to different scenarios and discount rate. In relying on
the valuation, management has exercised judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amount of contingent
consideration is HK$512,000 (2016: HK$2,976,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

5.

TURNOVER 5. EXEH
Turnover represents revenue arising on one-stop value BEBRE - UABEERE HL K
chain services, rental income, trading of consumables A EERELEELRE S BHELRYE
and agricultural products, trading of grocery food S IEHRERERIZEHESMIREAE
products, provision of money lending services and NEEHMKZ AEBREXNEERD
provision of financial services for the year. An analysis RSN
of the Group's revenue recognised in turnover for the
year is as follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
One-stop value chain services — i EEERE 16,177 35,955
Rental income (Note) WA () 3,919 3,586
Trading of consumables and HEMMAREME D
agricultural products 5,870 5,712
Trading of grocery food products BHRMmE S 29,902 22,409
55,868 67,662
Provision of money lending services RERERE KA
income 5,750 4,808
Provision of financial services income 2t & g AR S W A 1,410 -
7,160 4,808
Turnover ] 63,028 72,470
Note: s
2017 2016
—E—+tF A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Gross rental income He W ARz 3,919 3,586
Less: outgoings (included in cost of sales) 38l : St Hi (FF A E R AN) (687) (937)
Net rental income HeWAFE 3,232 2,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

OTHER LOSS OR GAIN, NET

6. HtSEIWEFHE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—KRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss on disposal of HEEATFEFABEZ
financial assets at FVTPL TREEEE (7,168) (5,783)
Bank interest income RITH B WA 8 8
Loan interest income on loan to an EXTHERAN
associate ERFERA 1,552 106
Gain on fair value change of ERHAREBZ
contingent consideration payable N EZE WS 1,942 11,326
Loss on disposal of interest in a HE - B AR MERER
subsidiary (note 42) (MI5E42) - (881)
Gain on cancellation of A MRES 2 W
convertible bonds (Note 32(e)) (MI5E32(e)) - 7,854
Dividend income from BATEABRZ
financial assets at FVTPL TREERSKA 288 25
Exchange gain bE W 1,305 -
Sundry income MIEBA 243 669
(1,830) 13,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
7.

—TAFFTA=TRHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments, based on
information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focus on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable

REAARNREFE (MEBREERE
EB)RENER AEERETERIE

EoBREFGEDNREDBEER
P32 SR B an SR AR TS RO SR Bl © 10
ERASENAZ2ROBR TBLE
IR I P RN AR o JEAR N

segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reporting

segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a. One-stop value chain services
a. — N BEERS

b. Property investment

b. WERE

C. Trading of consumables and

agricultural products
C. HEMKRBRERE S

d. Trading of grocery food products

d EHEmES

e. Provision of money lending
services

e. REEIRTS

f. Provision of financial services

f. RH RS

The provision of financial and investment advisory

LHR K&
FERB DL ER

$ETJ‘5%.W§ SRS 2R
/\*EZZDT

provision of total solution services including trading,
packaging and logistics solutions

RHUZERRTERE (BREES BERMRERLTE)
R 75

generated rental income from operating leases of Group's
investment properties

AEBEREMERLEHEEEN —RBESKA

trading of consumables and agricultural products

HREBMREME S

trading of grocery food products
BhREmE S

provision of money lending services

RHMIERR

Provision of financial and investment advisory and
corporate finance services

RESHMEIEEER R EME RS

R BB AR (M)  RESE R

services and corporate finance services were formally
commenced during the year ended 31 December
2017 as a result of the acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 41). As a result, a new segment of provision of
financial services was added under operating segments
in the current year.

BRERARCERERSG MEEXRER
BOTHR—E—+&+—H=+—8
I FERE-Hit ?mf/it rﬂﬂﬁ“ﬂ’]%ﬁ
DEMERAFEMALEDH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r e M A% R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results

7. “?;Eﬁ‘#‘l (%)

DEWEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue NTARAERZRITEMRLEEDFE D
and results by reportable and operating segments: S REEDNT:
For the year ended 31 December BZEZE+-BA=+—BLEE
Trading of
One-stop value consumables and Trading of grocery Provision of money Provision of
chain services Property investment agricultural products food products lending services financial services Total
-UARERERE NERE HERRREREZR AHRRES BUHERE RUSREE Eh
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
%t CFF Z¥-tF CTAF ZR-tF SR ZR-tF ST CR-tF CTRF CR-4F CEFRE CR-tF ST
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T#r FER F#n TR Fén TEn TEr TR Fén TEn T#r FER F#n TR
REVENUE ey
External sales HhgE 16,177 35955 3919 3586 5870 5712 29,902 22409 5,750 4,808 1410 - 63,028 2410
Segment (loss) proft A8 (B8)aH (529) (254) % 4183) (2,045) (39%) (482) (17957) 6848 1753 (52) - 3774 (21,037)
Unallocated corporate other ~~ ASE AT Lt (KE)

(loss) gain, net g (1,830) 1334
Unallocated corporate expenses (46,466) (29179)
(Decrease) increase in fairvalue ~ ZATEFFABEZ

offinanciel asss at FVTPL SREENTE

(HD)EM (20,621) 25467
Share of results of associates & 2,637 (1,030)
Impairment loss recognised on SR

goodwill (3,968) (14,446)
Finance costs HERK (10873) (7.456)
Loss before taxation BRAGE (77,347) (34357)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents
the (loss from) profit earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, other (loss) or gain net, (decrease)
increase in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL,
share of results of associates and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

RED BN GEIR B 3R ANE
EEFBERAR - 28 (BR)BMES
% E’](Eﬂ,@!)wﬂ TEESEFRIT

Hi (B18) e

R RAFE Jr)\f' BLETBEER
FEORD) BN DIhHE QR EE M

MERK - W TIMEELERKER

E

I ETTE RS B R B A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER (E)
Segment assets and liabilities NHEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and UWTARNEEZAZ2RREEDEE D
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: CEREEBEST:
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Segment assets DEEE
One-stop value chain services —uh (B E AR 21 403
Property investment Y ERE 193,917 179,584
Trading of consumables and HEMEREME S
agricultural products 5,991 9,094
Trading of grocery food products BHEME S 5,361 17,596
Provision of money lending services R ERS 49,734 49,258
Provision of financial services R FRE 867 -
Total segment assets DEEERE 255,891 255,935
Asset classified as held for sale DHEARBELHEZEE - 19,393
Unallocated corporate assets AP RBIEE 234,990 242,578
Consolidated assets HEBE 490,881 517,906
Segment liabilities DEEE
One-stop value chain services —uh (B E RS 29 183
Property investment YERE 6,206 16,683
Trading of consumables and HEMREEME S
agricultural products 1,157 799
Trading of grocery food products BhREmE 351 968
Provision of money lending services RHMERS 232 78
Provision of financial services RIS FRSE 357 -
Total segment liabilities DIEBERE 8,332 18,711
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMAREE 162,316 137,068
Consolidated liabilities CLEAaE 170,648 155,779

Annual Report 2017 —Z — & F i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain plant and equipment,
interests in associates, available-for-sale
investments, certain other receivables, loan to
an associate, deposit paid for acquisition of
plant and equipment, financial assets at FVTPL
and bank balances and cash; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling interests, borrowings, certain
income tax payable, loan from non-controlling
interests, contingent consideration payable,
liability component of convertible bonds,
certain deferred tax liabilities, margin loans
payable and loan payable.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+F+_A=1+—HILFE

7. SEEH(E)

THEEREE (&)
MEEZSBRBARASDESIREER
mE :

. MBEEONREREDERE
TR Kt KBS R R 2
@ AR ERE BT HBRER
IR MEERARERNER B
MRERE Lk RERE RRF
B ABZZEMEE  AKRIR
TR AN &

0|

. FEAEE T EEELnEEM
Vﬁ QIR fﬁiH 15 A% BR A 25
B B30 EATFTER - FEiE Hﬁ
Hx%%ﬁi%ﬂ‘}?ﬁ_ﬁz%ﬁf
BREREHFZABELD LLL@%IE
aBfE- Fgﬁﬁ"*(}ﬁﬁ(&ﬁﬁ
FRERAN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_ZT—+H+-A=t+—HIFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December

7. 2EESR (&)
Hitto BEHR

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

Trading of Trading of
One-stop value consumables and grocery food Provision of money Provision of financial
chain services Property investment agricultural products products lending services services Unallocated Total
-4 REREY NERE HERRRERER BHERES BUHRRE BUSHRE Eil ) a3t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
8-t “F5F Z%-tF CTF ZR-tE CTF ZR-tF CTRF CZR-tF CFF -t ST C®-tF CTF Z%-tF TR
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fén FER Fén FER Fén FE Fén FER Fén FER Fén FEL Fén FEL Fén FEL
Amounts included in the measure Rt EARRED
of segment profitor loss AREER
or segment assets BiANEE
Additions to non-current assets (Note) - - 522 478 - 3502 - - - - 3 - 3578 33271 4103 31251
Increase in fair value of
investment propertis, net - - (2.124) (1,809) - - - - - - - - - - (2124 (1,809)
Depreciation for BRRAENE
plant and equipment 52 52 1,026 525 [k} 120 - - - - 2 - 1,181 693 2,684 1,690
Loss on witten off on intengible assets  MHENEEEE - - - - = - (3,075) - = - = - = - (3.075) -
Loss on written off on property, plant i % - BE Rk &R
and equipment - - - - - - (382) - - - - - - - (382) -
Amortisation of an intangible asset - - - - - - 1,604 1,604 - - - - - - 1,604 1,604
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill - - - - - - 3,968 14,446 - - - - - - 3,968 14,446
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables - - - - - - 302 - - - - - - - 302 -
Taxation - - = (206) 17 163 107 (265) 5 - 610 - (374) - 365 (308)
— — — —— — — —— S E—— S S E—— S— — — —
Amounts reqularly provided to chief
operating decision maker but not YRRE
incuded n the measure of segment  AEAEZ:HENEE:
profit or loss or segment assets:
Loss on disposal of HERRATHEF AR
financial assets at FVTPL SHEEFE - - - - - - - - - - - - 7,168 5783 7,168 5783
Interest income LN - - - - - - - - - - - - (1,560) (114) (1,560) (114)
Dividend income from financial assets ~ ZATEFABEZ
at L SRAERSMA - - - - - - = - = - = - (288) 29 (288) 29
(Gain on cancelltion of convrtible HETARESRE
bonds - - - - - - - - - - - - - (7,854) - (7,854)
Decrease (increase) n fair value of ROTEFAESL
financial assets at FVTPL SREELTE
B (8m) - - - - - - - - - - - - 20261 (25,467) 20621 (25,467)
Loss on disposal of inerest HE-BHBATN
in a subsidiary BEER - - - - - - - - - - - - - 881 - 881
Gain on fair value change of contingent AR BRI A FEKE
consideration payable - - - - - - - - - - - - (1,942) (11.326) (1,942) (11.326)
Share of results of associates PEBERAEE - - - - - - - - - - - - (2637) 1,030 (2637) 1,030
Interests in associates REBRRZER - - - - - - - - - - - - 75813 73176 75813 73,176
Finance costs REHE - - - - - - - - - - - - 10873 745 10873 745

Note:

Non-current assets excluded those financial

instruments.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIB £ L REFR AT
Annual Report 2017 —Z — & F i

fiet: SERBEETBEEZBTA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
7. EEH(H)
ih & & 8
REE KB INEBEF BTSN E B E
DREPHWEZES - AEBERBEE
DREEMEMERZ5 -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMEEF 2 Wz FRBEE
For the year ended
31 December As at 31 December
BEt-HR=t—-H
LEE W+=A=+—-H
2017 2016 2017 2016

—F-t& T F ZB-tF T F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TR TET TAT

Hong Kong B
The PRC wh
Taiwan oy
Note:

Non-current assets excluded those financial instruments.

58,946 67,418 97,927 56,122

3,919 4,430 137,129 171,437

163 622 22,186 20,787

63,028 72,470 257,242 248,346
B & :

FERBDEETBREMEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the

Group is as follows:

7. SREH (&)
FBRIERFNESR

HEFEREER 2B AR ER LRI
AB#B10% 2 ERIAT

For the year ended
31 December

B#=t+t-A=t-—H

IEEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—XF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Customer A’ EEA 10,378 29,982
Customer B2 =B 10,330 N/A 71~ 3

! Revenue from one-stop value chain services segment.

R — D BB RTS 5 M2 Mt -

2 Revenue from trading of grocery food products 2 REEBBHREME S D E 2 WE-
segment.
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over : HER GO AEEBKRZE T BB
10% of the total revenue of the Group. 10% °
8.  FINANCE COSTS 8. ®EMRRK
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Interest on bank borrowings RITHRERAE 4,163 349
Interest on loan payable FERT B R B - 220
Interest on margin loans payable JETR7E & B RAE 2,142 408
Effective interest expense on @R ES BB EEA
convertible bonds (Note 32(d)) (BFsE32(d)) 4,568 6,479
10,873 7,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

TAXATION 9. BIE
2017 2016
—E-—tE T iE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Current tax: BOERR 1A -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNIEH 812 163
Deferred tax (note 33): EEFTA (KIFE33) -
Current year KEE (447) (471)
365 (308)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008.
No EIT is provided for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 as the Group did not derive any
assessable profit subject to EIT.

The Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable profits
for both years. No Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income
Tax is provided for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 as the Group did not derive any assessable
profit subject to Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BE4EREFRA T

EBNEHERBEEE_T—+F+_-A
=+ — B I FE AT E RS %
16.5% ( —Z—7XNF :16.5% ) Z T K5t
ﬁo

RIBREARKMBEEEMSHOE ([H
EMBRAD REXRMERIAERIK
- BT N\F—H—HiE HEH
BARMBERB25% o AN & B I 4
ELEAABMAERAEHRNERN
wA MBI ERBEE T+ FR-ZE
—RNET-A=+T—BHIFEELEE
PRS-

BEENEXMEHREREZMESFE
BT ERBE MR 7% 2 B RFTE -
AR AN EE I 8 EE TR ASNEFE
EMEHHERBEN S EpEE
—EHFRITE-RFtTZHA=T—
HIEFEIELENEEMEHEME-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE

9.

—TAFFTA=TRHILFE

TAXATION (continued)

The taxation for the years can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement

9. HiIE (&)
ZEFEANHRERSGESBEMNEMEE
W MBI RTE B E BRI T

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Loss before taxation Br 5 B B 1B (77,347) (34,357)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate LB AT E16.5%:1 &
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) HHIE (ZF—RF 16.5%) (12,762) (5,669)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT X TS &
for tax purpose 6,652 9,995
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBMW ARG 2
for tax purpose (415) (9,789)
Tax effect of share of DIEEE AR EENRE 2
results of associates (435) 226
Tax effect of deductible temporary ﬂiﬁﬁw—ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁz
differences not recognised Bikyis-2 176 341
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K R TRIEJEHTE' B T TS 7 2 7,017 4,686
Utilisation of tax losses previously BALAIARER Z RIBEE
not recognised (345) -
Utilisation of deductible temporary AL ARERZ
difference previously not recognised AIHURE =50 - (23)
Effect of different tax rates of MR ELERERGE R
subsidiaries operating in Sy =MNSIE RN b RS2
other jurisdictions 477 (75)
Taxation for the year FARIEA 365 (308)

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 0. ~XEEESE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: REEBIEBRAING T &IEE58E
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) EEHH (1) 9,155 11,014
Other staff costs (excluding directors’  E B THA (TEIEEEHM)
emoluments) 9,447 8,469
Share-based payments VARR A7 /3 25 2 15 3K
(excluding directors) (T"BiEEE) 3,792 3,889
Retirement benefits scheme RABHEEER(TEEES)
contributions (excluding directors) 589 540
22,983 23,912
Auditors’ remuneration Z BT BN 2 790 730
Amount of inventories recognised BRAR ZFENIA
as an expense 47,029 60,863
Amortisation of an intangible asset A EEE 1,604 1,604
Depreciation for plant and equipment HiE &R ETE 2,684 1,690
Loss on written off of intangible assets i $4 & 2 & = &5 18 3,075 -
Loss on written-off of W SE R B & 5 1 2 B 1R
plant and equipment 382 14
Impairment loss recognised on E 5 W IE R Y
trade receivables RIEEE 302 -
Exchange loss, net M H B F R - 3,745
Share-based payments to consultants Sz i F E&RS B A B 19 &
B SV AT 1,040 1,096
Minimum lease payments paid under BRERAEMENELEHEN
operating leases in respect of B &EEERE
office premises 4,297 2,018

Annual Report 2017 —

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BE4EREFRA T
—E—+EFEFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six
(2016: seven) directors and the chief executive (the
"Chief Executive”) of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

11. EEz#e
HE_Z—+tFR-_ZFT-—XF+AH
=+ —HEFERAARIANUES (=

S — N L) RAITHARE (1T

HDEZEENSERNMESMAT :

9

BE_Z-—+tHF+-A=t—HLFE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors (“INED")

UNEs BUFUTES

So David
TatMan  Lai Yick

Au Yeung
Po Leung
(resigned on
Ng Cheuk 30 September Yick Ting Fai,

Fung Fan, Keith 217)  Zhang Min  Yuen Wai Man Jeffery Total
BEER
(W=%-t§
hA=t1A

HEX Rite 2ER BE) ER REH AEE it
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000
TRR TR TR TR TR TR TR TEn

Emoluments paid or receivable in respectof a AT EFARARENBARZ
person’s services as a director, whether of EZNRAMESRYTNE:
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings:

- Fees -0g - - - - 180 180 180 540
- Other emoluments -Eb#e 1,200 1,200 1,184 540 - - - 4,124
~ Retirement benefits scheme contributions R HE T 18 18 18 14 - - - 68
- Share-based payments -HRHAERZAR 1,667 928 835 580 158 97 158 4423
Total emoluments Hpde 2,885 2,146 2,037 1,134 338 207 338 9,155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. ES=282 (H)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—_E—XNE+-B=1+—HLEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors (“INED")
#17g% BuEnfEs((BuknEs))
Ng Cheuk
Fan, Keith
Au Yeung Ng Cheuk (re-designed
Po Leung Fan, Keith Yuen Wai Man a executive
(appointed o (appointed on (appointed on director on
S0 David 2lanuary 1 September 1 September ~ YickTing Fai, 1 September
TatMan  LaiYick Fung 2016) 2016) Zhang Min 2016) Jeffery 2016) Total
RER
HRER RER 238 (A=2-7%
(RZF7F (RIE0F (RZF—1% AA-B
—-AZR nA-B 1A-8 L E ]
HEX #ang BZ() BZ() ER EZ() PEE  H7EZ) a3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TEL TiEn TERL TR TR TR
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a FIATRERRAZANELEL
person's services as a director, whether of the BB NHEEYE:
Company o its subsidiary undertakings:
- Fees g - N - - 180 60 180 - 420
- Other emoluments ~Efpfis 1300 1300 718 33 - - - 120 3931
- Retitement benefits cheme contrbutons ~RIVEIEEIRE 18 18 18 6 - - - - 60
- Share-based paymens -IERBERZ AR 2863 1253 838 1,004 b 105 m - 6,603
Total emoluments Helg 4181 2571 1,634 1443 450 165 450 120 11,014

There was no Chief Executive of the Company was
appointed for the year ended 31 December 2017 and

2016.

No director of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments paid by the Group during the

two years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the two years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

S
12.

13.

—TAFFTA=TRHILFE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2016: four) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 11 above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2016: one) individuals was as follows:

12.

BEM<

AEFBRUSSHFMALH O (ZF
—NF O REARRES  REME
EREXMENPRE-Er—f (=
T—REF ) ERALTZBE 0T

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

Basic salaries and allowances AR KoERL 780 780

Share-based payments LARR 17 7 B/ 2 5Kk 95 105
Retirement benefits RAIRAEFIFT B3R

scheme contributions 18 18

893 903

The emoluments of each of the above employees were
within the band from nil to HK$1,000,000 during the
two years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the two years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
highest paid individuals (including the directors of the
Company) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2017, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2016:
nil).

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIB £ L REFR AT
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—tFt-A=t—RILEE
BEREE
RATVEB ANEEBRER R EEEHE
TIERAT8IEFE

Loss B8
2017 2016
—E2-tF —ZZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to RRRHEE AEBIEAFEERE
owners of the Company (71,648) (29,955)
Number of shares R E
2017 2016
—E—+tF —Z—RF
Weighted average number of ordinary &% 3@ & hn#E F 9 &
shares for the purpose of basic loss (REREREBENES)

per share

Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. The
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion/exercise of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds set out in note 32 and options
to subscribe for additional shares set out in note 39
since their conversion/exercise would result in an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

6,053,925,449 4,991,602,228

REBE-_ZT—+FR-_T-—RF+-A
=T HLEFE SE#ERRESR
AEXBEAR - SRETERNFTEL
PRR M FE32PT B AR A AR TTREA]
AR B 25 I M 71 39 P 1) AT SR BB R SR
R BRI IR 1T It Ty R EZ
SR/ TEEHBE T —tF R
E-RFTA=1T—"BILEFENEK
HEXEBEBRREETYE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br R SRR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

He—Z—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
15.  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. BMERGE
Computer,
Furniture, network
Leasehold Plantand  fixturesand  and related Motor
improvement machinery equipment eﬁuipment vehicles Total
Bi-EER  ®M B4R ‘ .
HENEEE  BREREE B3 HERE RE it
HKSO00 K000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00  HKS'000
ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL
COST AR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"E-A—-H 2,025 598 877 234 3,930 7,664
Additions nE 1973 - 1,363 118 3,454
Written-off ki 1 - - (15) - (26)
Exchange adjustment R AR (41) - 27) 1 (33) (100)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=t-H 3,946 598 2,213 338 3,897 10,992
Additions RE 2,804 - 323 15 957 4,099
Written-off iz - - - - (1,685) (1,685)
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary KM — BB L Al
(note 41) e (MizEar) - - 4 - - 4
Exchange adjustment RS 83 - 95 11 11 310
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF
t-A=t-8H 6,833 598 2,635 364 3,290 13,720
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2016 W-E-—"E-A—H 679 598 221 155 924 2,571
Provided for the year ENEE 524 - 162 45 959 1,690
Eliminated on written-off iy Legaks 9) - - 3) - (12)
Exchange adjustment ER AR (18) - (20) 2 (18) (54)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=t-H 1,176 598 363 199 1,865 4,201
Provided for the year FREE 1,411 - 469 48 756 2,684
Eliminated on written-off iy §LoE sk - - - - (1,303) (1,303)
Exchange adjustment kT kY] - 43 3 76 154
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tE
+-A=1+-8 2,619 598 875 250 1,394 5,736
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F
TZA=+-8 4214 - 1,760 114 1,89 7,984
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RE
+-A=1+-H 2,770 - 1,850 139 2,032 6,791
The above items of plant and equipment are XAt 2 B E kR EIE B R E AR AT
depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the FAFHRAESERUNTFERITE
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvement  Over the term of leases HEMEREE REEHA
Plant and machinery 20% 55 B 1 23 20%
Furniture, fixtures 20% R HERRE 20%
and equipment
Computer, network and ~ 20% B BEREERE 20%
related equipment
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE_Z—+F+_-_A=1+—HI=FE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BEYE
2017 2016
—EB-tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
FAIR VALUE NFEE
At 1 January m—H—8 155,457 190,070
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42) HE—FEKEB AR (MaE42) - (9,000)
Net increase in fair value recognised ~ Rz R A FE
in profit or loss B nFEER 2,124 1,809
Reclassified to asset held for sale ENEERELEERE
(note 26) (Pff5E26) - (19,393)
Exchange adjustment PE 3 38 11,592 (8,029)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 169,173 155,457
Net unrealised gain on property FFAGREERELAEMEE
revaluation included in Wk 2 MESHARER
consolidated statement of Wz 58
profit or loss and other
comprehensive income 2,124 1,809

(a)

(0

The fair value of all of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2017 and 2016
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective dates by Asset
Appraisal.

All of the Group's properties interests are held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes and are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The above investment properties are located in
Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan.

(a)

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE4EREFRA T

AEER_ZE—LFR-T—X
F+_A=1+—BZHEREY
ERNFEDNIBREPHEREFHEA
HFTEIT 2 EER

REBZ 2AMERSREEH
WA ARBRE S HIEEATTHE
ZR WRAHERNAGE XD
BRREMEAK-

FRREMECREE PER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+tFt-_A=1—HILFE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

16.

(d)

(e)

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed
and discounted at the market yield expected
by investors for this type of properties. The
market rentals are assessed by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The discount
rate is determined by reference to the yields
derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties and adjusted to
take into account the market expectation from
property investors to reflect factors specific to
the Group's investment properties. Details of
the valuation techniques and assumptions are
discussed below.

There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties located in
Taiwan with the fair value of approximately
HK$21,359,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$19,691,000), have been pledged to
a bank to secure the bank borrowing granted
to the Group. Details of bank borrowing are set
out in note 29.

The investment properties located in the
PRC with the fair value of approximately
RMB80,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$96,272,000) (2016: nil) as at 31 December
2017 have been pledged to a bank to secure
the bank borrowing granted to the Group.
Details of bank borrowing are set out in note
29.

As at 31 December 2016, the investment
properties located in Hong Kong with the fair
value of approximately HK$8,750,000 (2017:
Nil), have been pledged to a bank to secure
the bank borrowing granted to the Group. The
property was released upon repayment of the
bank borrowing. Details of bank borrowing are
set out in note 29.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ REFRA 7
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(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16.

(i) Details of the Group’s investment properties
and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as

follows:

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-_T—t&+-A=t+—HIEE
BEMF (&)

()

ERAEER T —+FER T
—NFF+ZA=Z+—HZREY
EULEBRATFESHERNZF
BT

Fair value as at
31 December

RTt=-ZA=+—-HWAF¥E

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZT—KRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET
Investment properties URBENREME
located in Hong Kong (DERE AR

(categorised as Level 2) 9,100 8,750
Investment properties URPEBREME
located in the PRC (DERE_FH)

(categorised as Level 2) 99,833 96,334
Investment properties URPEBREDE
located in the PRC (DBABBE=HH)

(categorised as Level 3) 38,881 30,682
Investment properties URBENREME
located in Taiwan (DBAEBE=HH)

(categorised as Level 3) 21,359 19,691

169,173 155,457

There was no transfer between levels of fair value

hierarchy during the year.

FARFESRPILELRI RS-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of the investment properties as at
31 December 2017 and 2016 are determined (in

16. REWE (&)

TEREHRREVER _ZT—LFER-F

—RNET-A=+—HORTFEZEE
TENER (LERGEERAREH

particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used): ABE) -
Relationship of
key inputs and
Significant significant
Fair value Fair value as at Valuation technique and unobservable unobservable
hierarchy 31 December 2017 key inputs inputs inputs to fair value
ATENIERA
HEAREBEN
RZB-tF+=B=1-8 BERER FEBRN ERBAREZE
DTEZER HATE TERARE EXBARE HEE
Investment Properties located in Level 2 HK$9,100,000 (2016: HK$8,750,000) Income approach - by reference to N/A N/A
Hong Kong capitalised income derived from existing
tenancies based on prevailing market
rents and the reversionary potential of
the properties
IR EENRENE FZ8H 9,100,000 ¢ WNE-BLEZERROTERSHRE TEA TER
(ZZ—73%:8,750,00037T) BPAEEHERPUARZENZS
BHEN
Investment Properties located in PRC Level 2 RMB83,270,000 (Equivalent to Income approach - by reference to N/A N/A
approximately HK$99,833,000) capitalised income derived from existing
(2016: RMBB86,690,000 (Equivalent to tenancies based on the prevailing market
approximately HK$96,334,000)) rents and the reversionary potential of
the properties
fri IR ENE FZ8H AR¥83,270,0007 (1HERH WNE-BLEZERROTERSHRE TEA TER

Investment Properties located in PRC Level 3

99,833,000%7T) (ZT—75:
NE#86,690,0007 (HERD
96,334,000%7T) )

RMB32,430,000 (Equivalent to
approximately HK$38,881,000)

EPIEENAAMARZENED
EIRES

Income approach - by reference to
capitalised income derived from existing

Adjusted prevailing
market rents

The higher the prevailing
market rent, the lower

(2016: RMB27,610,000 (Equivalent to tenancies and the reversionary potential the fair value
approximately HK$30,682,000)) of the properties
fri et IR ENE F=8H ARM32,430,0007 (1HERH WNE-B2ZREAPAEANERAY ERERGTEES ROTEESES

Investment Properties located in Taiwan ~ Level 3

38,881,000%70) (ZT— 75 :
AE#27,610,0007 (HERD
30,682,000 7T) )

NTD80,000,000 (Equivalent to
approximately HK$21,359,000)

WARZENZNDHE

Income approach - by reference to
capitalised income derived from existing

Adjusted prevailing
market rents

ARTEE

The higher the prevailing
market rent, the lower

(2016: NTD79,400,000 (Equivalent to tenancies and the reversionary potential the fair value
approximately HK$19,691,000)) of the properties
I BNRENE F=8H #16%80,000,0007 (FHE A WNE-B2ZREEPAELANEAY ERERGTEES ROTEESES

21,359,000%70) (Z2—7~E:
#14%79,400,0007 (HERD
19,691,000%7T) )
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. ]ﬁﬁ%% (,%Fé)
The reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements REMEE =G AT EFEREEHER
of investment properties on recurring basis is as s~ YHBE -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—XRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At beginning of the year RFEH) 50,373 52,135
Exchange adjustment PE 3 35 4,146 (1,402)
Net increase (decrease) in fair value PRIERMER A FEE N
recognised in profit or loss CRA) #58 5,721 (360)
At end of the year RER 60,240 50,373

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
the net increase in fair value recognised in profit
or loss of approximately HK$5,721,000 (2016: net
decrease of approximately HK$360,000) are included
in increase in fair value of investment properties, net.
Included in the net increase in fair value is amount of
approximately HK$2,124,000 (2016: HK$1,809,000)
that is attributable to the unrealised gain relating to
investment properties held by the Group at the end of
the reporting period.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B ¥ £ & GR A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

17. GOODWILL 17. BE
2017 2016
—=E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
COosT B
At 1 January w—A—H 22,819 19,322
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries B UK B A R E L
(note 41) (MI5E41) 775 3,497
At 31 December R+—HA=+—H 23,594 22,819
IMPAIRMENT VEREE]
At 1 January R—H—H (15,354) (908)
Impairment loss recognised FRERNBERBE
during the year (3,968) (14,446)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (19,322) (15,354)
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December wR+=ZA=+—8H 4,272 7,465
Impairment loss is recognised after the assessment of FEBERAATEE G lko4sE
the recoverable amount, being the value in use, made (EME FABE)EER-

by the directors’ of the Company.
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

GOODWILL (continued) 17. BE(8B)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill EETRENSR FXREEEERE
with indefinite useful lives set out above have been AR EDESRE=ATEHNIRS
allocated to three individual CGUs, comprising one EAEBEM BIEERERESSEN—
subsidiary group in the trading of grocery food EB AR BEEREEERES S
products segment, one subsidiary group in the trading —4BM B AT LIRS RGN —
of consumables and agricultural products and one NE R ZE—+FRZE—RF+=
company in provision of financial services. The carrying A=+—H ESEx%ZSEAmE
amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2017 and BEEEmT
2016 allocated to these units are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
Trading of grocery food products BHRRE S
— YIHE Group (Note a) —HA%E (HiFa) — 3,968
Trading of consumables and HEMMRERED
agricultural products — Inno-Bag —KEIRRE (M5Eb)
(Note b) 3,497 3,497
Provision of financial services R e rR%
— China AF Corporate —FEREMEERBR AR
Finance Limited ([FERE]
(“China AF”) (Note ¢) (B Ec) 775 -
4,272 7,465

Notes:

€)] During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group recognised an impairment loss of
approximately HK3,968,000 (2016: HK$14,446,000)
in relation to goodwill arising on the acquisition of
YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited and its subsidiary
(collectively referred as "YIHE Group”), which is
engaged in trading of grocery food products. The
management assessed the recoverable amount to be
nil (2016: HK$8,660,000) which was due to cesation
of the business during the year ended 31 December
2017. Accordingly approximately HK$3,968,000 was
fully impaired.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE4EREFRA T

(@ HEZ_ZT—+tF+=ZA=+—HBL
FE AEERRBESCELRE
BRARLEMBAR (SKBAIES
@) (HRFEHRMAE D) R
7 22 350 (B /5 18 493,968,000 7T ( —
T—X4F 14,446,000 7T ) - EIEE
FETRESEAT (ZT—AF:
8,660,000 7T) r HRNBE-ZT—+
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REM BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHEz_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

17. GOODWILL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
recoverable amount of YIHE Group has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The value in use calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 4-year period, and a
discount rate of 14.93%. The cash flows beyond
the 4-year period are extrapolated using a steady
2.5% growth rate. The growth rate is based on the
general inflation rate for the year 2016. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for YIHE Group
is also based on the budgeted sales and expected
gross margins of the YIHE Group. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the YIHE Group to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of YIHE Group.

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
recoverable amount of Inno-Bag has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The recoverable amount is based on certain similar
key assumptions. The value in use calculations uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-years period,
and a discount rate of 17.52% (2016: 18.16%). The
cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2016: 2.5%) growth rate. The
growth rate is based on the general inflation rate
for the years 2017. Cash flow projections during
the budget period for Inno-Bag is also based on
the budgeted sales and expected gross margins of
Inno-Bag. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Inno-
Bag to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
Inno-Bag.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. GOODWILL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

The recoverable amount of China AF has been
determined on the basis of a value in use
calculation. The recoverable amount is based on
certain similar key assumptions. The value in use
calculations uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-years period, and a discount rate
of 14.66%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
growth rate. The growth rate is based on the
general inflation rate for the years 2017. Cash
flow projections during the budget period
for China AF are also based on the budgeted
sales and expected gross margins of China
AF. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of China AF to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of China AF.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
17. BE (&)
PieE: (&)

(© HEERENARESERERE
BEFtEMERE - Al Rl & LR
E?xEMf'%JE““ EREEDN

BENEREREBREMMLE
Zﬂiﬁﬁﬁjﬁ%ggmiﬁimgfﬁ
B R ATIRE14.66% M B A
FHOREREBKARVEEREX
3%IELHEE - RESERETHDER

E—tFHN—RBRE - E
f1=.EA%E%,HHWE’ﬁﬁﬁm%i‘fﬁiﬁﬂ
TERPEEENNREHEE X
TRHAEN = - BIREAR(E - E%
EREFOEMSEAREESH TG
BYPHEERARAEERSEH
RIEFHKEIRAEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

18.  INTANGIBLE ASSET 18. EIEE
HK$'000
FET
COST XA
At 1 January 2016, at 31 December 2016 and ~ HRZ=ZZT—F—H—H
1 January 2017 RZE-—RF+ZA=+—HK
—_E—+tF—H—H 6,416
6,416
Written off 1 55 (6,416)
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—tF+-A=+—H -
AMORTISATION i
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-—RF—H—H 133
Charge for the year REEZH 1,604
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF+-A=+—H 1,737
Charge for the year REEXH 1,604
Eliminated on written off T 18R R ¥ 88 (3,347)
At 31 December 2017 —E—+F+ZA=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2017 —E—t+F+ZHA=+—H -
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF+-A=+—H 4,679
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ARRIEERE BLEEABERER
franchise has finite useful life and is amortised on a B HANWFERNZEGLH#HE -2 =
straight-line basis over 4 years. During the year ended T—+tF+_A=+—BHLFE #HR
31 December 2017, the asset was fully written off due ey | Bl N I NN = R St B
to the expiry of the franchise rights and the directors HRGEFEL BECDEME-

of the Company do not elect to renew with the
counterparties.
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEQTZHER
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—XRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Cost of unlisted investments REtE AT ZIEETIREKA

in associates 69,212 69,212
Share of post-acquisition results SMERERESR 6,601 3,964
75,813 73,176

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE4EREFRA T
Annual Report 2017 —Z —+ & &1



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

BrR5 SRR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEC
19.

T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had

19. RBEQT 2R ()
F—%—tiﬁ_%——$+ A

interests in the following associates: =+—HB KAEERTHBES AT P
Bl
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests
incorporation/ or participating
establishment/  Class of shares held by Proportion of
Name of entity Form of entity operation shares held the Group voting power held Principal activity
HEL/RY/ FEEFEERERRED
ERLR ERpA aEny friehe 285 saRBzILH FrERERLA IERH
217 2016 2017 2016
23—t ZE5F ZR-tf B0
Direct associates
ERBELT
FDC Limited (note a) Limited Liability Samoa Ordinary shares 49% 49% 49% 49%  Inactive
FDC Limited (Fizka) BRAA BED EER 49% 49% 49% 9% BER
SZE (IR RABHERAA Liited Liability PRC Paid up capital 40% 40% 40% 40%  Investment holding
Zhonghe Huaxia (Beijing) Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Befing HX")
(note b)
AEE (LR RARNARLT ERAT hE BRER 40% 40% 40% W% RERR
(HEREE]) (Eb)
Gold Wide Holdings Limited (note d) Limited Liability HK Ordinary Shares 25% 25% 25% 25%  Investment holding
SUEEERAR (Mitd) ERAA 3 EEk 5% 5% 5% 5% REZR
Indirect associates
BRHELT
AHE (XR)REBRAT Liited Liability PRC Paid up capital 2% 2% 2% 2% Investment holding
Zhonghe Xinnong (Beijing) Investment (note ¢)
Co., Ltd. ("Befing XN") (note b)
AR (LR RERRAT BRAA hE BRER 0% 2% 2% D% RERR
(BERER]) (stb) (Btkc)
KRTAHENEEEARAT Liited Liability PRC Paid up capital 2% 2% 2% 2% Properties development
Fuyu Zhonghe Xinnong Market (note ¢)
Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Fuyu”) (note b)
RAhARRTRERRRAT BRAA hE BRER 0% 2% 2% 0% NEER
[a)) () (Btkc)

LFEFR
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

(d)

FDC Limited was inactive since its incorporation, the
carrying amount attributable to the Group is not
significant.

The English translation of the company name is for
identification purpose only. The official names of
these companies are in Chinese.

Fuyu is wholly owned by Beijing XN and 55%
shareholding of Beijing XN is owned by Beijing HX,
accordingly, the Group effectively holds 22% equity
interest in Beijing XN and Fuyu.

On 6 October 2016, the Group acquired 25%
equity interest in Gold Wide Holdings Limited
from an independent third party, for an aggregate
of 263,636,364 ordinary shares of the Company
allotted and issued and HK$1 cash consideration.
After the acquisition, Gold Wide Holdings Limited
becomes one of the associates of the Group and has
been accounted for using equity method.

19.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B ¥ £ & GR A 7

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE
REBE QT 2ERE (&)

BT

(a) FDC Limited B 5 fift 5k 32 LA 2R 30 4% %
% MASEEEREEL TEKX-

(b) PDEIBEHOEEEEEER - Z
ERRINEH BB AR TR

(© KRB R AR - ML 508
BRIRIE REBHAS5% K E
ERFAEIE R RKRRMN22%%E

(d) RZE—RF+ANE AEEH—
BB B = FRIESLEEBRAF

25%HE %S A $£263,636,3640% AN A
AEERE B R ET URUE
ﬁfﬁéﬁ{% R 2L EEE

NEIKBAEEE R —MEE R
ﬂ CRERERIEAR.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.
The summarised financial information in respect of the
material associate of the Group and is accounted for

using equity method is set out below:

REE QT 2R (8)
A R R AR £ EH A A AR

MBERBEHIMT

31 December

31 December

2017 2016

—E2-tF —T—RF

+=A +Z—A

Beijing HX and its subsidiaries TREEREKBEAR =t+-—H =t+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Current assets MENE E 332,517 300,832
Non-current assets EMEBEE 227 334
Current liabilities nRBEE (153,127) (123,019)
Non-current liabilities Bl =K (11,625) (11,200)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR IR SR A 2 (62,738) (60,814)
Net assets BEFE 105,254 106,133
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

BZE HE

—E—+tF —E-RF

+=A +=A

=+—H =+—H

LFEE IEFE

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET AT

Revenue Wz - -

Loss for the year and REEBEBRAFE
total comprehensive expenses FHRAXBE

for the year (877) (3,425)

Annual Report 2017 —Z— &1
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.
The reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented above to the carrying amount

of the interests in associates are set out below:

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—tF+-A=+—AILFE
REBE QT 2ERE (&)
EXE2FMBERBERNEERE
ERREEZ BHREHNT

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF b ANCS
+=A +=A
=+—H =t+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Net assets of the associates REEELEE QAN

attributable to the Group BEFE 105,254 106,133
Proportion of the Group's 40% REERIEREE K

ownership interest in Hff B AR 240%

Beijing HX and its subsidiaries Fr B R m I 42,102 42,453
Goodwill G 855 855
Carrying amount of the Group's AEBERIEREER

interest in Beijing HX HIfB ARz = REE

and its subsidiaries 42,957 43,308

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

Gold Wide Holdings Limited +=A +=A
(“Gold Wide") S EEERAT ([£34]) =+-—A =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Non-current assets FERBEE 121,198 109,226
Current assets MBEE 23 85
Current liabilities mENBE (275) (315)
Net assets BEFE 120,946 108,996

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE4EREFRA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

REE QT zEm (F&)

From

6 October

2016 to

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

B-ZT—RF

+AXBEZE

—E—tF A

+=A +=A

=+—H =t+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Revenue Wz - -

Profit for the year/period and RNEE /BT K&

total comprehensive income AEE/HEEERSEE

for the year/period 11,950 1,362

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
+=A +=A
=t+—8 =+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHE T
Net assets of the associate REEpELE S A FR
attributable to the Group BEFE 120,946 108,996
Proportion of the Group's 25% REBRELZ25% A
ownership interest in Gold Wide HEz 30,237 27,249
Goodwill B 2,619 2,619
Carrying amount of the Group's REBR oL EREE
interest in Gold Wide 32,856 29,868

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ REFR A7
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REEEQNT 2R (&)
The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Gold Wide

R-ZE-RFRBESLEENEHESS

in 2016 are set out below: mr
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred (note 34(c)) B EARE (M5E34(0)) - 29,528
Less: net assets acquired TR R E E (26,909)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W ELS M EE 2,619
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AIftEERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—XRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
At cost: RN -
Unlisted equity investments FELTIRAIRE
(note a and b) (MfsEakFizEb) 41,616 41,616
Less: Accumulated impairment losses  J& : 2FHREE B (500) (500)
41,116 41,116
At fair value: BAFE:
Listed equity investments EARARE
(note c and d) (M sEc kI sEd) 18,064 17,662
59,180 58,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHz—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

20.

Notes:

(@

(9]

(d)

(e)

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
HK$500,000 represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by a private entity incorporated
in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. As at 31 December
2015, it had been fully impaired.

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
RMB37,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$41,116,000) represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

The listed equity investments listed in Hong Kong
with the fair value of approximately HK$17,662,000
as at 31 December 2016, have been pledged to a
bank to secure the bank borrowing granted to the
Group. The listed equity investments was released
upon repayment of the bank borrwoing. Details of
bank borrowing are set out in note 29.

The listed equity investments listed in Hong Kong
with the fair value of approximately HK$18,064,000
as at 31 December 2017 have been pledged to a
financial institution for borrowing granted to the
Group. Details of bank borrowing are set out in note
29.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group recognised a fair value gain of approximately
HK$402,000 (2016: HK$4,662,000) in the investment
revaluation reserve.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE L REFR AT
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AHHERE (8)

S

(a)

JE_E 1 R AN & 49500,00078 JTHE A
BB AL E T EEITHIEL
MRAES 2 IE  HiRKANER R
SHIRA BT REBEBF 2 LT A
REBATEGBTHEEIFT R W
RRRIEERBEDNFERE FAT
E-RZE—HF+=A=+—H
HEB2HRE

I EMARAZE L ARE37,000,000
7T (& 1 4941,116,000/8 7T ) 5 7
—MR R E M RIS BT
HFEETRAZ A 2 RE  HiElR
BERHRE AR RO AESIER =
T ERA R A EGFNEBEEIES
K WMARREETRAEAFERAE

EETE

REB LM EMERARE KT
—RNF+ZA=+—HAFEHAE
17,662,000 7T B T —ERT
VEBE TS ERTTE KA E IR - 1k
I8 AR E B R IRTTIE EE N
& AERR o SRITIE A FHIB B VI F P
529 -

R-B—+E+-A=+—0 K&
B BT ATF{EX)18,064,0008 T2
IR E BRI S RIS AR
FAREEEER - RITERFBIHNRM
29 °

R-EBE—+E+-_A=+—HIE
B AEEREEEHFEERERAT
{BEURZE47402,00058 7 (=T —7~F:
4,662,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FEWERR K HAMEKRRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—XRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Trade receivables JE U BR X 5,570 5,424
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREAE (302) -
5,268 5,424
Prepayment to suppliers Mt e TR AT K 4,333 6,008
Deposits (note a) e (Mita) 41,283 14,250
Other receivables (note b) Hofth U B (MisEb) 3,550 11,900
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T REREE (1,006) (1,006)
43,827 25,144
53,428 36,576

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade

and other receivables.

N6 (B30 8 it PR A R R N HL A FE MR IR

FrA TR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
21.

—TAFTA=TRHILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@

During the year ended 31 December 2017, included
in the deposit of approximately HK$9,401,000
(2016: HK$11,101,000) was paid for the purpose
of acquisition of equity interests in three subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong and the PRC. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, one of the
subsidiaries was acquired mounted to HK$1,700,000.
Details please refer to note 41.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, included
in the deposits of approximately HK$4,168,000 was
paid for the purpose of additional acquisition of
equity interests in two subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong and the PRC. However, subsequent to
the year ended 31 December 2017, such investments
were terminated and the amount will be repaid in
accordance with the repayment schedule.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, included
in the deposits of approximately HK$20,000,000
was paid for the purpose of acquisition of additional
equity interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong. Pursuant to the
supplementary agreement, the completion has been
extended from 17 January 2018 to 17 January 2019.
Details as disclosed in announcement dated on 17
January 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, included
in the deposit of approximately HK$5,814,000 was
paid for the purpose for acquisition of an investment
property. The transaction was not completed as at
the report date.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE L REFR AT
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21.

FEWBRA R H b EU FRIE (8])

BRE

(a) HE-_ZT—tHF+-_A=+—HItHF
€ 5T A4 499,401,0008 7T (—F

— 754 £ 11,101,00058 7T) Ty A W B
R=ERE S R B A H B
NElZBRENEN BEZT—tF
+ZA=+—BLFE HF—HK
BA R EYEE A1,700,00058 7T © #F 16
LA

(E_T—tF+_A=1+—HILF
€ 5T A S 494,168,000/ T T A
RHEESNR I R I &8 R P B s Ak
YR BARMRE AT BHEC
E—+F+-_A=t+—-HILEE%"
ZEREBRI BRFEBREE
HETEIEE-

HE-_Z—+F+-A=-+—HLHF
€ - B X 1#920,000,0005 7T 5H A IR
CHARBBESSEMKINIES
BB R BRSNS - AR IB T
H#oERER-_E-NFE—-A++tA

ERE-Z-NAF-A++LH-FE
REMAS-_ZE—N\F-AT+LANR
oI55 o

BE-_T—tFt-_A=1+—BL#HF

E - B #95,814,0008 05T AfR S
REWBIREME NS HHRS
KT °



21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

()

During the year ended 31 December 2016, include in
the other receivable is the amount of RMB7,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,557,000) hold
by a third party custodian, which was related to the
disposal of investment property held by the Group.
The disposal was completed on 22 March 2017.
Details of the transaction are disclosed in Note 26.

The credit period granted to the Group’'s trade
customers generally ranges from 0 days to 90 days
(2016: 0 days to 90 days). The ageing analysis of
trade receivables presented based on the invoice

21.

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-Z—tFt-A=t—AILEE
FE Uk B SR 2 HL th FE WU IR (48

BfeE: (#8)

(b) HE-Z-—R"E+-A=1+—HuL=HE
B EtERRBEEREZARE
AFBHARET7,700,0007T (HEER
#98,557,000/8 L) - HEHEAEH
R EMEHESEOR -2 —+
FZAZ+ZBERR %R P2
BRI EE26 ©

(© AEBETESEFZEER KRN
FOHZE0H (ZZT—RF:08E90
B BURERRRERRBEER
HH (EEAE R A FERR B HIAE ) P

dates, which approximates the respective revenues SR IEBROTMT
recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period,
which is as follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF T AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 2,082 3,281
31 to 90 days 31£290H 1,146 1,923
Over 90 days H3E90H 2,040 220
5,268 5,424

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance were debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,150,000 (2016: HK$1,204,000) which were
past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group had not provided for impairment loss.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B ¥ £ & GR A 7

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H K&K
SHEREFREHBERRA
{E#92,150,0008 L (=& — R &F:
1,204,000 70) 2 &% BRAEREK
REHREH  AEBEHAREZE
BRIEL R BB 1B B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

21.

(d)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of

21.

FEWUBR R I HLAth FE W kTR (4]

ffeE: (#8)

d) EBZREARREENZEHEIIN

trade receivables is set out below: T
2017 2016
—g-t& ~T-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
At the beginning of the year TAE 4] = -

Impairment losses recognised B 5 EWRIE

on trade receivables D EZREER 302 -
At the end of the year RER 302 -

Included in the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are individually impaired trade receivables
which is considered uncollectible with an aggregate
balance of approximately HK$302,000 which are due
to long outstanding.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are

FFAE S REKFERERENERE
BEE 5 REUGRIERE AR E
48 6558 49302,00058 7T 1M R (B I8 -

(€  BEBERBEZEERIRE DN

past due but not impaired is as follows: P
2017 2016
—E—+t#F —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 352 1,164
Over 30 days BiE30H 1,798 40
2,150 1,204

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience and the financial standings of these
customers, the directors of the Company believe that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there have not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(e)

(M

(continued)

The Group’s neither past due nor impaired
trade receivables mainly represent sales made to
creditworthy customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of
deposit, other receivables and prepayments is set out
below:

21.

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_ZT—+F+_A=1+T—HLFE
FE Uk B SR e HL th B WU IR (48
PieE: (&)

(e) (#&)
7R £ [ 4 760 B K I SR (B < IR
REIBREMOPL |ERLE 8
REZEPIERZIHERE-

U] BE R E A YRR K TR R
REBESHINWT

BZ*

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

At the beginning of the year F 4 1,006 3,366
Written-off during the year PR 8l - (2,360)
At the end of the year FKR 1,006 1,006

Included in the allowance for impairment of
deposit, other receivables and prepayments are
individually impaired with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$1,006,000 (2016: HK$1,006,000).
The individually impaired other receivables are
recognised based on the credit history and the
financial condition of its debtors or counterparties,
such as financial difficulties or default in payments,
and current market conditions.

The Group's deposit and other receivables that are

AT A1,006,0008 T (- &
— 754 11,006,000 7T ) 2 {E Bl 2 8
BEFAZS  HEhEIGRIERIER
B2 RERE SEDRELME
WHIBEEREEHS AR ZEFHE
FAFE 2 R B AR 50 (41 2m B 7 R 8 o
NFGEX) M B BT T LARERR -

(9 AEBEAEBEE
)

denominated in currencies other than the functional SN EE BN IRS & L4t e Uk SR I8

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out BRI ENE
below:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

RMB AR 4.364 3,738

EUR BT = 73

usb e - 26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_ZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 22. BWEREFE
2017 2016
—F-tF —TAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
Fixed-rate loan and & T A R o) e B R A
interest receivables
- Secured — B 44,709 42,946
- Unsecured — A 9,174 10,461
53,883 53,407
Less: allowance for doubtful debts R AR (4,149) (4,149)
49,734 49,258
Analysed as BT R
Current asset (within one year) REEE(—FN) 48,059 45,444
Non-current asset EREBEE 1,675 3,814

Notes: B aE -

(a) The secured loan and interest receivables were past (a) AL EIR - B PERES L S
due nor impaired as of the end of the reporting BHASHE - KRARIEER A KE
period, as in the opinion of the directors of the BEIAR BB R 2 E Yk E -
Company that the outstanding amount can be fully
recoverable by the collateral.

(b) The loan receivables are entered into with (b) W E R EB I B =R (T
independent third parties except for those mentioned Mt EE(e) R Bt 3 (F )}EﬁL%%é/}ﬂ\) s A
in notes (e) and (f) below, with contractual maturity WERANERE —F (T —NF:
within six months to one year (2016: six months NEARAE—F) AEEBIBEHE
to one year). The Group seeks to maintain tight B AR - B o s B pE Uk
control over its loan and interest receivables in order EHEHERMRRE DB EER
to minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ R ERE o
financial positions.

(@] The secured loan and interest receivables are secured (©) A R SR RS Ty LA A
by the unlisted shares, properties of the borrowers ZIELTHIRG  WE R EAEREER
and personal guarantee. o

(d) As at 31 December 2017, the current fair value (d) R-F—+F+—-_HA=+—H" K

of collaterals held by the Group is approximately
HK$100,753,000 (2016: HK$56,156,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(e)

As at 31 December 2017, included in the carrying
amount is approximately HK$2,400,000 being a
renewal of the existing loan to the former director
of the Company (2016: HK$2,400,000). The
maximum amount outstanding for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$2,400,000
(2016: HK$2,400,000). The amount is secured by the
unlisted shares in a PRC entity held by the former
director of the Company, subject to a fixed interest
rate of 8% (2016: 8%) per annum and is repayable
within a year from the date of loan granted.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the carrying
amount is approximately HK$5,026,000 being a loan
to the non-controlling interests of the Group (2016:
HK$6,312,000). The amount is secured by personal
guarantee and subject to a fixed interest rate of 7%
(2016: 7%) per annum and is repayable within 36
months from the date of loan granted.

The aging analysis presented based on the date of
loan granted to customers and their contractual
maturity dates at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—tFt-A=t—AILEE

22. ERERKRFE (F)

BfeE: (#8)

(e) R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—H "
ARG — R EEELENEBEER
FK#92,400,0008 0 (=T — N F:
2,400,000/ 7T ) B 5T ABRTEE ° A #L
EoE—+E+_A=+—HIE
B KEEZHESE L A2,400,000
B (ZZE— /N :2,400,000/%
TL) e & RHARABIEEAIEF
B EEE 2 I ETRMIEEIR  BIZE
FEEFEFEE% (ZZ—RNF:8%)A
BREZFREBESE—FREE-

() R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—H "
REBFETERBERESIELZLH
5,026,000 T ER (=T —NF:
6,312,000 L) AT ABREE 7% &
EHEAERERTF BEEMNEA
7% (ZZT—"F:7%) WERER
BHEBBE=F+EAREE-

(9 RRERRRERT PR L ERBE
RESHBEA M2 R RS ITI
T

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ZE-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —FR 48,059 45,444
After 1 year ZR—F -MEAN

but within two year 1,675 3,269
After two years ZRMF - AFA

but within five years - 545

49,734 49,258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. ERERERANE (F)
Notes: (continued) BoeE: (&)
(h) The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate loan (h) N2 [ T B TR U S 2K B T Be A ) SR [

receivables to interest rate risks and their contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

ok B A KHIRETIAT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fixed-rate loan receivables: TFEEWKRER:
Within 1 year —FR 48,059 45,444
After one year but within — FERERERN
two years 1,675 3,269
After two years but within MEBRERFA
five years - 545
49,734 49,258
(i) The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal 0 AEEBRERRKNERENENBERER R

to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s loan and
interest receivables are as follows:

(HERRAHNE) Z@8EWT

2017 2016
—E—t&F —T—REF
Effective interest rate: R AR
Fixed-rate loan and interest BEEMENERERRFE
receivables 7% — 18% 7% — 18%
0] The Group's loan and interest receivables that are 0] RSB BRI EE AINEET

denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

1B By 72N 5 B 8 W B 3R R N8 1 40
T~

below:
2017 2016
—E—t&F —T—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
RMB AR 28,921 27,368
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(k) The movement in the allowance for impairment of
loan and interest receivables is set out below:

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

22. EWERERE (&)

BfeE: (#8)

(0 ERERRASREREZZDEG
mF

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZTE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHBT
At the beginning and FYRFR
end of the year 4,149 4,149

Included in the allowance for impairment of loan
and interest receivables are individually impaired loan
and interest receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$4,149,000 (2016: HK$4,149,000).
The individually impaired loan and interest receivables
are recognised based on the credit history and the
financial condition of its debtors or counterparties,
such as financial difficulties or default in payments,
and current market conditions.

LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE

As at 31 December 2017, Union World International
Group Holdings Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, had a loan balance
of RMB20,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,198,000) (2016: RMB2,400,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,667,000)) to Beijing HX and
the accrued interest of the loan is approximately
HK$1,658,000 (2016: HK$106,000). The amount
was unsecured, fixed interest bearing at a fixed rate
of 18% (2016:12%) per annum and repayable on
demand.

FEURE R F SRERED AL
K%BHI4,149,000/8 T (=T —RF:
4,149,000 7T ) MERIE BIERE K E
AT B - {E BB RE B U E 2 A
BERBEEFAXRZEFHEARE
£ R FSARIE ({540 B 75 TR £ sk A+ 3R
B RB AT T IAER

23. MEEARELER
R-EB—+F+_F=1+—H A2QA
MEE2ENB A RBMAMBERIZERER A
AMEREERLE —EEREHRAR
#20,400,0007T (48 & 7 4923,198,000
Br) (ZE—7RF: AR2,400,000
7T (FBER#12,667,000/87T) ) - ZEE
FREFEET R B 4 41,658,0008 7T (=&
— 754 1 HK$106,000) » B st A& R - 3%
CREDNVERR REEFHE18% (=
T—RF:12% )i EAREREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
23.

24.

—TAFTA=TRHILFE

LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 23. MEEATEHER(E)
The Group’s loan to associate that is denominated Ui EE T RIS B AE
in currency other than the functional currency of the ErBEARIELE T EZEFNMT
relevant group entities is set out below:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT T
RMB AR 24,856 2,773
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24, BAFEFAEBRZLBEE

PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016
—E2—-tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Listed securities: LEES
— Equity securities listed in —REB LT ZRAE S
Hong Kong, at fair value RAF¥E 40,328 79,269

As at 31 December 2017, the listed equity
investments listed in Hong Kong with the fair
value of approximately HK$39,598,000 (2016:
HK$71,669,000), have been pledged to a financial
institution to secure the margin loans payable granted
to the Group. Details of margin loans payable are set
out in note 31.

For the valuation method of the financial asset at
FVTPL, please refer to note 36(c).
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R—_E—+F+_A=+—H B
EBF LT LETRAKRE(ATE
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. BITEBRES
Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on ﬁﬁﬁ,i SR EZRIESHETEHESH
daily bank deposit rates. i=Ep
The Group’s bank balances and cash that are REBUABEEETE 2 INeE AN
denominated in currencies other than the functional M EBLIENIETES LIRS ES W
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out T:
below:
2017 2016
—E2-tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
usD ETT 1M 14
EUR BT - 25
ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 26. DEARBEHEZEE

On 3 December 2016, the Group entered into and
signed a sales and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of one of the
investment properties held by the Group located
in the PRC with fair value of RMB17,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$19,447,000) as at
31 December 2016. The sales proceed is amounted
to RMB17,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,447,000) while the sales less cost of disposal
is amounted to RMB17,451,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$19,393,000). As at 31 December
2016, that property was classified as asset held for sale
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Deposit of approximately RMB8,600,000 (equivalent
to HK$9,557,000) had been received from the
buyer and included in trade and other payables as
at 31 December 2016. The remaining amount of
RMB8,900,000 (equivalent to HK$9,890,000) had
been further settled by the buyer upon the completion
of transaction.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BE4EREFRA T

RZE—ARF+—A=RA AEEHA
—ZBUE =R NWHEE —HEE
ik vLAﬁ%NilﬁﬁhﬁEGEﬂh—
BERRPENERENEFER=_T—N
F+_A=Z+—HORATFEAARE
17,500,0007T (48 & 7 #919,447,000/%
TL) ° SHE TS FRIELX AR % 17,500,000
7T (FE R #19,447,00078 7T ) » $HE R
HE KA A AR #17,451,0000T (HBE
R #919,393,000 7C) c R =T — R F
TZA=Z+—H ZVEERKRETH
MAKRP O ERFBIEHECEE -

e ARES,600,0000T (HE R
9,557,000 7T ) B B B 7 WHU R EF AR
TE-RFET_A=1+—BHENER
Ko EAh &~ 3R IE - 8258 A KR %68,900,000
7T (1875 129,890,000/ L) BN X 5 5%
KEMBEH#E—FTITe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

26. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 26. S MEAIZ/ELHEEE (F)
Of the total deposit received, amount of REWEIZ S 4a%EF - ARH7,700,000
RMB7,700,000 (approximately HK$8,557,000) was 7t (498,557,000 T )W XN TBHR FE =7
held by a third party custodian on behalf of the Group AEAREREFRZE WZLETA
so that such amount was included in deposit and B REMEWRZRIBEIERK S EHKIE
other receivables, and had been returned to the Group RIBAREER o
after the completion of the transaction.
The transaction was completed on 14 March 2017 ZRXGN_E—LF=A+MHTHK
with no gain or loss arose from this transaction. B S HEmELFINZEER-
27 . TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ENERIFREMESATIE
2017 2016
—E2-tF ZZT—XF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables J& 1~ 5RI8 151 970
Other payables H fth fE T 5018 35,650 19,575
35,801 20,545

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

TRARBEHRREZXZAHNE R
AT BRI Z AR AT

2017 2016

—g—tF —TAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T

0 to 30 days 0&30H 151 970

The average credit period on purchases of goods
is 15 days (2016:14 days). The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit time frame.

As at 31 December 2016, included in other payables
was an amount of approximately RMB8,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,557,000) (2017:
nil), which represented the deposit received from
the buyer for the purpose of disposal of investment
properties held by the Group. The disposal was
completed during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Details as disclosed in note 26.
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BEEmZFHEERR/ISA(ZF
SE14R) o AKERBETRERE
IR - ARELR B FE A BRI 5 B 1

B
i

i
sk
>3.P‘

~7

Tff

>F

=D

—T-RE+-A=+—H8 it AH
FE PR IE - BB A R 88,600,000
7T (A& 1 499,557,000 T (— T —+
F:8))zeBHEUMEF2ZE B
MALHERAEEMBREME - LES
HERBE-_E—+tF+=-HA=1—H
IEFETEMN - FBER M 2685 -



27 .

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, included in other payables
of approximately HK$23,000,000 represents the
amount payable to the bondholder upon maturity of a
convertible bond.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
27. BENARMRKRHEMENSTE (&)
RoE—LE+-A=+—B HAK
b, FE& 1< 3k T8 4 423,000,000 7t 1H &
RAMBEREH B S BN ES A AN
Ea

28. FENFERBRAERRIE

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and ERAZEERE 28 REIRERE

repayable on demand. Bo
BORROWINGS 29. &%

2017 2016

=E—tF _—T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Bank borrowings, secured (note a) RITEF I (H3Ta) 9,233 19,181

Other borrowings, unsecured (note b) ~ E A {E 5K - M (FI5Eb ) 10,000 -

Other borrowings, secured (note c) HmER FEA (M) 47,956 -

57,956 -

Total borrowing AR 67,189 19,181
Notes: =g

(a) At 31 December 2017, the secured bank (a) BN GE16FT IR R T —F

borrowing of approximately NTD34,577,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,233,000) (2016:
NTD37,022,000 (equivalent to HK$9,181,000)) is
secured by a mortgage over an investment property
of the Group located in Taiwan with carrying
amount of NTD80,000,000 (2016: NTD79,400,000),
equivalent to approximately HK$21,359,000 (2016:
HK$19,691,000) as disclosed in note 16. The bank
borrowing carried a saving deposit rate plus a fixed
spread of 0.62% per annum in the first year, 0.87%
per annum in the second year and 0.97% per annum
from the third to fifteen year.

+ZA=+—8”" ﬁﬁﬁfﬁmaﬁ
4% & #34,577,0007T (HE R
9,233,000 7T (ZZE—RF : % a
#£37,022,0007T - FHE 7 499,181,000
BIL) VI AEBEMR e ENRE
VI3 - AR E (B A% & 180,000,000
T (ZF —75%F - #1 & %79,400,000
JC) R E A #921,359,0008 L (=&

— 754 £19,691,00058 7T ) fE 1R B K
o RITERIDIRBEE T KA EMNE
EBEFHE FHEEFH062% "
FEZFROSI%EE="ZE+HFA
0.97% °

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B ¥4 &GR A 7
Annual Report 2017 —Z —+ & F i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
29.

— =
—=

TtE+ZA=+—HLFE

BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(@

(@)

(continued)

At 31 December 2016, the secured bank borrowing
of HK$10,000,000 (2017: nil) is secured by an
investment property of the Company located in Hong
Kong with fair value of approximately HK$8,750,000
as disclosed in note 16 and the available-for-sale
investment held by the Group with fair value of
approximately HK$17,662,000 as disclosed in Note
20. The bank borrowings were repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2017. The bank borrowing
carried a variable interest rate of HIBOR plus 4% per
annum and repayable within 9 months. The loan is
used for the acquisition of listed equities classified
as available-for-sale investments. The secured bank
borrowings were fully repaid during the year ended
31 December 2017.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had drawn an
unsecured loan of HK$10,000,000 (2016: nil) from
its credit facility with a fixed interest rate of 10% per
annum from a financial institution which was secured
by the listed securities in Hong Kong with fair value
of approximately HK$18,064,000 (2016: nil) as
disclosed in Note 20.

At 31 December 2017, the Group obtained
new loans in the amount of approximately
RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$47,956,000)
(2016: nil) from a bank in PRC. The loans carried
interest at fixed rates of 15.6% per annum and are
secured by the Group’s seven investment properties
located in the PRC with carrying amount of
RMB80,300,000, (equivalent to HK$96,272,000) as
disclosed in Note 16.
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e (&)

S

(a

(%

)

/\
pu:
-

WZE—X"F+_A=+—8 &
AR ER 17 8 310,000,000 7T (==
—tF T)URRRMREEE
BN F{E#8,750,000/8 7T (LN
MizE163ER) RS EF AR
ERE RN FEX17,662,0005 7T (H
BABT TE20FT 5 55 ) (R4 1R o SRAT & 3K
REBEEZZ—tF+=-A=+—H1t
FEEE - RITERDIERBEITH
EFBIZBFREMNA%ET BRI
BANEE -ZEXRAERBSEE
AHEEEREN ETMREAES - B
HIRTEREREBEZ_E—+tF+=
A=Z+—HIEFEEE-

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—08 %%
EEECEmADIRMEEBER
10,000,000 ( = F—"&F : Z) BT
EEFERI0% AW 20T HE
NFE 418,064,000 7T (—ZT—X
FE)RBEBLTERERAN S
BB R IR -

RZE—+tHF+=—A=+—A0 &
SEE—HARPENERITESH
,\/AQ\’JJ\E%4OOOOOOOE($EM
47,956,000 . (=& — <N F:
T)) - EBHIREEF FE15.6%T
B3 R H 163 BB A AL R H
ZAEECHEREWEEER R
H1E A AR #80,300,0007T (HHE R
96,272,000/ 7T ) °



29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—BHLFE

BORROWINGS (continued) 29. EFH(8\)
Notes: (continued) MizE: (&)
(d) Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled (d) ENEmE (ERERBEREZE
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements): HEE =0 DI
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHT
Within one year —FN 58,600 10,595
After one year —F1& MFA
but within two years 656 607
After two years MER - AERA
but within five years 2,062 1,910
After five years hFE 5,871 6,069
67,189 19,181
Carrying amount of borrowings BWmEHARE—FAEED
that is repayable within BRAEREE
one year from the end of
the reporting period 57,956 10,000
Carrying amount of borrowings AREHRE—FAREEEER
that is not repayable within BB SERERERER
one year from the end of (RARBAEFEETIIR)E
the reporting period but contain BEREE
a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 9,233 9,181
Amounts shown under PR R EN B ERFIA
current liabilities 67,189 19,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29.

Notes: (continued)

(e) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest
rate changes is as follows:

ek (&)
Py aE - (4&)

() EEHMEEHOEBMOT :

2017 2016
—E—t&F —F—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F# T FHET
Fixed-rate borrowings (& 7 A A8 X 57,956 -
Variable-rate borrowings FEER 9,233 19,181
67,189 19,181
30. LOAN PAYABLE 30. ENER

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company obtained a loan in the amount of
HK$20,000,000 from an independent third-party
which was fully settled in 2017. The loan was
unsecured, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 5% per
annum and repayable within two weeks from the date
of loan granted.

31. MARGIN LOANS PAYABLE 31.

As at 31 December 2017, the margin loans payable
was secured by the listed equity securities placed in
a financial institution held by the Group as disclosed
in note 24 under the margin accounts, with fair
value of approximately HK$39,598,000 (2016:
HK$71,669,000).

The margin loans payable is repayable on demand if it
is subjected to margin call from the financial institution
and carried a fixed interest rate at 10% per annum
(2016: variable interest rate at P+5% per annum).
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RECEFRCHTR —HESREED
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B #39,598,0008 L (=& — /N &F:
71,669,000/ 7T ) ©

EARES HREEREE RREE
R B R EE - B FIE R10%
E R RBEREPS%) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32, CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs")

(a)

Convertible bonds |

On 30 April 2013, the Company issued
convertible bonds (the “CB-1") in a principal
amount of HK$34,500,000 with interest
bearing at 5% per annum to Top Status. The
CB-I had been matured on 31 December 2016
(the “Maturity Date”). The CB-I entitled the
holder to convert the CB-I in full or in part (in
multiples of HK$500,000) into the ordinary
shares of the Company at any time on or after
the date of issue of the CB-I up to fifth business
day prior to the Maturity Date at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.01 per share, subject
to adjustment provisions which are standard
terms for convertible securities of similar
type. If the CB-lI had not been converted by
bondholder, it would be converted on Maturity
Date by the Company.

On January 2014, Top Status transferred the
2013 CBs to Sino Coronet Limited, which is a
connected party of Top Status.

Transaction costs directly attributable to
issue of the CB-l amounted to approximately
HK$585,000 are allocated to liability and equity
components on initial recognition.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

32. ARES ([ArERES])

(a) FBREZ—
RARRZE—=FMA=+
HATop StatusE T A& A
34,500,000/ 7T M #2 5 | 5%
FFEMAIMRES (ARG
HF—1) ABRBREFER_-F
—RNE+ZA=+—8 (2
1) 28 AT AR & 5 — M T 5
BAENRABERES—%TH
HEEZNHAMEREEEA
1 0] B ) 12 9] 20 88 AR B & A% 0.01
7T R A Sk 7 (22 7%500,000
BB 2 Al BRES— X
BMBARRNE LB AN
BARS (B AR UUE 8 59 AT # A%
BHZIREGER) - MR RES
—AREEHFFHBEALKR AHE
REEA R HAR A H e

MRZF—ME—H  Top Status/A]
HBAESPEARAREE_Z
—=FaBmRES-

BT BRRES —EERBHRA
#9585,000/8 TN V1 IR FE R B
e ERERITD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

32.

(a)

Convertible bonds I (continued)

The CB-l contained the following components
that are required to be separately accounted
for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-I
represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of the
Company as well as the amount of the
CB-1 without conversion option, plus
allocated transaction costs. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is
19.49%.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the CB-l and the
fair values assigned to the liability
components less allocated transaction
costs.

On 11 October 2013, as a result of the
Company'’s share consolidation, the conversion
price of the 2013 CBs was adjusted to HK$0.02
per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, CB-I
with principal amount of HK$10,000,000 was
converted into 500,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at par at the conversion price of
HK$0.02 per ordinary share. (Note 34(d). All
CB-I had been converted as at 31 December
2016.
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R ES ([RRES])

(%)

() wWEgKRMES— (F)
ABRES B3 NABIZA
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iy ABREF—BERS
BIRETEZAERMR 2
EHNETARAKRRAES AR
B ERE2EEEMRR
AN T A ZTEF
Wit RARBZEE
B2 LA J% I 48 H2 B AR A ]
BRESF—HE BNE
AR HHA B EDD
N2 EBBENZER19.49% °

(i) HEmE D IEEITRRRE
HoZRREESRET A
D 2 AT EZEER
ENERHMA

RZE—=F+A+—H8 @R
RARARIETRDEN W _F
—=FramREHF I BRRERE
P LFR0.028TT

HE-_ZT—-—XR"FTH=1T—H
IFFE - N4 % 510,000,000
T2 ABRES —BERERER
f%0.028 w2 TR B IR EEE R
/500,000,000 78 2 &) 38 f%
(MI5E34(d)) - FRE AT ARRIE S —
ERZE—R"F+=HA=1+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds I

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top Limited
(“Skyline Top”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and Mr. So Pan entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to sell to
Skyline Top, and Skyline Top has agreed to
purchase from Mr. So Pan the sale shares of
Konson Global Investments Limited (“Konson");
and (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to assign to
Skyline Top, and Skyline Top has agreed to
accept the assignment of, the sale loan at an
aggregate consideration of HK$40,000,000, of
which: (i) HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied by
Skyline Top by cheque or cashier order upon
the completion; and (i) HK$20,000,000 shall
be satisfied by the Skyline Top’s procuring of
the issue of the convertible bonds (“CB-II")
at the conversion price of HK$0.17 (Note) per
conversion share by the Company to Mr. So Pan
upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-ll, 117,647,058 new shares of the
Company shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-Il as a consideration took place on
31 March 2014.

Transaction costs directly attributable to issue
of the CB-ll amounted to approximately
HK$352,000 is allocated to liability and equity
components on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs”) (continued) 32. TMRES ([TBRKRES])
(#&)
(b) Convertible bonds Il (continued) (b) R ESE = (8)

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
19 February 2014 (the “Circular™), the principal
terms of the CB-Il are as follows:

Principal amount of the CB-II:

ABERES 2 AR

Authorised denomination:

VRTEERE

Conversion price:

B E

Interest:

ME -

Maturity date:
FEAR

Conversion and transferability:

B LA EEE:

Note:

As a result of the placing of 629,000,000 shares ==D;
completed on 2 July 2015, the conversion price of
the CB-Il was adjusted from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17

per share.
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HK$20,000,000
20,000,000/ 7T

HK$100,000 each and integral multiples thereof
E1100,000/%8 7T 2 H B & (&

HK$0.17
01787

3% per annum
BF3%

31 December 2017
—F—+F+=ZH=+—H

Without prejudice to any condition under the bond instrument,
there shall not be any transfer, conversion or redemption of any
principal amount of the CB-Il during the Restricted Period (as
defined in the Circular), and further, the bondholder shall not,
and shall not seek to, transfer, convert or redeem any principal
amount of the CB-Il during the Restricted Period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Conversion

No conversion of the CB-Il or of the Valid
Principal Amount (as defined in the Circular),
whichever shall be appropriate, shall take place
prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific Event
(as defined in the Circular) (as the Company
may determine in its sole and absolute
discretion).

Prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific
Event (as the Company may determine in its
sole and absolute discretion), the Company
shall not, and shall not have to, recognise,
accept, agree or register any conversion of
any principal amount of the CB-Il. In any
event, the Company shall not, and shall not
have recognise, accept, agree or register any
conversion of any Cancelled Principal Amount
(as defined in the Circular), and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse whatsoever against
the Company. The Company shall, and shall
only have recognise, accept, agree or register
any conversion of any Valid Principal Amount,
and the Company shall have sole and absolute
discretion in determining any or all issues on,
over or concerning conversion of the CB-II.

Subject to conditions under the bond
instrument, during the conversion period,
bondholder shall have the right to convert
the whole or any part (in multiples of
HK$100,000.00) of the Valid Principal
amount, whichever shall be appropriate, into
such number of conversion shares as will be
determined by dividing the principal amount
of the CB-Il to be converted by the conversion
price (subject to adjustment) in effect on the
date of conversion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

32.

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Redemption

Redemption at maturity shall only be limited
and applicable to the Valid Principal Amount.
The Cancelled Principal Amount cannot, and
shall not, be redeemed whatsoever. Subject
to this as well as other conditions in the
bond instrument, the Valid Principal Amount
which has not been redeemed or converted
in accordance with the conditions under the
bond instrument by the maturity date, shall,
at the sole and absolute discretion of the
Company (and regardless of whether or not
the bondholder concerned have requested
for conversion of any principal amount of the
CB-Il into conversion shares) but subject to
shareholders’ approval (if required) as well as
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and/
or requirements of regulatory authorities,
either be redeemed by the Company on the
maturity date at a redemption amount equal to
100% of Valid Principal Amount or such part
thereof which is outstanding at that juncture,
or be converted into conversion shares. For
any avoidance of doubt, the Company shall
not, and shall not be required to, redeem
the Cancelled Principal Amount (as defined
above) or any part thereof, and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse or right of action
whatsoever against the Company.

Further details of the issue of CB-Il as a
consideration of an acquisition are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 13
December 2013, 7 March 2014 and 31 March
2014 and the circular of the Company dated 19
February 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il (continued)
Redemption (continued)

The CB-Il contains the following components
that are required to be separately accounted
for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-Il
represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of the
Company as well as the amount of the
CB-Il without conversion option, plus
allocated transaction costs. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is
17.37%.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the fair value of the
issue of the CB-ll and the fair values
assigned to the liability components less
allocated transaction costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
remaining CB-Il has converted into 68,443,811
ordinary shares of the Company (Note
34(e)). All CB-ll had been converted as at 31
December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
liability and equity component of CB-Il were
cancelled by approximately HK$7,854,000
and HK$3,477,000 respectively in relation
to the failure of Fuyu operation to meet the
accumulated profit requirement as stated in
profit guarantee. Further details are disclosed in
note (e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

32.

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV

On 29 May 2015, Delightful Hope Limited
("Delightful Hope"”), a subsidiary of the
Company, Yardley Wealth Management Limited
("Yardley”), the non-controlling shareholder of
Delightful Hope, and Rich Best Asia Limited,
an entity owned by the shareholder of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Rich Best Asia
Limited (“Rich Best Asia”) has agreed to sell
and Delightful Hope has agreed to purchase
1 ordinary share in China Smart Asia Limited,
which representing 100% equity interest, at a
consideration of HK$93,000,000, which shall
be settled and discharged by Delightful Hope in
accordance with the time, mode and manner
set out under the sale and purchase agreement.

The aggregated consideration of
HK$93,000,000, of which (i) HK$46,500,000
shall be satisfied by Delightful Hope and
Yardley by cash or cashier order upon the
completion of acquisition; and (ii) the remaining
balance of the consideration in the sum of
HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged
by the issuance of the Company’s convertible
bonds to the Chinese Strategic Holdings
Limited, the ultimate holding company of Rich
Best Asia, and as follows, (i) the Convertible
bonds A (“CB-Ill") in the principal amount
of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the Convertible
bonds B (“CB-IV”) in the principal amount
of HK$23,500,000 upon the completion of
acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV (continued)

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-Ill and CB-IV, 92,000,000 and
94,000,000 new shares shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-lll and CB-IV as a consideration took
place on 20 August 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
transaction costs directly attributable to
issue of the CB-Ill and CB-IV amounted to
approximately HK$702,000 are allocated
to liability and equity components on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued) 32. AR ES ([iKRES])
(&)
()  Convertible bonds Il and Convertible (0 FEREF=RUBRKRESFNT
bonds IV (continued) (&)
As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 27 AN B AE T —RHE+
July 2015 (the “Circular-Il"), the principal terms B-+tBz@ek ([@E—])pT
of the CB-Ill and CB-IV are as follows: WE AMmRBES=R BRI E
HFUHEZEERWAT
CBIll CB-IV
ARRES= ABRBRES D
Principal amount: HK$23,000,000 HK$23,500,000
REHE: 23,000,000 7T 23,500,000 T
Conversion price: HK$0.25 HK$0.25
HRRME 0.25%8 7T 0.25% 7T
Interest: The Convertible Bonds shall not The Convertible Bonds shall not
bear any interest. bear any interest.
FE: AR (& 25 I B A ) 2. o AR (5 25 I B A ) 8 o

Maturity date:
FEE -

Transferability:

DU TS
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31 March 2017 30 September 2018
—E-tF=A=+—H —E-NFhLA=+H

Subject to compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and regulatory
requirements, the convertible bonds may be transferred to any
person provided that where the convertible bonds is intended
to be transferred to a connected person (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) (other than the associates of the holders
of the convertible bonds), such transfer shall comply with the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and/or requirements
imposed by the Stock Exchange, if any. Any transfer of the
convertible bonds shall be in respect of the whole or any part (in
multiples of HK$500,000) of the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible bonds.
MREFGEMETMRBREERENBRT I RRES I EE
FEMAL ERAIBRBRESHEET - ZHEAL(EER
GEMEMAR) (FIMRESFHFAEAZBMEARIN)  BHRESR
ATFAGEM EMRAIZIRE KSR FTHEIN 2 A E (MF)
AMREF 2 EMEEARRRESHABLOASEN LI
R E 5 (500,000 7T 2 (E8) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs"”) (continued)

(9]

Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV (continued)

Conversion

Each holder of the CB-lll and CB-IV shall have
the right, exercisable during the Conversion
Period (as defined in the Circular-1l) to
convert the whole or any part (in multiples
of HK$500,000) of the outstanding principal
amount of the CB-lll and CB-IV held by such
holder of CB-lll and CB-IV into such number
of conversion shares as will be determined by
dividing the principal amount of the CB-Ill and
CB-IV to be converted by the conversion price
in effect on the date of conversion. No fraction
of a Share shall be issued on conversion of the
CB-Ill and CB-IV. The Company shall pay a cash
amount in HK$ equal to such amount of CB-IIl
and CB-IV that are not converted.

Redemption

All CB-Ill and CB-IV which have not been
redeemed or converted in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the CB-Ill and CB-
IV instruments by their maturity dates shall be
redeemed by the Company on their maturity
dates at a redemption amount equal to 100%
of the principal amount of such CB-Ill and CB-
V.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE
32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs”) (continued)

(c) Convertible bonds Ill and Convertible
bonds IV (continued)
Redemption (continued)
The CB-Ill & CB-IV contains the following
components that are required to be separately
accounted for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-Ill & CB-
IV represented the present value of
the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of
the Company as well as the amount of
the CB-lll & CB-IV without conversion
option, plus allocated transaction costs.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component for CB-lll and CB-IV is
8.82% and 9.27%, respectively.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the fair values of
the CB-lll & CB-IV and the fair values
assigned to the liability components
less allocated transaction costs. The fair
values of the entire CB-lll & CB-IV are
HK$23,000,000 and HK$23,500,000
respectively, were valued by Asset
Appraisal.

(iii) CB-IIl was matured on 31 March 2017
and reclassify to other payable with
principal amount of HK$23,000,000
and accrued penalty interest calculated
at the fixed rate of 5% per annum as
agree with CB-Ill bonds holder. Details of
which are set out in Note 27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued) 32. oA ES ([ ES])
(#&)
The movements of the CBs are set out d) FEBREFZ2EHIJINOT:
below:
Liability Equity
component  component Total
EERS ERs Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2016 NZZE—X_"F—H—H 54,148 24,918 79,066
Interest paid BARFLE (1,416) - (1.416)
Conversion of CB-l Rk Es— (20) (8,594) (8,614)
Effective interest expense ERMEX L (KFFs)

(Note 8) 6,479 - 6,479

Cancellation of CB-ll (Note (¢))  sHE4 [k EH =

(FH3E(e)) (7,854) (3,477) (11,331)
At 31 December 2016 RZET—RF

+-A=+—H 51,337 12,847 64,184
Interest paid BARFLE (248) - (248)
Conversion of CB-Il (Note (b)) ~ HIRAHRER =

(M5 (b)) (10,970) (4,194) (15,164)
Effective interest expense ERA S (HE8)

(Note 8) 4,568 - 4,568
Lapse of CB-Ill ARRES =KX - (2,954) (2,954)
Reclassify to BENHBAHMENKIEA

other payable (Note 27) (P5E27) (23,000) - (23,000)
At 31 December 2017 R-T—+fF

+-A=+—H 21,687 5,699 27,386

2017 2016

—E—tF ZZT—XF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Liability component &M FERT FHET
Classification of convertible AR ESR D

bonds:

Current B ER 21,687 31,551

Non-current JE BN EF - 19,786

21,687 51,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBs") (continued)

32.

(e)

As part of the acquisition condition of Konson
during the year ended 31 December 2014,
the vendor, Mr. So Pan granted a profit
guarantee (“Profit Guarantee”) to the Group
in respect of the financial performance of the
underlying business operation of the associate
in the PRC (“Fuyu operation”). As stipulated
in the agreement with Mr. So, if Fuyu fails
to meet the accumulated profit before tax
amount of HK$80,000,000 from 31 March
2014 to 31 December 2016, the principal
amount of convertible bonds issued by the
Company would be reduced proportionately in
accordance with the agreement.

As at 31 December 2016, the accumulated
profit before tax of the Fuyu operation from
31 March 2014 to 31 December 2016 was
approximately RMB39,364,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$43,744,000), accordingly,
convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 issued by the Company were
reduced proportionately. The corresponding
carrying amount of liability component of
convertible bonds would be cancelled by
approximately HK$7,854,000, upon the
cancellation of convertible bonds liability
component, the corresponding carrying
amount of equity component of convertible
bonds would be cancelled by approximately
HK$3,477,000.
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior reporting periods:

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
IR I B IR
NTRAGEHRAMBTREHREE
EHARLENIBEEERBEHEED:

Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
REMEMN
MEBERE ATEED @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TER
At 1 January 2016 RZT—R"E—H—H 1,037 22,842 23,879
(Credited) charged to consolidated FEGABaNEMZENER
statement of profit or loss and (%)
other comprehensive income
for the year (265) (206) (471)
Exchange differences arising from BEBREFNELEZR
the balances - (1,631) (1,631)
At 31 December 2016 and T-RET-A=t—RAK
1 January 2017 —+t%—H—H 772 21,005 21,777
Credited to consolidated statement ~ FEHFAEBHER
of profit or loss and other Ht2EhaREL
comprehensive income
for the year (445) (2) (447)
Exchange differences arising from BEBELNELZSR
the balances - 203 203
At 31 December 2017 —t&+-A=t-H 327 21,206 21,533

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$194,297,000
(2016: HK$153,861,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax has be
recognised in respect of such losses (2016: nil) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$3,658,000 (2016: HK$2,591,000). No deferred tax
asset has be recognised in respect of such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

34.

SHARE CAPITAL 34. BRA
Nominal
value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREE RO EE 8
HK$ HK$'000
o TET
Authorised ordinary shares: ETEEBR
At 1 January 2016 and RZZE-—R"E—-R—-BK
31 December 2016 and 2 "F+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2017 and —T—t+E-A-HEK
31 December 2017 Z—+H5+-R=1+—4H 0.02 9,130,434,785 182,609
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: ~ B%47 % E &R LB :
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"E—A—H 0.02 4,528,705,060 90,574
Placing of new shares (Note a) EREHRD (Hia) 0.02 420,000,000 8,400
Issue of shares (Note b) BT (Mt ) 0.02 288,000,000 5,760
Issue of shares in consideration for & {TRk {7 {E AU EE — S
the acquisition of an associate B NE 2R E (M)
(Note ) 0.02 263,636,364 5,273
Issue of shares upon conversion of AT HARL(EH M 140 M 21T
convertible bonds (Note d) (BtzEd) 0.02 500,000,000 10,000
At 31 December 2016 and -z /\iﬂ‘ A=+—-8k
1 January 2017 —+&—A—H 0.02 6,000,341,424 120,007
Issue of shares upon conversion of Mﬁ —H%fo HEBITRN
convertible bonds (Note e) (Pite) 0.02 68,443,811 1,369
Exercise of share options (Note f) FTIF AR (B 3Ef) 0.02 30,750,000 615
Issue of shares in upon settlement REEX AR EBEETRG
of contingent consideration (MizEg)
(Note g) 0.02 4,017,253 80
At 31 December 2017 —+FE+-f=+-A 6,103,552,488 122,071
Authorised convertible AT AR B LR -
preference shares:
At 1 January 2016, RZE-RF—-A—F"
31 December 2016 and ZE-R"FE+ZA=+-HRK
1 January 2017 and —“T—+F-A-HEK
31 December 2017 —tF+-A=+—H 0.1 173,913,043 17,391
Issued and fully paid convertible BEETRESTNARRELR
preference shares:
At 1 January 2016, qiq ~NF-A—8-
31 December 2016 and -z /_ﬁ‘l‘ A=+—Bk
1 January 2017 and —+E—-A—-Bk
31 December 2017 —t$+:ﬂz+—a 0.1 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 25 April 2016, the Company and Sun
International Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place, through the Placing Agent on a best effort
basis a maximum of 420,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.1 per
placing share (the “2016 Placing”).

The gross proceeds from the 2016 Placing were
HK$42,000,000. The net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other related expenses
were approximately HK$41,582,000. The relevant
resolution was passed at the Company's special
general meeting on 25 April 2016. The completion
of the 2016 Placing took place on 3 May 2016.
Further details of the 2016 Placing are set out in the
Company'’s announcements dated 25 April 2016 and
3 May 2016

On 19 July 2016, arrangements were made
for a private placement to independent private
investors, Mr. Sun Hui (the “Subscriber”). Pursuant
to the subscription agreement, the Subscriber
had conditionally agreed to subscribe for
288,000,000 subscription shares at a consideration
of HK$43,200,000 in the Company at a price of
HK$0.15 per share. The proceeds will utilise for
investment purposes or working capital for operation
of the Company. These new shares were issued
under the general mandate granted to the directors
at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 4th May, 2016 and rank pari passu with other
shares in issue in all respects.

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—tF+-A=+—AILFE

34. BRE (&)

B & :

@) RZE—ARFOA=-+HAB AQA
HAGREERIESERAA ([HER
B EIVEERE BUARRES
B REEREREERERHZA
BNRREESRESRM0.1ET
fid & 5% %420,000,0000% A&~ &) & 3@
B(TZE—ARFREFIHE])

TR - ARFEEFENMEHIALE
442,000,000/ 7T - &S MR ELE B €
MEMARRAEZE  ERIBEFEDY
741,582,000/ 7T o HEBIABE RN =
T-ANFOAZ+RHAMNARRRE
BRAg FERB —T—NFRE
EER T "FRA=ZAREK &
BT A FREESEMFBHNE
NEIABAEZT—"FMNA=+HA
F_E—RNFRAZRZAM-

(b) RZZBE-RELA+NA BXHIL
ANRETFBULAKREEREBELAE
([RER]) - IBEREBR®E RES
2B &4 A E 58 #8288,000,0000% 52
BER% 15 - X {8 A43,200,0008 7T &
f%0.158 7T - FTS FIEAS B EIR B A
BIANE] —REEED REHR
PRARBRZE—"FRAMNAR
TR RBAF KSR — MR T A%
IETES MRMEB T ESEEA
& =B REHAL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHEz_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLLEE
SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

34.

()

(e)

On 20 September 2016, Allied Realty Limited (”Allied
Realty”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and an independent third party Mr. Huang Zekai
("Mr. Huang”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which (i) Mr. Huang has
agreed to sell to Allied Realty 40,000 ordinary shares
of Gold Wide Holdings Limited (“Gold Wide"),
representing 25% of the entire issued share capital
in Gold Wide, and (i) Sale loan of net amount of
approximately HK$115,000 at the consideration
of approximately HK$29,528,000, settled by the
issuance of 263,636,364 shares by the Company to
Mr. Huang at closing price at the completion date
of HK$0.112 per share together with HK$1 in cash.
The transaction was completed on 6 October 2016.
Further details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 20 September
2016 and 6 October 2016. Details of the calculation
of Goodwill raised from this acquisition are disclosed
in note 19.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, CB-I with
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 was converted
into 500,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
par at the conversion price of HK$0.02 per ordinary
share.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the remaining CB-Il with principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 was converted into 68,443,811
ordinary shares of the Company at par at the
conversion price of HK$0.17 per ordinary shares. As
a result of the conversion share capital and share
premium have been increased by approximately
HK$1,369,000 and approximately HK$13,795,000
respectively and equity component of convertible
bonds has been decreased by approximately
HK$4,194,000.
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R (&)

FfeE: (#8)

(0)

RZE—X"FLA=-+H AR
% & M{ B X FlAllied Realty Limited
([Allied Realty |) BB E=HE 2
FEE([ERE)AILEEHH
Bt - (V= e £ B R ZE R Allied Realty
HESLEBEEGRAR ([®34])
40,0000% E@A%  (E 2 AR EE BEAT
B&A Z25% « R (iD$E & BE S F LY
115,000 /7T - X8 529,528,000/
JC (E R ARARIRIATER B Bk ™
BEEHR0.11278 7T 317263,636,364 /%
R FELEEERRSIVETEE) °
RRXGERZZT—AR"E+A~ERE
X o W B3 — RIS RS AR A &)
AT —A"FNLAZtHERZ=ZE
—RNETASNBRIRM T E IR
BEANEE ZFBENRMEE9.

REEZZE—A"F+ZA=+—
BIEFE AJBRRBRES —4Fc8
10,000,000/ JT B & H (& M 2 i&
BERLBERC.02B THEHIEA
500,000,000/ 28 1 7 & @ A%

HEZT—tF+-A=1+—HLF
f& » 7N 4 %820,000,0005 7T &) Fl 4 A
BRES —BEEENRRESRYE
MA%0.178 T2 568,443,811 A
NEE B - IS B AR KR &
BE 2 B Hh1491,369,0007 7T & 49
13,795,000/ 7t - T A R A% 15 55 K 4
= 285 B R 2 494,194,00078 T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
30,750,000 share options had been exercised by
the holders an exercise price HK$0.11 each for the
issuance of shares at par. As a result of the exercise
of share options, cash and cash equivalents, share
capital and share premium have been increased by
HK$3,383,000, HK$615,000 and HK$4,153,000
respectively and share options reserves has been
decreased by approximately HK$1,385,000.

On 29 July 2016, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, Treasure Max Investment Holdings
Limited (the "Purchaser”) and Ms. Kwok Shuk Kam
(the "Vendor”) entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor has
agreed to sell the Sale Shares (as defined in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 July 2016)
to the Purchaser and the Purchaser has agreed
to acquire the Sale Shares from the Vendor. The
Consideration in the sum of up to HK$4,212,000
(subject to adjustment) shall be satisfied by cash of
HK$2,600,000 and up to HK$1,612,000 by issue of
not more than 12,400,000 consideration shares at
HK$0.13 per consideration share under the General
Mandate granted to the directors of the Company at
the annual general meeting held on 4 May 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued 4,017,253 ordinary shares at par
value of HK$0.02 per share at a conversion price of
HK$0.13 per share on a pro rata basis to the Vendor
since only 65% of the target profit after tax have
been met. Details are set out in Note 43(b). As a
result of this transaction, share capital and share
premium have been increased by approximately
HK$80,000 and approximately HK$442,000
respectively.

All new shares rank pari passu with other shares in
issue in all respects.

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—tF+-A=+—AILFE

34. BRAE (&)

BfeE: (#8)

(f) HE-_ZT—tF+=ZA=+—HBL
£ E - 30,750,000 EE R #EC
EANRITEBEFRONB TITEL
BITRG -BARITEERE BE R
ReFE BRARKRNDEEE D 7
38 JN3,383,0007% 7T * 615,000 7T &
4,153,000/ 7T - MmEEAREREHD LD
491,385,000 7T

==

(9 R-E—XFELA-+THIE KAF
2EWBARIEEREERERAR]
(TEx)EBREBLLE([EH])ET
VEEWH B BEFEREME
FHEHERD (TERAARIAH
ATE—XNFLA-+NBHAMH)
MEACREEE HWEHERD -
REAKXH% AH4,212,000% 7T (7
FHHE)  WEAIRE2,600,000% 7T
FARBE—RERE(RER=F
—ANFRANERTZEREAFAS
EERTFARRER)RFRIIE T
2£17 N B 3812,400,0000% 18 M9 LA
S & %1,612,000% 7T

HE-Z—+tHF+_-_A=t+—HItHF
B ARTABRRE SR I3EITIZ
Lt 51 3% 974,017,2530% & J% M {80.02
BT B TER  E{EER65%
BB IEBR TR oI5 E 2B
F43(b) e AR IR 5 IR R AR
i (B B 9 Bl #2 N 4980,0007% 7T & 49
442,000/ 7T °

(hy  FEHBRORABESESEEMEE
TN ZARF AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
35.

—TAFTA=THILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes amounts due to non-controlling
interests and the debt component of convertible
bonds, borrowings, loan payable and margin loans
payable as disclosed in note 28, 32, 29, 30 and
31 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
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36.

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—BHLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. €RIIA
Categories of financial instruments (a) SRTHEZER
2017 2016
—2-—t& —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables ER kB
(including cash and (f %ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@)
cash equivalents) 89,413 84,024
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEF ARG EREE
— held-for-trading —B1EEE 40,328 79,269
Available-for-sale investments A H &R E 59,180 58,778
Financial liabilities A =L
Financial liabilities at FVTPL EAFEFAEZNESRAE
— contingent consideration — RS ARE
payable 512 2,976
Other financial liabilities Hih & maE
(at amortised cost) (IR SHA AT E) 147,694 121,269
Financial risk management objectives and (b) 4<ERERKBEEEBEREE
policies
The Group's major financial instruments AREEBWNTESR T ABTER
include available-for-sale investments, loan HHEERE RBEE AT IELE
to an associate, trade and other receivables, HEWBE I N Eofh FE UG BR 2X -
loan and interest receivables, financial assets FEWEZREME AT EET A
at FVTPL, bank balances and cash, trade and EBRENEMEE BITEH LR
other payables, amounts due to non-controlling & ENBRZ R EMERIE - E
interests, borrowings, loan payable, margin IEIT PR AR BRIl (B 2k - JE
loans payable, convertible bonds and contingent NER ENRBLER 0%
consideration payable. Details of the financial EENENKAREB - BESH

instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

TEMFFBREN AR T - R
ZETRMTARBZREARE

mEminREER (KRR - FIRRER
KREMERRR) EERRRR

BESREK -FRANMREZE

Bk BRER T - ARFE
EHZERRETEEREER
AR AR EREE 2
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk

()

Currency risk

The Group has certain subsidiaries
operate in the PRC and Taiwan, and the
functional currency of these subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Taiwan are
RMB and NTD respectively. The RMB
is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

()

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets, including bank balances, loan
and interest receivables, loan to an
associate and other receivables, and
monetary liabilities including trade

36.

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE
eMIA (&)
(b) =SHEREEEEREX (&)

TS EE (&)
()  EFEE(E
REBAINNE BB

ERMHEE (BRERITE
B RIRE L H B - R
LRREHER L EMRE
WoR) hEEHaE (2
B AN Bl R N LA AN K

and other payables at the end of the B)RBERRZETDE
reporting period are as follows: mr
Assets
EE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
RMB AR 53,777 31,106
usD e 141 40
EUR B 7T = 98
The Group is mainly exposed to RMB, REBITEEHRARKE.
USD and EUR. I RBITH R

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE4EREFRA T

Annual Report 2017 —Z —+ & &1



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

S
36.

—TAFTA=TRHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%) change in
Hong Kong dollars against the respective
foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2016:
5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax loss where Hong
Kong dollars weaken against the
respective foreign currencies. For a 5%
(2016: 5%) strengthening of Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss and the
balances below would be negative.

36.

RMB impact
ARBE

CRTIA (#)
(b) =RMEREEBEEREE (#)

mEEE (E)

0  EBEmEE (&)
TERFIAEBEHETH
HH B8 SN Y BB R FHHE5%
(ZZ—RNF:5%)&K
R o #%5% (& — X
F 5% )EEBREERN
HmEZEE ABERIN
BEREMERNL X
WRKEEREEHINEEX
AR B ABEFHNT
Ho-BBREDNEBEMN
INESFBEZHAZNE
¥eI B - WA R B R
LAONHEETE R B 5% (=
T —NF 5% ) 1E[E K
Bo NNIEEETRME
TR B BEINE B B B
‘EBBAERD WET
R BB HEEXAES%
(ZE—XF:5%) Alg
HBREMEEEBEXNRS R
HREFE T 548
HEaHe

EUR impact USD impact
BEngE EYH 2
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE-RE ZE-t§ T ZE-tf —T1%

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TR THBT

Decrease in post-tax loss
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i1)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
loan and interest receivables, loan to an
associate, borrowings, loan payable and
the liability component of convertible
bonds, as set out in Notes 22, 23,
29 and 32, respectively. The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to its variable-rate
bank balances as detailed in Note 25.
The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

For both 2017 and 2016, in view of the
prevailing market saving interest rate
for bank balance is low, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the
Group's exposures to interest rates risk
are minimal, therefore no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

36. &R TA (&)
(b) SRMEABREEEERIE (K)

TS EE (&)
(i) FEER

ARE B D RIRHE22 -

23 29 32FTEE B FEUR
EREFE - mEE QA
EHER EFR EMNE
FRUBBREFHERE
B o m e A T E R K &
B o 7N 2 [ I gk E RO B X

255F M 207 BERIT A 8

T e 3R R M R EL g o AR
£ B B Al I 8 A R E R

ReRM BEEBGER

K

R - TENARER

ZEEHERNN K@ -

RZEBE—+FR_F—RX

N\

FOERNIRITEBRNIAT
mEHEEN K HARQ
RAEERR AEE@R
A 1) S [ e AR 0 - R 4

2HHRE D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
36.

T AFFTA=THILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(i1)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the bank borrowings
and margin loans payable at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the bank borrowing
and margin loans payable outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis points (2016: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2016: 100 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$300,000 (2017: nil).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings and margin loans
payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(ifi)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its held for trading investments
and available-for-sale investments. The
management manages this exposure
by maintaining the investments with
appropriate risk level. In addition, price
risk was monitored by the management
of the Group who will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

If the price of respective equity
instruments held had been 10% (2016:
10%) higher/lower

- Post-tax loss for the year
would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$3,367,000
(2016: HK$6,619,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of
held for trading investments.

- Investment revaluation reserve

would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,806,000
(2016: HK$1,766,000) for the
Group as a result of the changes
in fair value of available-for-sale
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHz—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLLEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets, mainly trade and other receivables, loan
and interest receivables, loan to associates and
bank balances, as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For trade and other receivables, in order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Company has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts (including trade and other
receivables). In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

For loan and interest receivables, the Group's
management manages and analyses the
credit risk for each of their new and existing
customers before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. The management
assesses the collateral and credit quality of each
customer based on customer’s background
information, financial position, past experience
and relevant factors. The Group also reviews
from time to time the financial position of the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For loan to an associates, the Group’'s
management manages and analyses the credit
risk of the associates based on its financial
ability and prospects as at 31 December 2016
and 2017. As a result, it was not probable that
the associates would default in repayment of
the borrowings.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which
accounted for 99% (2016: 99%) of the total
trade receivables and 67% (2016: 62%) of the
total loan and interest receivables.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 16% (2016:
nil) and 50% (2016: 50%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and five largest customers
respectively, all within trading of grocery
food products (2016: trading of grocery food
products).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 20% (2016:
18%) and 71% (2016: 65%) of the total
loan and interest receivables were due from
the Group's largest borrower and five largest
borrowers respectively.

However, the directors of the Company
consider the credit risk is under control since
the directors of the Company exercise due care
in granting credit and checking the financial
background of these debtors on a regular basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

36.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the directors of the Company to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as the
Group had continuously incurring operating
losses. The liquidity of the Group primarily
depends on the future funding being available
and the ability of the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Details of
which are set out in Note 1.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of
the reporting period.

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE

36. @M T A (&)

(b) =RMEMREEREREE (#)

mBELmE (&)

SZREBENERACRERASHE
mE - A B REBRT B E Al
AR ERBE PR ZFRET

s
H o
B

Within More than More than
1 year one year two years Total
oron less than less than undiscounted Carrying
demand two years five years cash flows amounts
—ERg SR-F SHME E3:3)
REREERE (EIRPE EIREFE  RERLH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TRT TR TR THER
2017 ZE-tF
Non-derivative ETESREE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables JER RN R E A FE 1 R 35,801 - - 35,801 35,801
Amounts due to FE T FE1R AR AR R i A TR
non-controlling interests 2,995 - - 2,995 2,995
Borrowings EES 71,89 - - 71,89 67,189
Margin loans payable ERRELER 22,024 - - 22,024 20,022
Convertible bonds RRES 23,500 - - 23,500 21,687
156,216 - - 156,216 147,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

BEC
36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. £RITA(E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) £HREMEEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REETEE (&)
Within More than More than
1 year one year two years Total
or on less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
demand two years five years cash flows amounts
—FRH SR—5F SRME  EURRe
REXEE EIRREF  ELIREF ikt fRmEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THx TR TR FER
2016 “E-RE
Non-derivative FTESRERE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables FE R R Bt FE 1 508 10,988 - - 10,988 10,988
Amounts due to ERIFEERRRERTE
non-controlling interests 2,995 - - 2,995 2,995
Bank borrowings B|ITHER 19,181 - - 19,181 19,181
Loan payable ERER 20,115 - - 20,115 20,000
Margin loans payable ERRESER 18,445 - - 18,445 16,768
Convertible bonds Bk ER 34,536 23,500 - 58,036 51,337
106,260 23,500 - 129,760 121,269

Bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause is included in the “within 1
year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2017
and 2016, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of the bank borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$9,233,000 and
HK$9,181,000 respectively. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the bank will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such
bank borrowings will be settled in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to approximately HK$20,449,000
(2016: HK$22,436,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative

(b)

(9]

financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments
This note provides information about how
the Group determines fair values of various

financial instruments.

(@)

Fair value of the Group’s financial

e VB BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—
£RMIE(8&)
LREAREEEERBCE (&)

36.
(b)

T—+E+-A=+—AILEE

mBELmE (&)

i) B M) o 2 B B A R 7 HA ORI
EEMMANEERAR AL
XrEBRBIETESRBENF
BHEXTANSEETUAER

(0 =EMIENATETE

AWERUENAREAE SR
TAEFATFENTES R o

() FEETHTERFERY

instruments that are measured at THTHAZRFHE
fair value on a recurring basis
Relationship of
key inputs and
Significant significant
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets 31 December 2017 hierarchy and key inputs inputs to fair value
DTENTE
it S 3 BAYBERR
+ZA=t+-H HERTR REBENH BENEABA
SREE HRTE DTEER TERAUE EXBAEE HEZANEE
Listed equity securities
LHRERS
Held-for-trading non-derivative HK$40,328,000 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in N/A N/A
financial assets classified as financial (2016: HK$79,269,000) an active market
assets at FVTPL in the consolidated
statement of financial position
REAHBRRRTHEAR 4032800087 (=575 E-4 REBTENKTERE TR TR
RATEHAANEGEREEL 79,269,000/ 7T )
BEBEHTEERER
Listed equity securities
IHRARS
Available-for-sale investments in the HK$18,064,000 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in NA NA
consolidated statement of financial (2016: HK$17,662,000) an active market
position
REAHBRRRTHER 18,064,000 (25 —~5F: £ REBTENKTERE TR TR
MRHERE 17,662,000/ )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHz—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial

instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
as the accumulated profit before tax of
the Fuyu operation from 31 March 2014
to 31 December 2016 cannot meet the
expected level. As a result of the above
event, the liability component and the
equity component of convertible bonds
with approximately HK$7,854,000
and HK$3,477,000 were cancelled
accordingly for the year ended 31
December 2016. Details please refer to

note 32 (e).

As at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016, contingent
consideration payable was resulted from
the acquisition of YIHE Group and Inno-

Bag.

The fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement of YIHE
Group was approximately HK$1,839,000
as at 31 December 2016, which was
estimated by applying the income
approach. The fair value estimates for
the year ended 31 December 2016 are
based on the volatility of the Company’s
shares ranged from 45.8% to 46.1%
and assumed that YIHE Group has
reached the net profit of not less than
HK$7,000,000 for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017
and 2018 respectively. This is a level 3

fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(o) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

However, due to the ceasation of
business of YIHE Group, the contingent
consideration payable was not
fulfilled and the respective contingent
consideration payable was not
fulfilled and the respective contingent
consideration payable of approximately
HK$1,839,000 was written back
and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income.

The fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement of Inno-Bag
was approximately HK$512,000 (2016:
HK$1,137,000) as at 31 December
2017 which was estimated by applying
the income approach. The fair value
estimates are based on the volatility
of the Company’s shares ranged from
45.8% to 46.1% (2016: 45.8% to
46.1%) and assumed that Inno-Bag has
reached the profit after tax of not less
than HK$1,200,000 for each of the two
years ending 31 March 2017 and 2018
respectively. This is a level 3 fair value
measurement.

During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Company issued 4,017,253
ordinary shares at par value of HK$0.02
per share at a conversion price of
HK$0.13 per share on a pro rata basis
to the Vendor since 65% of the target
profit after tax have been met. Details
are set out in Note 43(b).

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE
eMIA (&)
(0 EWMIAEMNAFETE (&)

() FEBEEHELFHELY
EETREZ 2 -FE(E)

A AESEEXBKE
I BN AREREE
M ARRE S S AR EL
1,839,000 7T 2 #8134 7
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N F458%F46.1% (=
T—RE N T45.8%%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

As at 31 December 2017, there was
a loss on fair value of contingent
consideration resulted from the
acquisition of the YIHE Group of
approximately HK$1,839,000 (2016:
gain HK$11,326,000) recognised
in profit or loss as at 31 December
2016, the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable is determined
by using the probabilistic method with
reference to the projected net profit of
the YIHE Group for the one financial
years ended 31 December 2018.

Please see note 43 for the disclosure
of the measurement of the contingent
consideration.

There were no transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy in the

Note:

current reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(o) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial instruments
on recurring basis:

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE
36. &®TA ()
(0 EWMIAEMNAFETE (&)

() FEBEERHELFHELY
TR -FE(HE)

E=BHAFEHERF
P BB T

Contingent

consideration

payable

BAHARNKE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2016 RZFE—-—RF—H—H (13,165)

Additions NE (1,137)
Total profit: RN

— In profit or loss wigz 11,326

At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RE+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2017 R-ZE—tF—H—H (2,976)
Total profit: s A

— In profit or loss — R8s 2,464

At 31 December 2017 R_TE—+F+_A=+—H (512)

(ii) The directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of other
financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair
values due to the short-term maturity
or the impact of discounting was not
significant.

(i) ARAEZRHNEER
Bk R B H A 5 At
BELTRBEZRAE
HENFEMRE U H
RERRE BRI B R BE IR &
EIFEKe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE
37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Commitments under operating lease
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

37.

REENRE

RERNET 2 &R
EEEEBEBA

RBERAR - AEERERIATHEZ
HZ TRAIBEEEHON AR 2 RIER
SRIEAENT

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—XRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Within one year —F R 4,491 3,793
In the second to fifth years inclusive FCEERAF (BREEEWS) 4,437 7,032
8,928 10,825

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms of one to three years (2016: one
to three years) and rentals are fixed over the terms of
the leases.
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)
Commitments under operating lease (continued)
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$3,919,000 (2016: HK$3,586,000).
The properties generated annualised rental yields
of 2.3% (2016: 2.6%) on an on-going basis. The
properties leased out have committed tenants for the
next two year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

37. WEHWEE (F)

RERNET 2 &E (&)
EEBEERDHHEA

FA-MRGBZUEHERADR
3,919,000/ 7T ( =& —7/<4F : 3,586,000
BIL) R EMEREER23% (ZF
—RNF:26%)2FEMHERmE-E

HEMERRKRFEHERS

R|BEHR AEEEF THIH R
HERBEBRPRTA:

RIK

2017 2016

—g-tE —TxE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

Within one year —F R 6,276 3,279
In the second to fifth years inclusive FCEERAF (BREEEMS) 11,622 1,399
17,898 4,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
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39.

—TAFTA=TRHILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EBEAXKIE
2017 2016
=E—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of BB RTHERRERE M
the acquisition of plant and WmEFREOWERE K&
equipment contracted for but REHERF
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements = 2,451
SHARE OPTIONS 39. BRE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
24 January 2002 (the “Scheme 2002"). Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 6 May 2011, the
Scheme 2002 was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “Scheme 2011") was adopted.

Under the Scheme 2002, the Company may only
grant share options to the directors of the Company
or any person who is an employee of members of the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interests. However, the Scheme 2011 provides a
broadened basis of and scope of eligible participation
and enables the Group to reward the employees,
the directors of the Company and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group.
The Scheme 2002 was expired on 23 January 2012
and the directors of the Company consider that it is
appropriate to adopt the new scheme.
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The purpose of the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
is to enable the Company to grant options to selected
employees to subscribe for shares of the Company
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
the Group. The board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, invite any full-time or part-time
employees of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive and non-executive
directors of the Company, advisors and consultants
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme 2002 and
Scheme 2011 was initially 10% of the issued share
capital as at the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
An option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board to
each participant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
employee should pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The subscription
price for the shares of the Company will be a price to
be determined by the Board and will be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of granting of the options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares on the GEM as stated on the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of granting of
the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HULEFE

39. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2016,
437,000,000 (2017: nil) share options had been
granted under the Scheme 2011. The Group
recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$9,255,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$11,588,000) in relations to share options
granted by the Company.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Date of grant  Vesting period  Exercise period

39.

B RE (&)
BHE-_Z—X"F+=-A=+—HLHF
B ARABMERE —T— —F:18K%
B RS #£437,000,0001) ( =T —+ 4 :
) o AEBFAR RIE A B RENE
BT —+F+ A=+ —HIEFER
SRR #8%E#99,255,000/8 7 ( T —X
111,588,000/ 70 ) °

BRI E R ERFBIT
BE_Z-—tF+-A=1t—HLFE

Exercise price  Exercise dates

Bt AH EEAE TR TEER TEAH

Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 - 13/9/2016-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019

“E-—FiE  ZE-RF - “E-RENATZHE 0.110  12/9/2019
NA+Z=H —E-NFAATZH

Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 1 Year 13/9/2017-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019

“E—E3E  ZERE 16 —E—t+FNAT=RE 0.110  12/9/2019
NA+Z=H —E-NFAATZH

Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 2 Years 13/9/2018-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019

“E—FiE  —TRHE 25 —E-N\fNAT=RE 0.110  12/9/2019
NA+Z=H —E-NFAATZH

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Date of grant  Vesting period  Exercise period

BE_Z-A"F+-A=t—-HLFE

Exercise price  Exercise dates

R AH BEOH T TEER TFEBEH

Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 - 13/9/2016-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019

“T-—F5E ZE-RE - —E-REAA+=HZE 0.110  12/9/2019
NA+=H “E-AFENARTZH

Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 1 Year 13/9/2017-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019

“T-—F5E ZE-RE 14 “E—+tFAATZHE 0.110  12/9/2019
NA+=H “E-AFENARTZH

Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 2 Years 13/9/2018-12/9/2019 0.110  12/9/2019

“T-—F5E ZE-RE 2 “E-N\EAAT=ZHZE 0.110  12/9/2019
NA+=H “E2-AFENARTZH

The estimated fair value of the options lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$2,211,000 which has been transferred from
share options reserve to accumulated losses (2016:
HK$720,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 39. EBERREE (8)
The following table discloses the movement of the TEEEANNES ERNLEERES
Company's share options held by the directors of the B 2N N T BE A R
Company, consultants and employees during the year:
Option Outstanding ~ Granted during Lapsed during Outstanding
Grantees grant date at 1/1/2016 the year the year at 31/12/2016
RZB-RF R-Z-R§
-A-H +=B=+-A
ERA BRERLAH fef K AT 68 REARE REAXHK tef RATE
'000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
'000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
Directors 13 July 2015 64,750 - (12,950) 51,800
= “E-nF+A+=H
12 September 2016 - 187,000 - 187,000
—E-RFNATZH
Consultants 13 July 2015 - - - -
E) “E-RFtA+=H
12 September 2016 - 55,000 - 55,000
—E-REAATZAE
Employees 13 July 2015 - - - -
B “E-nF+A+=H
12 September 2016 - 195,000 - 195,000
—E-REAATZAE
Total 64,750 437,000 (12,950) 488,800
a5t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 150,425
RERATR
Weighted average exercise
price (HK$ per share) 0.212 0.110 0.212 0.123

MHEFE1TEE
(BrEk)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

39.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 39. EBERREE (8)
Lapsed Reclassified Exercised
Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Grantees Option grant date at 1/1/2017 the year the year the year  at 31/12/2017
RZB-LF RZB—tF
-A—-8 RER +=A=+-H
ARA BRERHAS HARTE  REREHN ENSR  REAGR i RAT
'000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
'000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Directors 13 July 2015 51,800 (19,425) - - 32,375
% “Z-RFtA+=R
12 September 2016 187,000 - (28,000) (18,000) 141,000
—Z-RFNATZRH
Consultants 13 July 2015 - - - - -
R “E-RF+AT=R
12 September 2016 55,000 - 28,000 (6,750) 76,250
“R-RENATZHE
Employees 13 July 2015 - - - - -
ES “E-RFLAt=R
12 September 2016 195,000 (35,000) - (6,000) 154,000
“R-RFNATZHE
Total 488,800 (54,425) - (30,750) 403,625
@t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 218,500
RERAITHE
Weighted average exercise
price (HK$ per share) 0.123 0.146 0.110 0.10 0.124

MEFIITEE
GETLER)
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
437,000,000 (2017: nil) share options were
granted on 12 September 2016. The estimated fair
value of the options granted on this grant date is
approximately HK$20,146,048.

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

39.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILEFE
B E (&)
BE-Z-—A"F+-A=+—-HILEE
HE-_Z-—RF+_A=+—HLF
J€ » 437,000,00017 AR RN — T —RF
NA+_HERE (ZT—+F:F)-
REBHNBREZGFRAFEOR
20,146,048 7T °

AFETEARBRE H - R
AR :

2016
—E-RF

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

FPEZE-NAEAATZ=H

INHE 19 B (B
1T1E(E
EHPR
TR A

B [ ) R
EHA B @R R

NP - =2E-NAENLA+=H

HNHE T 49 AR (B
TEfE

8 H1 8 15

T8 £ PR £

45 B )

78 AR 5. [0 47 R

FHE - —E—NFEAA+=H

T AR (B
TEE

78 H % 1R

8 #4955 i

. R =K

TE AR 5.0 3R K

HK$0.1107& T
HK$0.1107& T
65.88%

3 years F
0.608%

Nil &

HK$0.1107& T
HK$0.1107& JT
65.88%

2 years F
0.608%

Nil &

HK$0.1107& T
HK$0.1107& T
65.88%

1 year F
0.608%

Nil &

China Eco-Farming Limited FE|BE4EREFRA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
39.

40.

—TAFFT A=t HILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 4 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs capped at HK$1,500
(2016: HK$1,500) per month to MPF, in which the
contribution is matched by employees.

Pursuant to the regulation of the relevant authorities
in the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this
country participate in respective government
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the
eligible employees. Contribution made to the Schemes
is calculated base on the certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the
Schemes.

Under the Labor Pension Act of Taiwan, Employees
may choose a scheme where the rate of contribution
by an employer should not be less than 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and the employees may
also voluntarily contribute up to 6% of the monthly
salaries to the provision fund account under the Labor
Pension Act of Taiwan.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (continued)

The total expense recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$657,000 (2016:
HK$600,000) represents contribution payable to
MPF and the Schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017

China AF Corporate Finance Limited (“Formerly
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance
Limited”) (“CAFCF")

On 5 September 2017, Award Fortune Limited
("Award Fortune”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, the Company and Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin
(an independent third party) entered into a sales and
purchase agreement pursuant to which Mr. Chan Ka
Leung Kevin had agreed to sell and Award Fortune
had agreed to purchase 700,000 ordinary shares in
CAFCF, representing 70% of the entire issued share
capital of CAFCF, at a consideration of HK$1,700,000
which was paid during the year ended 31 December
2016 and included in deposits as at 31 December
2016.

This acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$775,000.

CAFCF is principally engaged in provision of financial
services. The Group has acquired CAFCF so as to

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
40. RKERE (&)
RiFEER REME2E YRR
X 4R FE#657,0008 T (ZF — R EF -
600,000/ 7T ) #8 AN 52 B AR B B 57 & B
ey RE S -

41. WEKHEB QT
HE2_T—+tF+_A=1+—HIEE

TEREFMHEERAARAA (AABAE
RREVBEBERAF) ([FEE
=1

R-_ZE—+tFNLARB ARFE2EN
J& /A &]Award Fortune Limited ([ Award
Fortune | BB ARG MBI FE = AR
RRAEE (—RBILFE=F)FILEE
WE BUABRRREACRABLE M
Award Fortunet [ & LA1,700,0007% 7T
HAB M B 21558 A 700,0000% i@ A% -
HHERE2HEEITRATION  ER
HE-_ZT—XR"E+-_A=+—HItFE
XMERZZE-—RF+Z_A=+—Hzt
A& oo

W AWE L ETT 2R -
W mEAERNEEL L A775,000%8

7T|:o

TEREIERERHSBRSG A&
EEWEFBERE UWBEBRXRULHHED

expand to this new market segment. IR o
HK$'000
TR
Consideration transferred: WEZRE
Cash b 1,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
41.

—TAFTA=TRHILFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. WEMB LT (&)
China AF Corporate Finance Limited (“Formerly TEEEHEEREREAT (AIBAE
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance RSBV EERERAR) ([HEE
Limited”) (“CAFCF”) (continued) =]) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities PEREEZHINEE QBB BRI EE
of CAFCF recognised as at the date of acquisition were LEERAFEENT:
as follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Wi R EE SR Y
AEE
HK$'000
FHET
Plant and equipment = M 4
Trade and other receivables JRE WS R 5% K2 EL A e W Rk B 1,195
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 363
Income tax payable e ER SRR (140)
Trade and other payables JRE ASF B SRR % L A B A< R IE (100)
Net assets BEFE 1,322

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the
date of acquisition amounted to approximately
HK$1,195,000. The gross contractual amounts of
those trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to approximately HK$1,195,000 at the date of
acquisition. No uncollectible contractual cash flows
were expected at the acquisition date.

REERE B REMERFEZA
F{EH) A1,195,000/8 70 - AUREE B 8

ZECWEE S R HMEKRFIEN &
B H#EE#) A1,195,00078 7T UK EE R
BB ERKEESHIRES T

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEEAMEE:
HK$'000
FETT
Consideration transferred BEERE 1,700

Plus: non-controlling interests IR AR R

(30% in CAFCF) (RPEREHEBE30%) 397
Less: net assets acquired B T F B E (1,322)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEENEE 775
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

China AF Corporate Finance Limited (“Formerly
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance
Limited”) (“CAFCF") (continued)

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions is
expected to be taxable for tax purposes.

The non-controlling interest in China AF recognised at
acquisition date was measured by their proportionate
share of net assets acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of China AF because
the cost of combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits
of expected synergies, revenue growth and future
market development of China AF. These benefits were
not recognised separately from goodwill because they
did not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

41.

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLEE
WEEHE = (&)
TEREVHERARAR (AIBARE
XREVMEEBERAAE) ([FEE
1) (&)
FEEAWBEANEE IS /TG A O
7 o

RUEE B R B RS SRR s
TR B R EENLBIFTE -

BERARBTRERERELN EE
PERN AN B IR R B RER B - W IN BA B
R EER LR EFBERERD
1 R R aR ~ Y AIE &= K R R T 5 3 R AR
BAA) SRR © a2 5 M sk I oK B 2 D A A
R RAENTFE A BAELEENER

HK$'000
FHTT

Net cash outflow on acquisition of CAFCF WHER B REMHR ML FHE
Cash consideration ReKE -
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B RITER R TINEIR & (363)
(363)

Included in the loss for the year was profit of
approximately HK$69,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by China AF. Revenue
for the year includes approximately HK$709,000
generated from China AF.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, total revenue of the Group for the year would
have been approximately HK$66,693,000, and
loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$96,527,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is
it intended to be a projection of future results.
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FEBERETBRAR GRS EBIE
A B9 #769,0007 7T - F E W B IR
ZZFTE A B9 49709,0005 7T ©

WEBER —_E—tF—A—HZEKX"
AR & E F 5 8 2 4 /66,693,00078
JC - M E B4 /96,527,000 7T © ##
EEHTEHGSBRAR BT —EhASE
WHEEEN _T—tF—A—BxKMm
AEEEREETR 2 WS RCEHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
41.

—TAFFTA=TRHILFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”)

On 29 July 2016, Treasure Max Investment
Holdings Limited (“Treasure Max"), a subsidiary
of the Company, the Company and the Vendor
(an independent third party) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement pursuant to which the
Vendor had agreed to sell and Treasure Max had
agreed to purchase 1,200 ordinary shares in Inno-
Bag, representing 60% of the entire issued share
capital of Inno-Bag, at a consideration in the sum
of up to HK$4,212,000, which shall be satisfied by
cash of HK$2,600,000 and remaining amount of
HK$1,612,000 shall be settled by issue of not more
than 12,400,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.13
per share (upon the condition as stated in the sale
and purchase agreement have been satisfied), and the
consideration shares shall be allotted and issued by the
Company to the Vendor in accordance with the time,
mode and manner set out under the sale and purchase
agreement (the “Acquisition”).

Details of the Acquisition were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 July
2016 and 25 August 2016. In accordance with the
sale and purchase agreement, the settlement of
purchase consideration was divided into two tranches,
maximum 6,200,000 shares will be issued at each
year during the first to second anniversary financial
years of Inno-Bag upon the fulfillment of the level of
profit after tax as prescribed in the sale and purchase
agreement.
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41.

W BB B~ = (48)
RE-T—~E+-A=+—AILEE

REBRRREEFRAT ([REER
%1)
RZZE—RNFtA-Z+HLB ExXKE
ZRABERAR([EX]) (KRAE/K—
ME2EMBAR) AARIERER (B
NEZFIFVEERE B -BEAD
AErXEEEXEREBEKRKEIRR
KE1,2008 B ((ENERREET
BEITRANOR) REAEEZA
4,212,000/ 7T+ I 78 LA 38 ©2,600,000
BT AT MEREE1,612,00058 LB E
[1%0.137% 7T 2 17 1 8 #812,400,000% 2
RNERHD TUAZA (FF B B i ik
HREEKE) BRERNHERADFIR
BEEHEAEYI AR EXRFE
MEFRERET(TWEEE]) -

KWEEEFBHERAQRABHAZT
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”) (continued)

This acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK3,497,000.

Inno-Bag is principally engaged in trading of recycle
bags. The Group has acquired Inno-Bag so as to
continue the expansion of the Group's trading of
consumables and agricultural products segment.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
4. WEHRELTE (&)
HERRREXFERAF ([HERR
®1) (&)
RN B RKBEAR  AWEEL
BB 4 /33,497,000 7T ©

RERFERIBUEAFERBARNE
S AREBEWRERERRER UFE
BRAAKBEHEEGMRERED N

HK$'000
TET

Consideration transferred: EERERE:
Cash e 2,600
Contingent consideration arrangement HAREBELH 1,137
3,737

Details of calculation of contingent consideration
payable are set out in note 43.

A EEMN SRR EZF TN ELS

HK$'000
FHET
Classification of contingent consideration payable 7 W B =5 18 5T AR 2 FE A
as at completion of the acquisition IAREBZHHE
Current BVER 616
Non-current 3F B EA 521
1,137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. WEHEBLAT (&)
Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”) (continued) REBEKRMPEERAT ([REBR
®1) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities LB RSAUE B EERN A HRIE
of Inno-Bag recognised as at the date of acquisition ERaEHATEMT:

were as follows:

Fair value

recognised

on

acquisition

KRR

HaTEE

HK$'000

TR

Trade and other receivables JFEE UK B R % L A E s SR IE 203
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 324

Trade and other payables JE AT B R K% L At JE A< SR IE (128)
Net assets BEFH 399
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the FEUNBE X % Hopb e Wk TE A UGBS B R >
date of acquisition amounted to approximately NF{EX) A203,00078 7T - AU HE B AR -
HK$203,000. The gross contractual amounts of those =W M ENGIENEES D
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to £ EA4Y /5203,00078 7T ° A A Y B 5
approximately HK$203,000 at the date of acquisition. EH TS W R H A 4IR 4 n 2 sEMET

The best estimate at acquisition date of the HEE-
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to approximately nil.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”) (continued)

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
WEEHE = (&)
HERRREXFERAF ([HERR
®1) (&)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: Ui B BE A PR
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred BHEERE 3,737

Plus: non-controlling interests N SEERR AR R R 2

(40% in Inno-Bag) (R EBIRRRHEEL0% ) 159
Less: net assets acquired B FTUIE R B E (399)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEEREE: 3,497

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions is
expected to be taxable for tax purposes.

The non-controlling interest in Inno-Bag recognised at
acquisition date was measured by their proportionate
share of net assets acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Inno-Bag because
the cost of combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits
of expected synergies, revenue growth and future
market development of Inno-Bag. These benefits were
not recognised separately from goodwill because they
did not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

BEKBELNBERS B RSM
5 S IERT

AR B EIRE SR VAR S IR IR R IFE IR AR
RESRBREDEAREFEEMNLLD

e

WERR S IRIRREL Z BB THA G HHK
ABIEEROGE - b BLA FF T H
REER LBRRESEENARGR
RE Wi 38 &= K R R T 5 B R P 2K
MM EEBN SR ZFN I AR
BoRER DERZFENZL TS
AR B EENRIRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE_T—+HF+-_A=1+—BLEFE

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Inno-Bag Limited (“Inno-Bag”) (continued)

41.

BB E AR ()
RERRREXZARAT ([HERR
K1) (#)

HK$'000
FETT

Net cash outflow in acquisition of Inno-Bag WK LERRENEE ML FRE
Cash consideration HeRE 2,600
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B IRTTAE R R FTUNERIR & (324)
2,276

Included in the loss for the year was approximately
profit of HK$720,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by Inno-Bag. Revenue for the year
includes approximately HK$1,736,000 generated from
Inno-Bag.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2016, total revenue of the Group for the year would
have been approximately HK$75,612,000, and
loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$33,413,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, nor is
it intended to be a projection of future results.

42. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 31 December 2016

On 22 August 2016, the Group disposed of the entire
issued share capital of its wholly-owned subsidiary
— Alpaco Company Limited, at cash consideration
of approximately HK$8,097,000. The disposal was
completed on 22 September 2016. Alpaco Company
Limited was an investment holding company with an
investment property located in Hong Kong and its
principal activity was provision of rental service during
the year.
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FEBEAIEKERRER I ELA
BE A 3% R 49720,00058 7T « FE IS B
FEREIRRERATE £ /41,736,000

7T|:o

WEER-_E—A"F—A—B%K"
RIAREEFE AR A75,612,0008
T A E 518 49/433,413,000/8 7T © {8
ZEHEMGPRE BT —EAA
WEEER _T—F—A—A%KMm
REBERERER W REEEE
IR MEEERRKRELE ZTER -

HER—BENE AR Z2#Es
BE-Z—X<"E+=-A=+—HLEE
RZE—ARENAZ+ZB XEE
& H 2 &M1& 2 5Alpaco Company
Limitedz 28 2 TR A R K E
#) 78,097,000 L - ZHEE N T
—ANEFENLAZ+=HBZEK - FA " Alpaco
Company Limited & —HIIREZER A A
HINEMENRES BEXTEEBR
REEERS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 42, HER—RBHBATZRER ()
(continued)

Analysis of asset and liabilities over which ERItECEEREEDW:
control was lost:
As at
22 September
2016
RZE—RF
ARAZ+Z=H
HK$'000
FHET
Investment property wEME 9,000
Other receivables H b fE W RIE 3
Deposits received 2z e (25)
Net assets disposed of BEHEBEEFE 8,978
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—ENEBARZEE:
Cash received BWm s RE 8,097
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (8,978)
Loss on disposal HEEE (881)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELECZHESRAFRE:
Cash consideration received EWEIE &K E 8,097
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of & : B HERITEH LIRS -
8,097
During the period from 1 January to 22 September BT -—RF—HA—BE=-FT—XF
2016, Alpaco Company Limited contributed to A Z+=H 8 Alpaco Company
the Group's revenue and profit of approximately Limited¥f 2~ 52 @] 2 W e N 51| 99 51 & B

HK$117,000 and HK$46,000 respectively. #9117,000/% 7T & #946,000/%8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-T—+tF+t-A=1+—BItFE
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(a) YIHE Group
The contingent consideration arrangement has
the following requirements:

43.

(i)

(ii)

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company's shares to
Hexin if the net profit of YIHE Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016
is higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the
net profit of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the YIHE Group suffers loss
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company's shares to Hexin
if the net profit of the YIHE Group for
the year ending 31 December 2017 is
higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the net
profit of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the YIHE Group suffers loss
for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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43.

BARARE
(@ HEKHE

SARRELHEEUATRE:

(i)

(ii)

WEAEBERBEE_Z
—"F+=-—A=+—H8L1Lt
FE 2 HHF 7,000,000
BLTHWMEEEE &
A 4> 77,000,000/ 7t
N & B AR RET
118,320,000/ A2 FIf& 15
TEM & Tl RET
2 B0 1 1 e ) 3R o i
EE&EEREE_Z—X
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SXEE AR KRBT
TEHEST
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—tF+=ZA=+—H1
FE 2 @F=#7,000,000
BILXWEEEE 24
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ARG E R RET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(continued)

YIHE Group (continued)

(i) the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company'’s shares to Hexin
if the net profit of the YIHE Group for
the year ending 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018 respectively is higher than
HK$7,000,000 or if the net profit of the
YIHE Group is less than HK$7,000,000,
the shares to be allotted and issued
will be reduced on a pro-rata basis. No
allotment and issuance will take place if
the YIHE Group suffers loss for the year
ending 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of
contingent consideration arrangement of
approximately HK$1,839,000 which was
estimated by the income approach. The fair
value estimates are based on the volatility of
the Company’s shares ranged from 36.8%
to 41.3% and assumed that the YIHE Group
has reached the net profit of less than
HK$7,000,000 for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
respectively. This is classified as a level 3 fair
value measurement. As at 31 December
2017, due to the ceasation of business,
the contingent consideration payable was
not fulfilled and the respective contingent
consideration payable of approximately
HK$1,839,000 was written back and
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

43. BEANZAKE (&)

@) EHEKEE (&)

iy WEEEEIFREBEZE=
T-R"NF+A=+—
H- ZZ—+F+=HA
=+—H-ZFE—N&F
+ZA=+—RHLEFEZ
45 F /5 727,000,000 7T
HiEEEE RPN
7,000,000/ 7T BIJ AR &
2htE K% E17118,320,000
BRARBIRG TEMR: M
1 TR KT /]G 1
RHEGIRD -HEESEE
RBEZZE—N\F+=A
= +—HLEFEHBE
B ARERETIGE
1Te

RZE—RF+_A=+—8"
SIRAREBELZHENRAFEOR
1,839,000/ 7T * Jy LA A VA
e AFEMETIERARFR
BN F36.8%%41.3% ) W HRE
BEAEBREBEEZE_T—X<F-
ZE—tFRZFE-N\F+ =
A=Z+—BUHEZ=ZAFE{EFEN
45 F) > 547,000,0005% 7T © Utk &
DEAEE=ZRANAFEFZ-
RZE—+tF+=—A=+—8"
BAREBEL  BRIKARER
BENS HERMIAREL
1,839,000/ L E B 4R & 18
mhEMEEKERPER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

S
43.

Rt ACTHLESFE
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(continued)
(b) Inno-Bag

The contingent consideration arrangement has

the following requirements:

(i) the Group will allot and issue the
6,200,000 Company’s shares to the
Vendor if the profit after tax of Inno-
Bag for the year ending 31 March 2017
is higher than HK$1,200,000 or if the
profit after tax of the Inno-Bag is less
than HK$1,200,000, the shares to be
allotted and issued will be reduced
on a pro-rata basis. No allotment and
issuance will take place if the Inno-Bag
suffers loss for the year ending 31 March

2017.

(i) the Group will allot and issue the
6,200,000 Company's shares to the
Vendor if the profit after tax of Inno-
Bag for the year ending 31 March 2018
is higher than HK$1,200,000 or if the
profit after tax of the Inno-Bag is less
than HK$1,200,000, the shares to be
allotted and issued will be reduced
on a pro-rata basis. No allotment and
issuance will take place if the Inno-Bag
suffers loss for the year ending 31 March

2018.
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43.
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e R
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(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(continued)

(b)

Inno-Bag (continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangement of approximately HK$512,000
(2016: HK$1,137,000) was estimated by
applying the income approach. The fair
value estimates are based on the volatility of
the Company’s shares ranged from 45.8%
to 46.1% and assumed that the Inno-Bag
has reached the profit after tax of less than
HK$1,200,000 for each of the two years
ending 31 March 2017 and 2018 respectively.
This is classified as a level 3 fair value
measurement.

For the contingent consideration of Inno-
Bag, as of 31 December 2017, there was
no fair value change recognised in profit or
loss. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration payable
is approximately HK$512,000 (2016:
HK$1,137,000). The contingent consideration
payable was not fulfilled and the respective
contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$1,839,000 was written back
and recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss and other comprehensive income.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

43. BEANZAKE (&)

(b) RERRK(E)
LAREBLHENAFEY
512,000 L (ZF — X F:
1,137,000 70) Ty ER R A E |
e AR EMFTIERERRR
9 N F-45.8% £46.1%H) K i@ I
BERLERERNEE-_ZT—+
FR-_E-N\F=ZA=+—A8H1
MEFEEFHRBERF DR
1,200,000/ L - thEDFE AR E =
BRI AFEFTE

HEKEREROIAREMS
RZF—+F+=A=+—8"
MENEBEERN A FEEZS-
RZEBE—+tF+=_A=+—
Elvﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁmﬁéﬁfﬁﬁn
£512,0008 L (& — N F:
1,137,000 7T ) - BT AR E
REE  MEARMRARE
#71,839, ooo,%rcaﬁé@m&qm
B kEAEERETER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE
43. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 43.

(continued)

(b) Inno-Bag (continued)

(b)

Movement of the contingent consideration
payable for 31 December 2017 and 2016 are

EAHANRE (&)

RERRE (HK)
REF—EFR-F—RF+=
A=+ —RAZENIAREE

as below: m
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—XF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Contingent consideration NTEBEEZENSIARE:
payable arising on:
YIHE Group HE&H
— For the year ended —HE-_ZT—+tF
31 December 2017 +-BA=1+—HItFE - 4,462
— For the year ended —-HE-_ZT—N\&F
31 December 2018 TZA=+—RHILFE 4,637 4,637
Fair value changes NEEEE) (4,637) (7,260)
- 1,839
Inno-Bag BB IRIRER
— For the year ended —HE_T—tF
31 March 2017 =A=+—HIEFE - 625
— For the year ended - BHE-_T-N\F
31 March 2018 =R=+t—HBILFE 512 512
Fair value changes N EEZH - -
512 1,137
512 2,976
Represented by: BIA TN &R
Current B HA 512 1,047
Non-current 3F R EA - 1,929
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44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A 44. MEBATEEESE
SUBSIDIARY
Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss HERBARIEDS Tk 4Rk
of control
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the HE—_Z—+EFE+-_RA=+—RHItE
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement B ANEEGEE BB ATRFE
in regarding to the disposal of 100% equity interest BEREANTN%EETIEZEWNE A
in a subsidiary, Glory Delights Investment Limited to a FEBEIEEERE AR Y EE HE K
non-wholly owned subsidiary, Wider Profit Investment BAZE ZXHN_E—+EFEWMA+H
Limited with nil consideration. The transaction TR EAREEREAHIHREER AT
was completed on 10 April 2017. This resulted in AXREEH100% P& Z250% ° #49764,00075
a decrease in the Group's equity interest in Glory TR ELFHIREAER AT ZEEZRN
Delights Investment Limited from 100% to 50%. HiWEERER S5
Approximately HK$764,000 representing the amounts
of the interest disposed of Glory Delights Investment
Limited was recognised in other reserve.
A schedule of the effect of disposal of interest is in a HERF B EEWB A ANk Eirir
subsidiary without loss of control is as follow: BEHERRET
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
THET
Carrying amount of & R AREE
the interest disposed (1,528)
Less: disposal interest R HE R 764

Difference recognised
in other reserves within equity

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B ¥4 &GR A 7

ERDZANEMHEETERERE

(764)

Annual Report 2017 —Z —+ & F i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLLEE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. BEAITXZ
(a)  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated a) BESHMBHRERMAPBEIN K
financial statements, the Group has entered EEFNEBHEALTIIIATE
into the following significant transactions with KL 5
related parties during the year:
Name of company Nature of transaction 2017 2016
ACIEE: RHMHE =EB-tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Au Yeung Po Leung (Note a) Revenue-interest income (192) (90)
BLSERR (Ffista) Wezs - WAFIE
Beijing HX (Note b) Other loss and gain-interest
income (1,552) (106)
IEREE (WMitb) Hith B518 R ez — A S A
Sino Coronet Limited (Note ¢) CB-l interest expense paid - 81
REBR AR (M) BRI R & 55
—BfR A
Bright Kingdom International Consultancy fee paid
Limited (Note d) 600 600
EEEBRER QA (KMad) EfEREA
Chan Kee Holdings Limited Purchases of grocery
(“Chan Kee") (Note e) food products 4,816 5,490
PRECEBBR AR ([BREE]) BERAR®
(Miste)
Deposit paid 688 565
[EENE:& A
Consultancy fee paid 318 186
ETEER &R
Revenue Interest income (358) (312)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a)  (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

Note ¢

Note d:

Note e:

Au Yeung Po Leung had been a director of
the Company until 30 September 2017.

Beijing HX is an associate of the Group.

Sino Coronet Limited is wholly-owned by a
shareholder of the Company.

Bright Kingdom International Limited is
connected with a director of the Company.

On 4 February 2016, Maxford Wealth
Limited (“Maxford Wealth”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, formed
an entity named Right Ocean Asia Limited
("Right Ocean”) with an independent third
party Ms. Yoo (the spouse of Mr. Chan),
and which Mr. Chan is the substantial
shareholder of Chan Kee. Pursuant to the
agreement entered into by Right Ocean
and Mr. Chan, Ms. Yoo and Mr. Chan
shall procure Chan Kee to enter into the
trademark licence agreement and the
sole distributorship agreement with Right
Ocean, for the sole and exclusive sale and
distribution of the grocery food products
and right to use the trademark granted by
Chan Kee at nil consideration within Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

Upon the formation of Right Ocean, the
equity of Right Ocean is held as to 51%
by Maxford Wealth and 49% by Ms. Yoo.
Therefore Right Ocean became a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December
2016, a shareholder loan agreement was
entered into between Maxford Wealth and
Right Ocean, pursuant to which Maxford
Wealth has agreed to lend a loan of
HK$11,000,000 to Right Ocean, with a
fixed interest rate of 5% per annum and
repayable on demand.
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RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—tF+-A=+—AILFE
BEALXRS (&)
(@ (&)

Hia: BBEREE-F L7
NAZTEBEAEAT
#he

fisb: IMRFELSAEEZBE
ATLe

fistc: HEARABR/ARBR
RZEERF-

Mizd: SBERERAFEAR
REEAmME-

fitfe: MZZE—ARF-AWEA"
Maxford Wealth Limited
(IMaxford Wealth )
(ApaElz2BWBRAR)
BEVE= et (R
EEZRMB) (REER
PRECH) E ZRRER ) K5
BAEEEEMERAQR
([BE]) B  RIRE
PR AT S M B
2+ MR A BB ERAR
BAEEE] L RIR R RT 1R
R E R
TREREE RMRAE
EE—-RERIEE R HE
12 m R G A AR
PR HI PR

FrHEER B % BB Z
1 = A Maxford Wealth#F
B51%kmaZtHAE
49% - A It B8 B AR AR
NEEREMB AR -

Hz—Z—-—XF+=A
=+—HI-%FE - Maxford
Wealth &2 g /& 5T 37 I 3R
B 3% & ltMaxford
WealthE | Z [ S He i
& 711,000,000 JT -
EFFR A% BAEKRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
45.

—E—+F+A=+—HILFE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 45. BEAETXRS (&)
(a)  (continued) (@ (&)
Note e: (continued) Misre : (#B)
Another loan agreement was entered BB ERET LS — 7
into between Right Ocean and Chan Kee, ExmE BULBEEER
pursuant to which Right Ocean has agreed BB (AR EED
to lend a loan of HK$6,000,000 to Chan BAER)EE -8
Kee, with Mr, Chan’s personal guarantee, 6,000,000/ 7t - & 5E 5 F
a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum, KEBT%  BERRIUESE
repayable within 36 months after the date B 7 B ER&E361E A X
of drawdown for business operation. Details B - B BERENHE
are disclosed in note 22(f). 22(f) ©
Details are set out in the announcement B FBEEHN AR T A
of the Company's announcement dated 4 RIE-RFZAMNBZ
February 2016. NGIK
(b) Compensation of key management (b) FEEEASHMH
personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company FARXRREERTEEREHR
and other members of key management during R B 2 HmT
the year was as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tfF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Short-term benefits SRRV 6,433 6,442
Share-based payments PARR 1D B ERES 3R 4,653 7,650
Post-employment benefits B A EEEA 340 132
11,426 14,224

The remuneration of directors of the Company
and other members of key management is
determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.
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46.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

46. AR BEHARRE

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FHET
Non-current asset FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTB AR 2 E 135 135
Current assets MENVEE
Other receivables H {th i Uy SR8 331 184
Amounts due from ) S NGIE Q]
subsidiaries 270,638 269,344
Bank balances and cash BITEBREES 374 16,846
271,343 286,374
Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables H h fE 1~ 3KIB 27,409 3,056
Amounts due to subsidiaries B R RFRIA 43,978 28,668
Loan payable ERTER - 20,000
Convertible bonds Al (B 5 21,687 31,551
93,074 83,275
Net current assets MENVEEFE 178,269 203,099
Total assets less current liabilities #&ER G EE 178,404 203,234
Non-current liability EmBBE
Convertible bonds AR E S = 19,786
Net assets FEE 178,404 183,448
Capital and reserves BARR B
Share capital A& A 122,071 120,007
Reserves 1 (a) 56,333 63,441
Total equity HarE 178,404 183,448
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

46.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

46. ARBAFHRRE (&)

Reserves (@) f#fE
Equity
component
of convertible Share Accumulated
Share premium bonds options reserve  Special reserve  Other reserve losses Total
TRRES
RER BEHS BRERE HEIGRE Hitft RiER /it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin T Fisn T FBT Tt T
(Note 34)
(Fzt34)
At 1 January 2016 RZE-A~5¥-A-H 304,528 24,918 2,300 28,769 - (371,899 (11,384)
Loss for the year, representing ~ AFEEBE - MAKEE
total comprehensive expense 2ARTHE
for the year - - - - - (21,660) (21,660)
Issue of shares upon conversion %A IR E A48 B TR
of convertible bonds (FtE34(d))
(note 34(d)) (1,386) (8,594) - - - - (9,980)
Placing of new shares BEHRIA (FiE34())
(note 34(a)) 33,600 - - - - - 33,600
Transaction costs attributable to ~ ELEFRA 2 X HHA
placing of new shares (@18) - - - - - (418)
Issue of shares (note 34(b)) BITRRID (H3E34(00)) 37,440 - - - - - 37,440
Issue of shares in consideration ~ {F A MTEEE A FIMREM
for the acquisition of BT (B E34(0)
an associate (note 34(c)) 24,255 - - - - - 24,255
Cancellation of convertible bonds 34 P2k &% - 3.477) - - - 3477 -
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREERIARN A
share based payments ER R R (HFE39)
(note 39) - - 11,588 - - - 11,588
Transfer of share options reserve  BE R HE K A R B R 2
upon the lapse of ik (Mi39)
share options(note 39) - - (720) - - 720 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A"E+=-A=1+-A8 398,019 12,847 13,168 28,769 - (389,362) 63,441
At 1 January 2017 R=E—+%-A-8 398,019 12,847 13,168 28,769 - (389,362) 63,441
Loss for the year, representing ~ AFEFE HARER
total comprehensive expense ERZBE
for the year - - - - - (25,456) (25,456)
Issue of shares upon conversion SR AT IRE & TR
of convertible bonds (Fi5E34(e))
(note 34(e)) 13,795 (4,194) - - - - 9,601
Lapse of conversion of HBAARERKN
convertible bonds - (2,954) - - - = (2,954)
Issue of shares in consideration ~ {EAME—EIMBRFHNKE
for the acquisition of mETRS (HE34(9)
a subsidiary (note 34(g)) 442 - - - - - 442
Exercise of share options I ERE
(note 34(f) (Hi3E34(7)) 4,153 - (1,385) - - - 2,768
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREERARD A
share based payments ERAOR R (HE39)
(note 39) - - 9,255 - - - 9,255
Change in ownership interestina R BA AN EAEEHHE
subsidiary that do not result in ~ REF K KL
loss of control (note 42) (Bizk42) - - - - (764) = (764)
Transfer of share options reserve  BE R BB K Mk BB B R R 2
upon the lapse of share EE RSN
options (note 39) - - (2,211) - - 2211 -
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=+-H 416,409 5,699 18,827 28,769 (764) (412,607) 56,333
The Company has no distribution reserves as at w

31 December 2017 and 2016.
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47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. KB RA TS
Place of Issued and
Legal form incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEAEAE EREERS HMAL/ EE4S BRIRARHRA FRRERRERELA IBEK
Directly Indirectly
E# B
2017 2016 2017 2016
Z2-tE CRRE ZE-tE CTRE

Kama Business Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Kama Business Holdings Limited BREAAH AREES (E3a:3:1s REBR
Anson Development Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Inactive

HK$100
RERRERAR BREELA 20 100872 &R EEXE
Hoi Fan Investment Limited Limited liabilty BVl Ordinary shares of US§ 1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
ANRERRAR BREALA ERRRNE 374351 EEXH
Goodlink Corporation Limited! Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  One-stop value

chain services

BEERLA BREALA 3 &2 BBk —iAEEERH
Grand Protection Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
TRERERAT BREELT ABRAES ETLERR RESR
Alpaco Company Limited Limited liabilty BVl Ordinary share of US§1 - - - - Property holding (note d)
Alpaco Company Limited BREALR ZBRLES Erz LBk #ENE (Mitd)
Kaley Development Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
ERERERAA BREELT ABRAES ETLERR EEXE
Cyberpress Limited Limited liabilty Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive

HK$100
FHERRA BREELT 20 100872 &R BEXE
Wide Graceful Holdings Limited Limited liabilty BVl Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Securities holding
Wide Graceful Holdings Limited BREELT ZBRLES Frz LBk E5RE
Joy Gold Trading Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding

Enterprises Limited

L0BH0EERAA BREALA ERRRNE 34351 RERR
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Annual Report 2017 —Z —+ & F i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. MBRATHE (8)
Place of Issued and
Legal form incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEAEAR EREENA HMAT/ EE4E BERTRARRA ARRERAERRLA IEER
Directly Indirectly
E# B
2017 2016 2017 2016

8-t ZEAF 0 ZR-tE R

Ever Chance Management Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Group administration
HK$10,000
EEERARAA BREELA B 10,0002 EEER
Lk
King Health Trading Limited Limited liabilty Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Trading of consumables
RRESERLA BREELA B 1R ERR HERED
Ease Chance Investment Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
ETRERRAR BREALA 3 10,000%7T2 RERR
Lk
Sky Success International Investments — Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited HK$100
REARRERRAA ARERAR 20 10072 Bk RESR
Skyline Best Limited Limited liabilty BVI Ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
REEBRAH BREALA EBRRNE [E3PA:3:1 RERR
Wise Success Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
550,000
Wise Success Holdings Limited BREALT ZBRLES 50000%7T2 RERR
Lk
King Noble Holdings Limited Limited liabilty BVI Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US§50,000
King Noble Holdings Limited BREAAH ARELES 50000%72 REBR
Fine Champion Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
550,000
Fine Champion Holdings Limited BREALT ZBRLES 50000%7T2 RERR
Lk
On Good Investment Limited Limited liabilty HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
BZRERRAR BRERAR 20 10,000 72 RESR
Glory Delights Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 50% 100%  Investment holding (note b)
HK$10,000
RAREERLA BREALA 3 10,0002 RERR (Wib)
"
LRR
Total Famous Investment Limited Limited liabilty HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
2RRERRAT ARERAR 20 10,000 72 RESR
All Readly Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Al Ready Holdings Limited BREAAH ARELES 1ZT2 SR REBR
Luster Shine Limited Limited liabilty BVI Ordinary shares of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Luster Shine Limited BREAAR HBRUES Erz LR RERR
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47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. MEBRATHE (8)
Place of Issued and
Legal form incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEAEAE EREERS AMAT/ EE4S BRIRARHA ARRERRERELA IBEK
Directly Indirectly
E& B
2017 2016 2017 2016

8-t ZEAF 0 ZB-tE R

Skyline Top Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
AERERAT BRAELA EBRAES ETLERR RE#SR
Great Hero Global Limited Limited liabilty BVl Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ERBRERAR BREALA ERRREE 34351 RERR
Global Brands Management Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 51% 51%  Inactive
HK$500,000
RRARERERAT BREALA 3 500000702 EEXH
Lk
Splendor Health Holdings Limited Limited liabilty BVl Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
PRERERAR BREALA ERRRNE 374351 RERR
Konson Global Investments Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
550,000
FERRRABRAT BREALA ERRRNE 50,000% T2 RERR
Lk
Union World International Group Limited liabilty Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited HK$10,000
BRERERERAA BREELA 20 10,0008 72 RESR
Top Yield Properties Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HBE2ERAT BREELA 20 BT ERR RESR
BRENREXERAA Limited fabiity Taiwan Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
B VN NTD1,000,000
EEENRERARLR BRERLA aE A R%1,000,0007 RENE
ALARA ZERR
BRHRREERAA Limited liabily PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
RMB46,000,000 (note )
BREFREERAT BREELA HE AR 46,000,007 #ENE (M)
ZHRER
BERERA (R ERAA Limited iability PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RMB3,283,453
EERARS (R ARAT BREELR Gl ARH32834537 REBER
LERER
1BERE R ORI BRAE Limited liabily PRC Paid up capital of - - 50% 100%  Property holding
RMB100,000 (note b)
1BERE R ORI BRAE BREALA HE AR100,0007 #EME (Witb)
ZHRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE_T—+F+_A=+—RHILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. MEBATIEE (&)
Place of Issued and
Legal form incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
HELREE ERiRR Ei Ve ¢4 BRIRARRA ARAREREREL IERE
Directly Indirectly
E& B
2017 2016 2017 2016
2t R ZB-tF SR 5%
RERERHA (R ERRA Limited iabity PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
RMB100,000
RERERHA (R ERRA ARERAR HE AR 100,007 b 3
LERER
AEREEENERE Limited liability Taiwan Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Trading of agricultural
RHAERAE NTD7,230,000 products (note )
RERRERRENE BREMLA 2 HA%7,30,0007 BERRS (i)
RABRAT LR
Delightful Hope Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 50% 50%  Investment holding (note ¢)
US§100
AHERAR ARERAR ARELHS 100572 &R RERR (M)
China Smart Asia Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 50% 50%  Investment holding (note ¢)
EATHERAR BREMLA 3 &2 SRk RERR (M)
Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang Limited liability PRC Ordinary share of - - 50% 50%  Property Holding
Technology Co,, Ltd 595,000,000 (note ¢)
RmEEFEREERRA BREMLA HE 5,000,000% 72 #ENE (Mo
LR
Main Supreme Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US§1 - 100% 100% - Investment holding
#EERAA BRREELA EBRLES 1ETERR RERR
China AF Finance Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Money lending services
HK$10,000
HEREHRERAR BREELR 3 10,0072 TR
LR
Harmony Alliance Holdings Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Harmony Allance Holdings Limited BREALR EBRLES Frz L8R RERR
Kingtop Asia Investment Limited! Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
BERERRAR BRERAR B BTz S8R b 3
Glory Luck Holdings Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 51% 51%  Trading of agricultural
HK$10,000 products
HEEERRAR BRERAR B 10,000%7L.2 BERRA
Gold Goal International Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§ 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Gold Goal International Limited BRERLT ARELHS (E3a 3513 REBR
Success Royal Investment Limited Limited liabilty HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property holding
SXRERRAR BRERLA B BT ERR FENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. MBA TS (&)
Place of Issued and
Legal form incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
WEATAR BELRMA AL/ R4S BETRYERE ARAREREREL TEER
Directly Indirectly
E& Bk
2017 2016 2017 2016

SB-tE CFNF ZB-tE TR

Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited ~ Limited liabilty BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding

Fantastic Allance Investments Limited ~ §REARA ABRSEE 1Frz LBk RERR

Sino Eco Green Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive

MERRERLA BRALLA 20 BT ERR s 3

YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of - - 0% 70%  Investment holding
US§50,000

EALEAREROT BREEDD AREAHE DL Ba28

Huge Famous Corporation Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 0% 70%  Trading of grocery food
HK$10,000 products

$BERAR BREELA B 10,0002 RHRRES

LR

Maxford Wealth Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding

Maxford Wealth Limited BREALR ABRSEE 1Frz LBk RERR

Kingview Master Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding

Kingview Master Limited BREALH AREHS (A 3]s REBR

Udog Petechnology Company Limited ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive

ERRENRERAA BREELA B BT ERR EEXH

Treasure Yield Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive

FERARRAA BRALLA 20 BT ERR s 3

Right Ocean Asia Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 51% 51%  Trading of grocery food
HK$10,000 products

FESHERAR BREELR 35 10,0007 BRRRES

Wider Profit Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 50% 50%  Investment holding

BERERRAR BRALLA 20 BT ERR RESR

Excelso Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 50% 50%  Inactive

Bicelso Limited BREALR B BTz B8R s

Balini Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 50% 50%  Inactive

Balini Limited BRERLA Bk BT SBR s 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

Place of Issued and
Legal form incorporation/ fully paid Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of entity operations share capital held by the Company Principal Activities
HELREE ERERR HfAL/ E24% BRTRYERK ALARERARELS TEER
Directly Indirectly
E& f:3
2017 2016 2017 2016
Z5-tF ZE0E Z5-tF ZE0E
Supreme Faith Investment Limited Limited lability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100% - - Securities holding
ERRERRAR BRAELA 30 VBT B8R KBRS
Treasure Max Investment Limited lability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Holdings Limited
EXRAERARAR BRERLA ABENES ETERR REER
Inno-Bag Limited Limited liabilty HK Ordinary shares of - - 60% 60%  Trading of recycle bag
HK$2,000
RERRREEARAA BRAELA 30 20008 E R RREES
Alied Realty Limited Limited liabilty BvI Ordinary shares of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Alied Realty Limited RRERLA ERRLES 1ETLERR REZR
Champion Front Limited Limited liabiity BVI Ordinary shares of US§ 1 100% 100% - - Inactive
Champion Front Limited BREMAR RERLEE 1ELZEER EEE
China Agricultural Finance Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Group Limited REBR
tEEEREEARAT BRERLA ABENES ETERR
Powerline Gain Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Powerline Gain Limited BREALR ERRLES 1FTz LBk RERR
China AF Securities Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$5,000,000 EEZE
HERETAFERAT EREALA 3 50000005702
LR
Luxury Regal Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Luxury Regal Limited BREALR ABROHE 1FTz LBk REBR
China AF Asset Management Limited ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Asset Management
HK$1,900,000
hEREAEEEERLT EREALA 3 1,900,000 T2 £ AEER
China AF Corporate Finance Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 18.57% - Advising on corporate
HK$1,400,000 finance
HEREHBERERAR BRERLA Eh 1400000 7.2 £BR HAOEREREER
Award Fortune Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Award Fortune Limited BREELA ZBRUES 1ETERR RERR
Success Future Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 - - 100% - Investment holding
Success Future Holdings Limited BREAAR ARRLES (E3a:3:)s REBR
China AF Capital Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% - Inactive
HEREAAERAR BRAELR 3] HK$1,000,000 EE
1,000,000 £k
Allied Wisdom Investment Holdings  Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§1 . - 100% - Inactive
Limited BRERAA ZBRIES 1ETERR 251
RERARRARLR

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities E(‘EZ?EfiFEEE R B AR C BT
at the end of both years. ERHE RS 77 °
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47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(@}

(d)

(e)

Being the subsidiaries acquired or incorporated
during the year ended 31 December 2017. For
acquisition of subsidiaries, details are disclosed in
note 41.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has disposed its equity interest in Glory
Delights Investment Limited and its subsidiary fB3E
wEFH ORY) BBR2A A without loss of control.
Details are set out in note 44.

The Group owns 50% equity shares in Delightful
Hope, Smart Asia and Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang
Technology Co., Limited (the “Delightful Hope
Group”) respectively. However, based on the
shareholder’s agreement between the Group and
other investors, the Group has the power to appoint
2 out of 3 directors of the board of directors of the
Delightful Hope Group. The relevant activities of the
Group are determined by the board of directors of
the Delightful Hope Group based on simple majority
votes. Therefore, the directors of the Company
concluded that the Group has control over the
Delightful Hope Group and accordingly, they are
classified as subsidiaries.

The subsidiary was disposed during the year ended
31 December 2016. Details are set out in note 42.

The Group owns 50% equity shares in Wider Profit
Investment, Excelso and Balini Limited (the “Wider
Profit Group”) respectively. However, based on the
shareholder’s agreement between the Group and
other investors, the Group has the power to appoint
3 out of 5 directors of the board of directors of the
Wider Profit Group. The relevant activities of the
Group are determined by the board of directors of
the Wider Profit Group based on simple majority
votes. Therefore, the directors of the Company
concluded that the Group has control over the Wider
Profit Group and accordingly, they are classified as
subsidiaries.

e B BRMHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE

47. HEARFE (&)

B & :

(@ #HEFTtEtFt-_A=1t—HBLF
E U B S M A L OB B A B - B S
W RE KT B A R IB BRI 541 -

by RNEBE-_FT-—tEF+-A=+—H
IFFE - AEBEEHEENKMARE
BRABNEMBARBERE AT
CRIDBRRB BN RER
R o FFB P 44 o

(© AEERF g EARFNTRERE
BREARAR ([HKE]) D5
BB 50% A b o AT Z AN 52 B B E
IREE 2B BERG®  AREA
RZEFMEEETET =_REFH
MMEBEE - AEBEARESAFN
SEEESENHEARZEETAE
EoRH AAREEERBAEED
215 7 W S B - i EL AR R 0 o3 KR S Y

Ba]e

(d) REE-_ZT—XR"F+_A=+—A8H1t
FE -ZHMBEARDEE -FIBHEHN
Mfs¥42 o

(e) NEE R EHIEE - Excelso & Balini
Limited ([18H%E]) 5 3% B550%
Bt e AMERAREBBEMIEEE
ZHREBH AEEARZAEEE
ErEEeNAEESPH-8E
FoAEEEEEDRBEEECE
EERBERZHEET - AL K
REIEBFEER ARBEHEEE
EEEEHE mMEEEESEAN
BRFEe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE
47.

48.

—TAFFTA=TRHILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has increased the share capital of 1& &
HMEZEHFMRAA from RMB10,000,000 to
RMB46,000,000.

(9) During the year ended 31 December 2016, The
Group has acquired additional 40.25% of the share
capital of BEEXFREMERERNHABR QA
from the non-controlling interest and therefore & /&
BEEEMERZERMBMR AT had become an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group as at
31 December 2016.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2017,
convertible bonds incurred an imputed interest
of approximately HK$4,568,000 (2016:
HK$6,479,000).

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2017,
convertible bonds with liability component and
equity component of approximately HK$10,970,000
and HK$4,194,000 respectively were converted into
approximately 68,443,811 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.17 each. Details are disclosed in
note 34(e).

(0 As at 31 December 2017, convertible bonds
of HK$23,000,000 was reclassify to other
payables. Details are disclosed in note 27.
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47.

48.

MEARFE (&)

B eE: (#8)

() HE-_Z—XR"F+_A=1+—HILF
E-AEBCBEENRKEBRA
AR 85 AR 10,000,0007T3E 00
= AR #46,000,0007T °

(9 HE-Z—R"F+-_A=1+—HIt#E
[ AEBE B IR R ESILE
BEREARERERERNERAF
R 240.25%  FA L& &R EERE
REAERNAERARR-ZE—F
+ZA=t+—HERAXREERESR
EWBAF
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48.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
4,017,253 shares of the Company with par
value of HK$0.02 each were issued as the
consideration shares for the settlement of the
contingent consideration. Details are disclosed
in note 34(qg).

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
30,750,000 share options of the Company with
par value of HK$0,02 each were exercised.
Details are disclosed in note 34(f).

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
263,636,364 shares of the Company with par
value of HK$0.02 each were issued to acquire
an associate, Gold Wide, as partial settlement.
Details are disclosed in note 34(c).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
FEFRERS (M)

d BE_ZEZ—tF+A=+—H
IEFE - RABE 317 4,017,253
I% & EE0.028 ;T 2 AR Rl R
MIERRERDNEREHNARE

R FIFRMIEE34(g) B ©

e HEZZT—ttFt+ZA="1-—
HIEFE ARASREESE
0.027T#930,750,00017 B Bx # ©
BEATIE o SR PT aE34(H)H ER ©

H HBEZZE—X"F+ZHA=+—H
WEFE AR ERYE —HEE
NAE5AMEITEREE0.02E
JL.2. 263,636,364 A% 17 - 1E A ER
DER - FEBERBERMIEE34(0) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

49. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILIIES ARISING FROM 49. BETBELENEEHR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's TRINTAEERB ZBHEENEEE
liabilities arising from financing activities, both B ARERESNFRSEY B RHE
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from EHBERREREPRKRRESREM
financing activities are those which cash flows were, EENEE HERAEEEFEEEREER
of future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's ERTESEARMETHNRERE -
consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flow
from financing activities.
Liability
component
Margin of
Loan loan  convertible
Borrowings payable payable bonds Total
BN mRREFN
LS ERER RELER &SRS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT THT TR TR FAT
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+-A=1—H 19,181 20,000 16,768 51,337 107,286
Financing cash flows RERENE 47,229 (20,000) 3,254 - 30,483
Non-cash change E3Ek L)
Foreign exchange movement INEZE 779 - - - 779
Redlassify to other payables ENSEAEMERNTUR - - - (23,000) (23,000)
Conversion of convertible bonds BRBRES - - - (10,970) (10,970)
Imputed interest RIS - - - 4,320 4,320
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=A=1+—H 67,189 - 20,022 21,687 108,898
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50.

51.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Turnover is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income and the impairment loss recognised on
goodwill presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income were
previously included in administrative expenses. To
conform to current year's presentation, the above
amount for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been separately disclosed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. The consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2016 is not presented as
there was no impact resulting from the above
reclassification.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Placing of new shares

On 20 February 2018, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with a placing agent, it is propose
that the placing agent would propose to offer for
subscription of 1,200,000,000 placing shares at
HK$0.0834 per placing shares (“Placing 1”) and the
placing agent has agreed to procure subscriptions for
the placing shares. The maximum gross proceeds from
the Placing I will be approximately HK$100,008,000.
Details are set out in the announcement issued by the
Company dated 20 February 2018.

On 9 March 2018, the Company announced to
terminate the Placing | and will be replaced by a new
placing agreement with a placing agent. It is propose
that the placing agent would propose to offer for
subscription of 1,200,000,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$0.083 per placing share. The
maximum gross proceeds from the placing will be
approximately HK$99,600,000.

50.

51.
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SO MBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE—_Z—+F+-A=1+—HLEE
LB EE
CERBEENGeEaEtETEKA
RXAZ25 BEEEBR LA MEE RS
RAZ T B R 2R EEIE Al
FATBRAX -BREAFERY] £
MEE_Z-—RFT_A=1t—HIF
EHNERE NG Bn AN 2 EK S
KPP EFERE - WEEIN T —RF
—A—BREFEEMBHRRE FALitE

kv N By 488
MoBEETE-

WMEHREER

[TR== )
RZE—NF_AZ+BH AAFHE
REREBEIVREHZ EBLERE
BEUNERESRKH0.08348 LR
1,200,000,0000% fid & A% 15 ([ Bc & F 18
—)MEEREERE RERERE
Bp-EFE -2 R=MSHIERE
15 #94100,008,000/8 7T ° FEIB H A AR
ARZE—N\F_A-+HHEZA
fiho

RZZE-—NF=ZANLB ARQRREM
BIEERIREEE — WHEESRE
NFRERRDRAR EERRERER
RERBELN REEESRESRKN
0.0837% JT 2 B81,200,000,0000% e & A%
M -BEEFEZ &M ERIERERKL
/%99,600,0005% 7T °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBBE

The following is a summary of the published results and AN AR T 5T A FRNRNEZ BT
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial ~ FEABEE 2 B TIB 48 M EE R A BN
years prepared on the basis set out in the notes below. 2o

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—t& T —ZT-1f —T-QNE —T-=%
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FEL FET FEL TET
Continuing operations BEREER
Turnover EEB 63,028 72,470 59,748 45,541 19,194
Loss before taxation BREAIER (77,347) (34,357) (55,837) (28,799) (25,745)
Taxation B (365) 308 (2,863) (48) (15)
Loss after tax from continuing ~ REFELEEBOKRTE
operations BB (77,712) (34,049) (58,700) (28,847) (25,760)
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Loss after tax from discontinued 7R B B 42 IF & ¥ 78
operations BRiEER - - (1,051) - -
Loss for the year FRER (77,712) (34,049) (59,751) (28,847) (25,760)
Non-controlling interests FEERRRER 6,064 4,094 537 1,454 14
Loss attributable to AREEEHEEAELER
equity shareholders of
the Company (71,648) (29,955) (59,214) (27,393) (25,746)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BEE BERIFERBREES
INTERESTS
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HILEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—t& T -1 —T-QmF ZT-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTAET FTET FTAET
Total asset BEE 490,881 517,906 387,399 164,701 27,276
Total liabilities BEE (170,648) (155,779) (113,534) (29,655) (16,787)
Non-controlling interest FEERBRRER (35,582) (43,998) (46,235) 1,448 14
Equity attributable to ADEHA AERER
owners of the Company 284,651 318,129 227,630 136,494 10,503

The summary above does not form part of the audited A EBMBIFEREBXMBEREN—Bo -
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
BEUF

At 31 December 2017
R-E—+F+-_HA=+—H

Location Type Lease Term Effective held
Hb B BEE HEH BERER
Hong Kong

58

Unit 8D, TML Tower, 3 Hoi Shing Road, Industrial medium-term lease 100%
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong

A AL G EE3RTMLES8DE T A 100%
PRC

s

Fulong Garden, Houhai Village, Commercial and long-term lease 100%
Baigi Country, Quanzhou Residential

Taiwanese Impediment Zone,
Fujian Province comprising

flats 3005 to 3012 of

commercial and

residential building

No.1 and flat 2905

of commercial and

residential building No.3
FEEREERMNEERER B KH 100%
BlE MR ENEEER R EE
3005E 301257 8L &

355 B (£ 12290557 B iz

Shop Nos. A-02 to A-04, Block 2, Hechang Commercial long-term 100%
Garden, Southeast of the junction of Tian'an

Road and Fengze Street, Fengze District,

Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, PRC.

PREREERNTEER EES ~H 100%
ALK EE2ERI X0 RmAA

ME L0257 EA-02 * A-03 2 A-04

Unit 104, Block 4, Shijimingzhu, No.245 Residential long-term 100%
Hualin Road, Chayuan Sub-district, Jin'an
District, Fuzhou City,Fujian Province, PRC.

FEHEEERNTELE x=E K 100%
%%lm;ﬁéwﬂmsf
t 40 BA ZRA4E 104 88 ot
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
REY=E

At 31 December 2017
RZE—tF+=-HA=+—H

Location Type Lease Term Effective held
i 2 BE HEH BERESE
Suites A to H on the 33rd Floor of Commercial medium-term lease 50%

Shidai-Caifu Building, Futian District,

Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC

FRERE R mERR [GES B 50%
RS KE3IEAZHE

House on Land Lot No. G17102-16 Residential medium-term lease 50%
Shuitousha Village, Nanao Town,

Longgang District, Shenzhen City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC

PEERE RN = A Hf 50%
R SEOK BRI Y

G17102-165R 5% 2 Bl 22

Taiwan

=) |

Flat A3, 12th Floor, Block A with two car Residential free hold 100%
parking spaces in the building numbered 166

and 167 at Zenith City, Lane 235, Jingmaoer

Road, Nangang District, Taipei City, Taiwan

altmmEBRLER2358AA AENE F= KA 100%
AIRA3F 1218 8 1 T 21E166 ~ 1675
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